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Financial Highlights

BITsE R

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E--f ZE-—HF ZZZTF ZT-NF ZT-N\F
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT ABEET BEST BEATL BEBT
Revenue Wz
— Semiconductor distribution — RN 1,012.7 1,190.4 1,259.2 1,602.4 1,592.1
— Consumer product and —HEBEEMR
product sourcing business EmREER 29.0 47.1 74.9 88.5 66.9
— Venture capital — g% - - - 0.8
— Others —Hfth 0.7 37 32 7.9 3.1
1,042.4 1,241.2 1,337.3 1,698.8 1,662.9
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, BRFE - FRIE - TE -
depreciation, amortisation B RIER RIBEA]
and non-cash items wH,(E51E)
— Corporate — A (26.6) (33.9) (33.8) (26.0) (34.3)
— Venture capital — A% 11.3 (19.4) (16.0) (28.1) 47.9
— Semiconductor distribution — RN 285.2 354.7 192.1 154.5 161.5
— Consumer product and —HEBEEMR
product sourcing business BE IR ETE (6.9) (16.5) (25.0) (20.4) 4.7)
— Others —Hfth (6.4) (13.5) (7.4) (10.1) (10.1)
256.6 2714 109.9 69.9 160.3
Depreciation and amortisation e R s (3.5) (3.6) (4.8) (4.3) (3.6)
Profit for the year attributable to AT ATEERFEREER
— Owners of the Company —ARREEBA 231.0 269.8 935 57.3 163.3
- Non-controlling interests —FEPERR iR - (0.3) (2.7) 2.1) (0.4)
231.0 269.5 90.8 55.2 162.9
Dividend A2
— Proposed final — A 36.3 27.3 22.7 18.2 18.5
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRS GBI
— Proposed final —ZEEAH 4.0 3.0 25 2.0 2.0
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Financial Highlights
B E A

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B T —F —T-THF —NE — N\
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
Total assets BEHRE 1,745.5 1,586.6 1,393.8 1,317.0 1,405.8
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDARS 1,637.1 1,440.2 1,198.4 1,132.5 1,106.9
Total equity e 1,622.0 1,425.0 1,181.0 1,115.6 1,086.7
Borrowings and lease liabilities ERREEARE 7.6 1.6 104.5 76.5 136.6
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRELIER 152.2 124.3 87.7 106.0 2339
Equity investments at fair value BEiRBmE A TEAE
through profit or loss LRI E - - - - 99.3
Financial assets at fair value FEiRBEREATEBYE
through profit or loss (included ZEREEGIARDE
in current assets) E) 28.4 48.2 79.8 117.6 -
180.6 172.5 167.5 223.6 333.2
Total debt to total equity ERFEREER AR
b 0.5% 0.1% 9% 7% 13%
Current assets to current liabilities MEEERREEE S
b 239% 176% 176% 215% 195%
Cash and cash equivalents and BRRekERREIER
financial assets at fair value RERBHEATER
through profit or loss (included Fl8R 2 @ BVEE GTA
in current assets) per share (HK$) mREEE) (BT) 0.20 0.19 0.18 0.25 0.36
Total equity per share (HK$) BB (BT) 1.79 1.57 1.30 1.23 1.18
Revenue to property, plant and WEsEYE - BE &
equipment and right-of-use assets (x) R {& A RIEREEE
L% (15) 35.0 383 37.8 42.9 36.1
Revenue to inventories (x) Y B & b 2K (f) 233 36.8 16.2 27.3 10.4
Revenue to trade receivables (x) Wer B FE & 5B
L (15) 121.2 35.6 16.9 23.9 24.5
Revenue to trade payables, deposits Wz ERE( & 5 8RN »
received and accrued expenses (x) Bl e RIEER
L (15) 43.7 43.4 30.8 353 13.0
Revenue to borrowings (x) e BRE R L R (13) 162.0 N/A 13.7 235 124
TNE A
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HAIRMAN'S
ATEMENT
E % BB




Dr. So Yuk Kwan &85 +
Chairman /&

Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am honored to present the annual
results of AV Concept Holdings Limited (“AV Concept” or the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (the “year under review").

From 2021 into early 2022, the global political and economic environment
remained volatile. Aside from the impact of ongoing strains in China-
United States relations, the Russia-Ukraine war that broke out in early 2022
led Western countries to impose severe economic sanctions on Russia that
in turn caused prices for energy, raw materials and other commodities to
soar, triggering runaway inflation across the globe. Moreover, COVID-19
outbreaks continued to disrupt global supply chains with stocks of computer
chips and various raw materials especially affected. In addition to these
geopolitical risks and ongoing supply chain issues, patchy recovery from
the COVID-19 pandemic continued to cast a shadow over global economic
growth. At the same time, stringent social distancing policies in Mainland
China and Hong Kong inevitably disrupted daily consumer behavior. However,
after experiencing short-term challenges, most economic activities have
gradually adapted to the new normal. During the year under review, the
Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$1,042.4 million (2021:
HK$1,241.2 million), profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$231.0 million (2021: HK$269.8 million) and a gross profit
of approximately HK$37.8 million (2021: HK$55.0 million).

AANBREESEMARBKEIZRZAV Concept Holdings Limited
(TAV Conceptl k[ AARE) REWBAR (FilE AEBBE_T_—F=
A=+—BIFE(RBEFE]) 2 2FEE -

ZEZIFUEZTFY) ERBERETIE - P EESBEDAR
B ZEZZFUEENRREEURATRRUHEHRENETENL
ERRE - BEER RV SEMERES  SIB2RSEZEIBR - I
b 2R ERRET AT RRSEEEE - REREEeR I EYES
A RZBERMEHLE - RH&BURRK - HIEERBEREIN - RS EH
AERRSEERERNEEN—  TLRIKEEERPET LRE - FE
Wi R BB S EMEENTRREERE e TEAREEETEY  BA%
FEETHKERAEAEYEREZMERENTERE - QEFERN - NEBE
BULES#7/51,042,400,000/8 70 (ZZE = —4F : 1,241,200,000/&7T) * A A
B ANERRFIZ4231,000,0008 7T (ZF = —4F : 269,800,000/7T) * F
F#49 437,800,000/ T (—Z ——4 : 55,000,000/ 7T) °
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Chairman’s Statement

According to a 2022 Global Semiconductor Research Report published by
Gartner, an international research and advisory firm, total revenue from
semiconductors globally rose to US$595 billion in 2021, an impressive 26.3%
increase compared to 2020. This was mainly due to increases in the average
selling prices for semiconductors average selling prices driven by the rapid
growth in 5G smartphones together with a combination of strong market
demand and rising costs for logistics and raw materials. On the other hand,
according to Gartner, worldwide smartphone sales in the second half of 2021
faced downward pressures due to component shortages and supply chain
disruptions. Despite strong consumer demand, chip shortage and depleted
inventories impacted smartphone sales to 2022 which in turn affected
smartphone shipments.

During the past two years, COVID-19 has dealt a severe blow to the global
economy, significantly changing consumption and sales patterns. We will
continue investing more resources in Southeast Asia’s e-commerce markets
by expanding our product categories and introducing more premium brand
partners to develop higher quality and more innovative products to meet
consumer trends. We aim to further increase our market share in consumer
product and product sourcing business by seizing opportunities in Southeast
Asia’s huge e-commerce market.

Looking ahead, the global economy is expected to continuing growing
in 2022. However, the rate of growth is expected to slow down from the
strong recovery experienced in 2021. Increasing geopolitical instability, tight
monetary and fiscal policies in several major economies, global supply chain
disruptions, prolonged supply shortages for chips and other resources will
all add to economic uncertainty in the coming year. Nonetheless, we believe
given the Group’s prudent and pragmatic business strategies, extensive
experience, and innovative thinking, we are well placed to seize opportunities
in fast-changing markets, achieve business growth by remaining focused, and
deliver reasonable returns to shareholders.

Lastly, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to the Board, the
management team and all our staff for their exceptional efforts, enthusiasm
and commitment to the Group. | also want to share my appreciation for our
shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners for their unflagging
trust and support.

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman
Hong Kong
24 June 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN N DT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

E 3 JC1)DSRET R

The following sets out the financial highlights for the year ended 31 March  [TxX&n#EE—E-——E=-FA=-+—HIIEEZHE

=

2022, with the comparative figures for the corresponding financial year of B B -E - — A SR ST -

2021.
2022 2021
—EC-C8& T4
HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEAET
Revenue by segment 12D EE) 5.2 Wa
Semiconductor distribution HEBRESH 1,012.7 1,190.4
Consumer product and product sourcing business HEBMAEMNMERRBER 29.0 471
Venture capital =153 15.4 (15.3)
Others EHAh 0.7 3.7
1,057.8 1,225.9
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, BFIE - BIE - 78 - B RIFBELIER
amortisation and non-cash items BlaFlL - (E548)
Corporate ~A] (26.6) (33.9)
Venture capital Bll1% 4.7 (19.4)
Semiconductor distribution FERESE 291.8 354.7
Consumer product and product sourcing business HEBHEMNERRBER (6.9) (16.5)
Others Hity (6.4) (13.5)
256.6 271.4
Depreciation and amortisation HTE R
Corporate NET (0.1) -
Venture capital Bll1& (1.2) (1.3)
Semiconductor distribution FHEEHEE (2.1) 2.1
Consumer product and product sourcing business SHEBEM N ERREBER (0.1) 0.1
Others EA - (0.1)
Total depreciation and amortisation e R A (3.5) (3.6)
Profit before interest and tax LS R B IE AR F 236.0 277.7
Interest expenses F B - (1.0
Bank interest income RITHEMA - -
Profit before tax B Al Vo ) 236.0 276.7
Income tax FRS®t (5.0) (7.2)
Profit for the year FANmH 231.0 269.5
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEEFERRT
Owners of the Company KARER A 231.0 269.8
Non-controlling interests FEFERR RS - (0.3)
231.0 269.5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, several major economies around the world regained momentum
and returned to growth as vaccination rates increased and business activities
gradually saw a return to normalcy. The Chinese government adopted prompt
and effective prevention and control measures to halt the spread of COVID-19
and ensure steady economic development following the recovery. According
to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s economy grew by 8.1%
year-on-year during 2021, higher than the Chinese government’s “GDP
growth of over 6% " target set at the beginning of the year. Yet, China’s
economic growth slowed down. Its economy grew by just 4.0% in the fourth
quarter of 2021, with a drop from 7.9% in the second quarter. Geopolitical
issues, runaway inflation, ongoing COVID-19 situation, the uneven pace of
economic recovery around the globe and other factors will create continued
uncertainty within the global economy. At the beginning of 2021, massive
fiscal stimulus packages and monetary easing measures introduced by
governments across the globe to boost their economies and maintain
financial stability have caused commodity and energy prices, including oil
and natural gas, to steadily soar, triggering high inflation. According to
international credit-rating agency Fitch International, inflation rates in 2021
were at multi-year highs in several countries and regions around the world.
In early 2022, inflation and supply and demand imbalances for commodities
were exacerbated by geopolitical issues. Inflationary pressures persisted,
spurring expectations within the market that the U.S. Federal Reserve would
further tighten monetary policy. In November 2021, the U.S. Federal Reserve
announced that it would begin reducing bond purchases, and capital markets
expect that it will hike interest rates, adding further uncertainty to global
economic recovery. World gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth in 2022
is forecast to deteriorate as geopolitical tensions worsen and global supply
chains remain severely disrupted. Fitch International has forecast that world
GDP growth will reduce by 0.7 percentage points in 2022. Downside risks in
the economy persist, which may negatively impact the industry’s prospects.

Given the challenging external environment and volatile global economy
during the year under review, the Group’s revenue by segment was
HK$1,057.8 million (2021: HK$1,225.9 million), a decrease of around 13.7%.
Among which semiconductor distribution business recorded revenue of
HK$1,012.7 million (2021: HK$1,190.4 million), its consumer product and
product sourcing business recorded a revenue of HK$29.0 million (2021:
HK$47.1 million), venture capital business recorded a profit of HK$15.4
million (2021: a loss of HK$15.3 million) and internet social media business
recorded a revenue of HK$0.7 million (2021: HK$3.7 million).

Semiconductor Distribution Business

According to market research company International Data Corp (“IDC"),
several factors including the COVID-19 pandemic affected semiconductor
supply chains in 2021, resulting in sporadic shortages and tight supply within
the semiconductor market. Global chip manufacturers and semiconductor
players cannot yet fully meet demand from consumer markets for electronics,
smartphones, personal computers, servers and more.

BEENWN D

¥ EREE

EE_ZT_—F BELHEEE FAUREEEE
BHRESE  2HRZETELERERERERD
77 o R EUT B IRFE R T A S PR 1R T AL R AR SR
SEE RELCEERENETER - BRETPEE
RGBS dRE T —F2FELER L
Ri#ES8.1% @ SRR BB EANEEBELR6%IA
FINRIFEFEVBEBIZ - A - PELEERBAT
WEE AT FE _FTENTINKERENE
EEERA0% - EBUARME  2RIBEWRER - B
BIFARZRE « BEBER ST HEBRS - Di%E
BARHCEIRETREE - —T-—F9 ATk
FUSEFRESRTISEBE - 2B TRERBTE %
EARREBRHGTEIA R ERER PR SRRk
Bl RAREEMRRERIFERA  S|HBEEN
BEFE BREEREEILUESERENER
TR FRRBSEBRRRMEMNBREA S F R
K=  BAZZZZF4 8K - BRftHAEH
AT AMEBOARBAm NG - BRENFE M5
HEE I HERE — PR BEEEECR - ZEH
HBRR_ZE_—F+—ASHAREREGERE &
ATIZTEHERBBHEERGS NG - ARRER
FONINTBABARE & - BEZ AR RBERL - 2IRH
fEERETME BT - TR BERNEEAE
([GDPH ¥ ER SRt - BEEBREEL  —T=-=
FRIRGDPIE R TR0 7B DB - LHIRREES
BB EITERE S REETE -

EIEFEAN - B 7 mk B e o EPRIE A Rk 2 5
KERBEBEHEZLE AKESWEEEA
1,057,800,000/& 71, (Z&E = —4F : 1,225,900,000%
JL) v TBE#I13.7% o Hp FEE ARG E
%81,012,700,000/8 7T (=&~ —4 : 1,190,400,000
B BBEEGRLREMRBERSBSKE
29,000,000/ 7T (ZZF = —4% : 47,100,000 7T) *
AR E 581555 115,400,000 T (CE - —F : 5
815,300,000/ 7T) K B B AR AE A2 1 B8 S A 815 W
700,000/ 7T (ZF=—*F : 3,700,000/ 7T) °

FER D HER

M5 AR BREEREIE AR (IDCIEH - F Lt
E#HN_Z - —FXFUERRSREERARZTE
B GRTSERALREEMREE - HEZRD
IRE - 2R a RUER ML RS M R TT 2 M T

BTER  BEFH EATHRARSSHEDS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWROMN

The consumer semiconductor segment was also affected by weaker-than-
expected growth in smartphones. According to the study conducted by
IDC, though global smartphone shipments performed strongly in the first
half of 2021, they declined by 6.7% in the third quarter and 3.2% in the
fourth quarter of 2021. Global shipment volume for smartphones in 2021
was approximately 1,350,000,000 units, an increase of just 5.7% compared
to 2020. Furthermore, due to evolving habits and demand, consumers are
more inclined to buy entry-level or mid-range smartphones instead of high-
end models. Suppliers have therefore reduced the number of semiconductors
they are purchasing for CMOS image sensors and the other components that
smartphones require.

During the year under review, new COVID-19 variants emerged in various
countries and regions, and the pandemic still poses challenges for economic
recovery. In early 2022, the Chinese government adopted temporary, localized
lockdown measures to prevent the spread of COVID-19 which had some
impact on semiconductor supply chains and consumer demand for related
products.

During the year under review, the semiconductor distribution business
recorded a revenue of HK$1,012.7 million (2021: HK$1,190.4 million) which
came mainly from its Singapore subsidiary that focuses on Southeast Asian
countries such as India, Thailand, Malaysia and the Philippines. Memory
chips are the main product sold to the Singapore market followed by thin-
film transistor liquid crystal displays and panels which are widely used in LCD
televisions.

During the year under review, the revenue of the Group’s joint venture AVP
Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (“AVPEL Group”) was not included
in the Group's consolidated financial statements. It recorded a revenue of
HK$26,279 million (2021: HK$28,612 million). Compared to the previous
year, the Group’s share of profit in AVPEL Group decreased, mainly due
to a slight decline in revenue for AVPEL Group during the year under
review. AVPEL Group’s main customers are China’s major mobile phone
manufacturers and component suppliers. AVPEL Group primarily engages
in distribution of Samsung Electronics including (i) CMOS image sensors, (ii)
multi-layer packaged chips, and (iii) ARM processors.

Consumer Product and Product Sourcing Business

The overall operation of the Group’s consumer product and product sourcing
business is mainly managed by one of its subsidiaries, E-GoGo Limited,
which distributes a wide range of electronic products, ranging from small
home appliances to the latest fashionable technology gadgets, with a view
to improving the customers’ quality of life and cater for their needs. The
consumer product and product sourcing business targets at various markets
including Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, and Indonesia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year under review, its consumer product and product sourcing
business recorded a revenue of HK$29.0 million (2021: HK$47.1 million).
The Hong Kong retail market failed to reverse the downward trend due
to international tourism being shut down and local social-distancing
requirements. In early 2022, the fifth wave of COVID-19 dealt the most severe
blow yet to Hong Kong, at a time when people were already depleted by
two years of COVID “fatigue”, disrupting economic activity and weakening
consumer sentiment. Persistently weak spending by local consumers negatively
impacted the Group's related businesses to a certain extent. In Southeast Asian
markets, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has created new consumption
patterns and sales models for economic and business activities. More retailers
are expected to shift their operations online, driving a massive transition
towards end-to-end digitalization. According to a research report jointly
published by Google, Temasek Holdings and Bain and Company, Southeast
Asia’s internet economy, fueled by a fast-growing base of digital consumers
and merchants and the rapid rise of e-commerce and food delivery services,
is estimated to be worth approximately US$360 billion in gross merchandise
value by 2025, increased from US$174 billion as at the end of 2021. The rise
of e-commerce in Southeast Asia is attracting customers keen to develop
front-end digital tools and back-end digital solutions for their operations.
These positive factors may continue to contribute to the solid development of
the consumer product and product sourcing business.

The Group will keep on monitoring the development of the pandemic and
effectively deploy and utilize the resources related to the consumer product
and product sourcing business to prepare well in time for the recovery
from the pandemic and the recovery of the local consumer market so as to
continue to provide quality and reliable services to more customers, in both
the offline and online market.

Internet Social Media Business

During the year under review, revenue from 830 Media Limited (“830
Media”) was HK$0.7 million (2021: HK$3.7 million), mainly contributed by
830 Lab Limited (“830 Lab").

830 Lab is dedicated to helping its clients to promote their brands and
businesses online. 830 Lab offers not only web design and development
services, but also online content creation services including filming and
photography.

Furthermore, 830 Media has been developing its “He She Kids"” Facebook
page for parents. Since its inception, “He She Kids” has engaged in creating
and producing high-quality videos. Providing extensive baby care information
and videos on both “He She Kids” website and Facebook page, the platform,
which keeps up with hot topics, is becoming increasingly recognized and
valued by parents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group will continue to review and deploy its existing brand resources,
and draw on its experience in operational strategy to manage the Internet
social media business. The Group will pay close attention to the latest industry
developments. Moreover, through various space creation and creative
channels, the Group will formulate development strategies to meet the
prevailing situation and seize the opportunities in the Internet social media
market arising from COVID-19.

Venture Capital Business

During the year under review, the Group’s venture capital business recorded
a profit of HK$15.4 million (2021: loss of HK$15.3 million), mainly due to
fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
net, interest income on listed bond investments, and dividend income from
listed equity investments in the current year. As of 31 March 2022, listed
and unlisted equity investments, listed bond investments, over-the-counter
equity investment and key management insurance contracts were held at a
fair market value of HK$53.9 million (31 March 2021: HK$72.9 million) by the
Group. During the year under review, the Group’s venture capital business
recorded a fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, net of HK$14.6 million (2021: fair value losses of HK$18.0 million).

The venture capital business has always contributed considerable income for
the Group. The ultimate objective for these investments is to make capital
gains on investee’s equity listings or, in some circumstances, prior to listing.

On 31 March 2022, the Group’s major strategic investments included
investments in Tooniplay Co., Ltd. and Urban City Joint Stock Company.
Tooniplay Co., Ltd. is a Korean-based mobile game developer, and Urban City
Joint Stock Company is a Vietnamese e-commerce company.

PROSPECT

According to the World Economic Outlook (April 2021) of the International
Monetary Fund, global growth is projected to grow by a mere 3.6% in 2022,
0.8 percentage points lower projected in January of the same year. According
to the “Global Semiconductor Industry Outlook 2022" published by KPMG,
the three most important drivers for the semiconductor industry in the
coming years will be wireless communications, automotive applications, and
Internet of Things. Wireless communications — including 5G infrastructure,
smartphones, and other mobile devices — are considered to be the most
important revenue driver for the semiconductor industry with Sensors/
Micro-Electro-Mechanical Systems viewed as the semiconductor product
with the highest growth potential. Microprocessors are predicted to be the
semiconductor products with the second greatest growth potential. According
to a forecast made by World Semiconductor Trade Statistics, the global
semiconductor market will grow by 8.8% to US$601 billion in 2022, with
sensors and logic devices expected to grow by over 10%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Nonetheless, the global semiconductor industry will likely continue to
face supply chain challenges. According to findings from the “Global
Semiconductor Industry Outlook 2022", most senior executives in the
U.S. semiconductor industry believe that imbalances between chip supply
and demand will persist into 2023. Chip shortages and a lack of talent
should pose major challenges to global semiconductor industry revenues.
Semiconductor companies pay close attention to how their business is
impacted by geopolitical matters, supply chain issues, related trade deals
and others. As an integral component of the global internet economy, the
semiconductor industry supports the development of countless applications in
many industries. As they develop towards end markets, numerous companies
will actively diversify and adjust their supply chains to meet rapidly-changing
market needs.

COVID-19 continues to accelerate technological development and reinforce
the consumer market’s interest in 5G. Global companies are also actively
adopting forward-looking measures to invest in next-generation wireless
technologies such as 5G. They are also committed to developing new
solutions, products and services to cope with current and future challenges.
However, the COVID-19 pandemic is still far from over. In early 2022, there
were periodic outbreaks of the pandemic in certain cities and regions across
Mainland China. The Chinese government adopted rigorous and localized
lockdown measures to contain the pandemic, which slowed the steady pace
of economic recovery. Nevertheless, by promptly implementing these effective
prevention and control measures to control the spread of COVID-19, and with
the uptake in COVID-19 vaccines effectively reducing the severity of symptoms
and mortality rates, China’s economic and social development should quickly
return to balanced growth.

The global political and economic situation remains complicated and volatile.
Coupled with rising protectionism, the COVID-19 pandemic and its various
consequences persist. In response to the pandemic, the leading countries
and economies have implemented fiscal and monetary policies that have
contributed to mixed economic recovery. They have, however, produced
certain adverse effects on the political and economic environment, creating
ongoing uncertainty about the strength of global economic growth.
Leveraging its massive talent, operational and technological resources, the
Group will make every effort to address the various challenges posed by this
new landscape from a people, operational, and technological perspective.
Relying on prudent development strategies and industry leadership, the Group
will meet every challenge and strive to achieve stable growth — consolidating
its market position, maintaining its competitive advantages, and remaining
steadfast in delivering reasonable returns to shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total debt position and the gearing ratio as at 31 March 2022 are shown as
follows:

REBETRMHER

RIZB-—F=A=t+—RZEBEFENRRIEEE
AEFEHEERDT

2022 2021

g5 T

HK$'million HK$'million

BEER AEBT

Cash and cash equivalents RekERBELIEE 152.2 124.3
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BiBEEEATEEYERZ

(included in current assets) SREEGIARBEE) 28.4 48.2

180.6 172.5

Borrowings and lease liabilities EBERAEEEE 7.6 1.6

Total equity iR ER 1,622.0 1,425.0

Total debt to total equity BRI s (ARE v T 0.5% 0.1%

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents (i.e. cash and
bank balances and deposits with other financial institutions) of HK$152.2
million (31 March 2021: HK$124.3 million), while the Group’s financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (included in current assets) amounted to
HK$28.4 million (31 March 2021: HK$48.2 million). The equity investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included a balanced
mix of fixed income, equity and alternative investments and such amount
represented the cash reserves held for the Group’s medium to long term
business development and would form an integral part of the Group’'s
treasury.

The total debt to total equity ratio as at 31 March 2022 was 0.5% (31
March 2021: 0.1%), while the Group's total equity as at 31 March 2022 was
HK$1,622.0 million (31 March 2021: HK$1,425.0 million), with the total
balances of cash and cash equivalents, and equity investments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (included in current assets) as at 31
March 2022 of HK$180.6 million (31 March 2021: HK$172.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The working capital position of the Group remains healthy. As at 31 March
2022, the liquidity ratio was 239% (2021: 175%).

BEENWN D
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175%) °

2022 2021

—E-CF T4

HK$'million HK$'million

BEAT BEBIT

Current assets MENEE 258.6 257.1
Current liabilities mENaE (108.4) (146.5)
Net current assets MEEEFRE 150.2 110.6
Current assets to current liabilities MEBEEERBAGE X 239% 175%

Management is confident that the Group follows a prudent policy in
managing its treasury position, and maintains a high level of liquidity to ensure
that the Group is well placed to take advantage of growth opportunities for
the business.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group recorded financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$53.9 million (31 March 2021:
HK$72.9 million). For a detailed breakdown of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, please refer to note 19 in the consolidated statement
of financial position. For the performance during the year and future
prospects of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, please refer to
the section “Business Review — Venture Capital Business” on page 14 of this
annual report.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Certain of the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have
been pledged to secure the bank facilities granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group employed a total of approximately 137 (31
March 2021: approximately 164) full-time employees. The Group recruits and
promotes individuals based on merit and their development potentials for
the positions offered. Remuneration package is determined with reference to
their performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market. In addition,
the Group operates share option schemes for eligible employees to provide
incentive to the participants for their contribution and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of the Group. Share options and discretionary bonuses
are granted based on the Group’s and individual’s performances.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (“Dr. So"”), aged 72, is the founder, Chairman, Chief
Executive Offer and Executive Director of the Company. Dr. So is the father
of Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng and Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny, all being Executive
Directors of the Company. In the early 1980’s, he founded AV Concept
Limited. Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and
business development to the Company. Dr. So has over 46 years of experience
in the electronics industry. Under his leadership, AV Concept achieved
remarkable results in the sales and marketing of semiconductors contributing
to the appointment by Samsung Electronics as its distributor since 1982.
In 1989, AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. was established to develop its
electronic business in Singapore, South-east Asia countries and subsequently
expanded to the market in the People’s Republic of China through vertical
integration in early 90’s. In April 1996, AV Concept Holdings Limited listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group
continuously received numerous awards, including Samsung Electronics’s “Best
Performance Award” in recognition of the excellent sales and marketing
performance as well as contribution to cultivate strong customers relationship
in the semiconductors market.

Dr. So holds an honorary degree, Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the International American University and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of East Asia (now
known as University of Macau) and he is also a Fellow Member of the British
Institute of Management. Presently, he is the Executive Vice Chairman of
the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association
Limited (“HKEIA") and the Chairman of Education Foundation of HKEIA.
Dr. So is also the Vice President of The Hong Kong Semiconductor Industry
Council. Further, Dr. So is a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and the Honorary Chairman of Advisory Committee (Industry) of
Cooperative Education Centre of City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (“Mr. Kevin So"”), aged 36, is the Chief Operation
Officer and Executive Director of the Company responsible for operation
of the Group and E-GoGo Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. Mr. Kevin So joined the Group in 2011 and was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company in November 2015. Mr. Kevin So
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree (major in Management) from Bentley
College in United States of America in May 2008 and a Master of Business
Administration degree from Bentley University in United States of America in
February 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kevin So had pursued a career
in corporate finance in an international financial institution. Mr. Kevin So is
the son of Dr. So, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
of the Company and the brother of Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny, an Executive
Director of the Company.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (“Mr. Sunny So"), aged 34, is the Executive Director
of the Company, chief executive officer of 830 Lab Limited and Whizoo Media
Limited, indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, which are
principally engaged in internet social media business. Mr. Sunny So joined the
Group in 2011 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in November 2015. Mr. Sunny So obtained a Bachelor of Science degree (major
in Graphic Design) from Northeastern University in United States of America
in January 2011. Mr. Sunny So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and an Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr.
Kevin So, an Executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lui Ming Wah (“Dr. Lui"”), pPhp, sBs, Jp, aged 84, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company Since 1996. Dr. Lui is an established
industrialist serving as the Honorary Chairman of the HKEIA and the Honorary
President of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the
founder chairman of Hong Kong Shandong Business Association, Honorary
President of Federation of HK Shandong Community Organisations Limited.
Adviser Prof. of Shandong University. He was elected to the First, Second and
Third Legislative Council of the HKSAR in 1998, 2000 and 2004 respectively.
Dr. Lui was also member of the tenth and eleventh National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Member of standing
Shandong Provincial Committee of C.P.P.C.C., Advisory board member of
the Hong Kong International Arbitration Center, President of The Hong Kong
Association for the Advancement of Science and Technology and Advisor of
Hong Kong Affairs. He is the managing director of Keystone Electronics Co.,
Limited. Besides, he is currently an independent non-executive director of
L.K. Technology Holdings Limited and Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited
(both companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Dr.
Lui obtained a master’s degree in Applied Science from the University of New
South Wales in Australia and a PhD from the University of Saskatchewan in
Canada. He completed the “Hong Kong Senior Staff Course No. 1, 1984". He
is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman (“Mr. Chapman”), aged 73, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2000. He
was Executive Director of the HKEIA and Managing Director of the HKEIA's
subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong Electronics Promotions Ltd.
from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired. Currently, Mr. Chapman is
an Independent Non-executive Director of Mobicon Group Limited. Prior to
joining the HKEIA, Mr. Chapman worked for 12 years as Economics Editor at
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and for 8 years as Business Editor
in a local English-language newspaper.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund (“Mr. Lai"”), aged 56, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2019. Mr. Lai obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering from Imperial College London in 1987.
He is a qualified accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England and Wales. Mr. Lai has over 30 years of experience in finance and
treasury management. Mr. Lai started his career in 1987 with Ernst & Young
in London where he qualified as a Chartered Accountant. In 1993, Mr. Lai
transferred to Ernst & Young in Hong Kong as a manager in their audit
services and was responsible for various large company audits and IPO’s in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). In 1996, Mr.
Lai joined the Company as the Group Financial Controller. Mr. Lai was the
Chief Financial Officer and the Executive Director of the Company from 2003
to 2006. From 2006 to 2008, Mr. Lai acted as the Chief Executive Officer of
AV BreconRidge Limited and the President of BreconRidge Manufacturing
Solutions (Asia) Limited. In 2008, Mr. Lai started his own consultancy services
and worked on projects for various PRC companies and charities. Mr. Lai
joined Vertex Services Limited (a member of HMTX Industries LLC) as the Chief
Financial Officer since 2011 and continued to serve to present. He has overall
responsibility for the finance, treasury and risk management functions of
Vertex Services Limited and its related companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hang (“Mr. Chan"), aged 45, was appointed as the Company
Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since August 2015.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in accounting and auditing, and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The Directors of the Company present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group consist of the marketing and distribution of electronic
components, the design, development and sale of consumer products and
product sourcing business, venture capital investment, and internet social
media business.

Further discussion and analysis of business review as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group'’s business, can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 17
of this annual report. The above discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the Company, as assisted by the audit committee of the
Company, oversees the Group's internal control and risk management system,
and conducts periodic reviews of such system to ensure good corporate
governance practice. The supervision process and outcome of the latest review
is set out in more detail in the section headed “Internal Control” in corporate
governance report in this annual report. The following is a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group. The management of the
Company meets periodically to discuss these risks, and where appropriate,
will monitor the situation closely and adopt any necessary risk mitigation
measures.

Industry risk

The sale and distribution of electronic components and design, development
and sales of consumer product and product sourcing business are sensitive
to technology change. The industry is also subject to rapidly changing
market trends and intense competition amongst different players. This may
materially and adversely affect the Group's business performance. To maintain
competitiveness, the management of the Company will meet regularly to
update the technology change and the industry environment.

Economy risk

The performance of the Group is affected by the overall economy growth,
especially in the electronic components market. If the economy slows down,
it is highly likely that the demand for electronic components may be reduced.
Any continued economic slowdown or recession may result in a decrease in
sales, and may lead to a material adverse effect on the Group’s business and
results of operations.

Directors’ Report
EEERE

ARREEERREHE T -__F=A=+—HL
FREZESFERENEEXREUBHRE -

FERBREEORE
AARZEBEBRREER - AEBI2UEET
T ZTSHEERDHE HEREMRZIRET %R
HENREMRBES - AIRREXBAR BT
RIRREHRTFS

BRRARGIM RSPTAEB R XS DR 2 — 5
RO BRASEMEE 2 X 2EE LI EER
Eamill - ARASKERS 2 AR RERER - 57
RAFRECAEZFNTEZERBEREEE TR R
DITHBIE - Lilli B A EESRE &7

FERBRTHBREE
ARREEEBEARRBEZZEEHY TEEAKE
ZARMEEREREERSE - WERRIBHEGE
BRETREGXERES - BERFRSEIHZR
AERNE - PHBEHRAFREEE RSN
B8 o AEEMEY T 2AM R TABEE
AT - ARREREEH M - U %ERE
% WHRNBERREERER - REEMAFHE
R o

TR
BF M ZHEERD HARBBEEMZRA - F#
RHEAREMRBEHHPEEREHE - XA

ZT5BEREEH  REMBRIHN  NSHEAE
B2 XBRABREATHNEE - RREBHFN K
ARREREHEHEHE  ARMMREFERITER

5% o

R

REFBZRAXBBEEER  LEEETFIMMS
FE - WISENE  MEFILHRTREE AR o
WEERETBLTR - HAIREEUHERRD I
AREH AR B X REERBERERTMEE -

Annual Report 2022 3k AV Concept Holdings Limited 23



Directors’ Report
EEEWE

Financial risk

Credit risk

To minimise credit risk, the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure
there is follow-up action to recover overdue debts. The Group also reviews
the recoverable amount of trade receivables by the simplified approach for
impairment at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Board therefore
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents which
it deems adequate to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of cash flow fluctuations.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to risk of changes in market interest rates related
primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. It does not currently has any interest rate hedging policy, but
closely monitors its exposure to interest rate risk due to changes in market
rates and will consider hedging changes should the need arise.

Market price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The management of the Company monitors the changes
of securities prices and may change the investment portfolio held if needed.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it engages. The Group strives to minimise its
impact on the environment by reducing its use of electricity and water and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group has
complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and employment.

Compliance with the laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. During the year under review, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group during
the year under review.

24 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 3k

Bug 3e0
IFEER
RTRBEERR  AKBEREESFERF  BREN

BRETBWEBHRER - AEETRESRENEE
R lERER OB E SRR TRE S8
ERA TR ESERRRERSE - Hitt - EF
GRE AEEZEERBRDRARME -

HBETRR
AEFERBERERRGER @ WHHEABRASE
ERARUENELERS  REHNERSRERD
B IKF o

IR

762 6 (R T 355 ) R S B 7y D e 2 [ B = R AR R 4R
FBFIRG B M BIRITEKERE - AKE B AT &
EMFREPEE - EZ B BERTSNREEHM
EiRZMERR  YHREFTERE LN ARHEE
) o

B

REB AR FRBUKT R BRI EFEEZ 2B MR
BABLSAHEETRZER - AARIERERSRE
HERE  WAIEN AT ERREMFREAS -

REBRRERE
RERBANNEEEFERERMEE 2 RATH R
o AR EISDEBEK K A E RS 1R A
ARBREMIE - BTEREHBENTE - A%
BEETHEEMRERE  BERES - TESBHM
R R AR 2 AR TI ARG -

BT AP KRB
AEBFRAETEERECEZMURTNETERE
PIRBOIZ R - MEFEEAN  AEE-BEREKRT
EETHAEERERELHEEATE ZHEN R
MO - MBEEER  BMEXLEAKEREERATE
SPE AR ARG Z B



Relationship with employees, clients, suppliers and other
stakeholders

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on the
support from its key stakeholders, including employees, clients, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. During the year under review, there
were no material and significant disputes between the Group and its key
stakeholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 83 to 195 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04
(2021: HK$0.03) per share for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on Friday, 2 September 2022, will be payable on Monday,
26 September 2022 to shareholders whose names appear on the registrar
of members of the Company on Friday, 9 September 2022. Based on
908,663,302 shares in issue as of the date of this report, the total dividend
will amount to approximately HK$36.3 million.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled on Friday, 2
September 2022. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 30 August 2022 to Friday, 2 September 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers
of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (and with
effect from 15 August 2022 onwards, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong), for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 29 August 2022.

In order to determine the list of shareholders who are entitled to receive the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company’s
register of members will be closed from Thursday, 8 September 2022 to
Friday, 9 September 2022, both days inclusive. Shareholders are reminded
that in order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (and with effect from
15 August 2022 onwards, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong) for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 7
September 2022.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options are set out in notes
29 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (the “Avrticles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$467,317,000 (2021: HK$468,597,000).
The share premium of the Company is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the shareholders provided that immediately following the
distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below.
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RESULTS 4
Year ended 31 March
HZ=A=1—-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C-F —TZ—F —TZEF —T-NEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAEL T T FET
REVENUE hE 1,042,449 1,241,160 1,337,326 1,698,796 1,662,878
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBIATRF 236,034 276,718 92,462 55,607 163,690
Income tax FTiSH (5,013) (7,192) (1,711) (414) (801)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 231,021 269,526 90,751 55,193 162,889
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company ARBEBA 231,021 269,788 93,443 57,278 163,267
Non-controlling interests MRS - (262) (2,692) (2,085) (378)
231,021 269,526 90,751 55,193 162,889
Assets and liabilities EEREE
As at 31 March
R=ZBA=+-B
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-CF B S —E-FF —E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T FET FET FET
TOTAL ASSETS BEMGE 1,745,464 1,586,615 1,393,820 1,317,018 1,405,799
TOTAL LIABILITIES i=litat (123,426) (161,606) (212,823) (201,425) (319,073)
1,622,038 1,425,009 1,180,997 1,115,593 1,086,726
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer)

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, PhD, SBS, JP

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman

Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah, PhD, SBS, JP,
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman, and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund, confirming
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group as at the date
of this annual report are set out on pages 18 to 21 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, and approved by the Board of Directors (the “Board”), as
authorised by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to their skills, knowledge and involvement in the Company’s
affairs. No Directors are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

We offer competitive remuneration package, including medical and
retirement benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from basic salary, Executive
Directors and employees are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking
into account factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and
individual’s performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the eligible employees, including
the Directors, the Company and the subsidiaries have adopted share option
schemes. The schemes enable the eligible persons to obtain an ownership
interest in the Company and the subsidiaries and thus will motivate them to
optimise their continuing contributions to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which any of the Company’s
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
the Listing Rules, are as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company and associated
corporation
(a) Interests in shares of the Company
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(a) RAERARGzES

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Nature of interest shares of the interest in the
Name of Director and chief executive  and capacity Company issued shares
BRITROER
EERBSTHRABHR ERtER G ARAREBEREE BHRBED
Dr. So Corporate interest 507,275,468 61.56%
BRiEL NGl
Beneficial owner 52,058,400
E=BAA (Note)
(M5

Note: These shares include (i) 410,507,602 shares of the Company held by B.K.S.
Company Limited (“BKS"); (ii) 96,767,866 shares of the Company held by Jade
Concept Limited (“Jade Concept”); and (iii) 52,058,400 shares of the Company
held by Dr. So as beneficial owner. Dr. So is deemed to be interested in
507,275,468 shares of the Company by virtue of his interests in BKS and Jade
Concept, the particulars are more fully described in the section headed “Interests
of Substantial Shareholders” below.

Mist © SRR B4E() HB.K.S. Company Limited
(TBKS)) #482410,507,602 AR QAR  (ii)
f3Jade Concept Limited([Jade Concept)) #H 2
96,767,866 AR RIS ¢ K(iNB#MEL (HEAE
B AN) B 252,058,400 AR B G o BRI
BrH T 7EBKS MJade Conceptz #25 @ RIER AR
507,275,4680% NN R I h R s - BRARHS
R EERE 2 ez ] — & —afil -
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(b)

Interests in underlying shares of associated corporation of the
Company

(b) RAEQTEBCEEEBR G 2 &

Approximate

Number of percentage of

ordinary shares of interest in

Name of Director Nature of interest Name of associated associated

and chief executive and capacity associated corporations corporations corporations

HEEE MEE B R

EERESTRABESR ERtER 7 HECEE AR ZEREE BOE D

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny Beneficial owner 830 Lab Limited (“830 Lab") 220,000 (Note) 30.98%
("Mr. Sunny So”) EnBEEA (Fft3E)

mERRE

Note: These underlying shares in 830 Lab, a subsidiary of the Company, represent
interest in the share options granted to Mr. Sunny So pursuant to the share
option scheme adopted by 830 Lab.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company and
a subsidiary of the Company are separately disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had registered any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and in the share option schemes
disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2022, the following substantial shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more
in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the shares of the Company RAEARRGZER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of shareholder Nature of capacity shares held issued shares
ERITROER
BRER S SHE FEROEE BABEDE
BKS Beneficial owner 410,507,602 (Note 1) 45.18%
E=BEAA (BREED)
Jade Concept Beneficial owner 96,767,866 (Note 2) 10.65%
E=BEAA (f5E2)
Madam Yeung Kit Ling (“Madam Yeung"”) Interest of spouse 559,333,868 (Note 3) 61.56%
2R+ (15 t]) BB 2 e (BF5E3)
Notes: PRRE -
1. BKS is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to be 1. BKSEHEIE T EREA - RIEFF KRB K - #HIF L

interested in 410,507,602 shares of the Company held by BKS.

2. Jade Concept is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to
be interested in 96,767,866 shares of the Company held by Jade Concept.

3. As Madam Yeung is the spouse of Dr. So, by virtue of the SFO, she is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by BKS and Jade Concept in which Dr. So
has interest, and 52,058,400 shares held by Dr. So as beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Company has not been
notified by any person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out above) having interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be notified to the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or which are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements of the
Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Company operate share option
schemes (the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operation. Further details of the Schemes are disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions amounting to
HK$320,000 (2021: HK$258,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 51% of the Group'’s total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to approximately
15%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year accounted
for approximately 98% of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from
the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 92%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) were considered to have an interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than those businesses of which the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or
the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares were held by the public during the year ended 31 March 2022
and as at the date of this report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of one year, and each of the independent non-executive
directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of one year.
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None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with any member of the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existing during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year under review and as at the date of this report, an indemnity
provision was in force. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 35 to 45 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of financial assistance to, and
(where applicable) guarantee given for the loan facilities granted to, affiliated
companies of the Company, exceeds 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07 (1) of the Listing Rules. In compliance with the requirement
of Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial
position of the affiliated companies (with attributable interest of the Group in
the affiliated companies) as at the latest applicable date is set out below:
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Group's

Combined statement attributable

of financial position interest

EOBIEMRIR R AEBELER

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FAT

Non-current assets EREEE 158,903 119,177
Current assets MEEE 8,427,533 6,320,650
Current liabilities mEAE (6,965,847) (5,224,385)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,480) (1,110)
1,619,109 1,214,332

Share capital A&7 180,000 135,000
Reserves @ 1,439,109 1,079,332
1,619,109 1,214,332
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2022
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Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

The Group is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
and enhance its transparency and corporate value. The Group believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework between the Board and the
shareholders so as to enhancing shareholders’ interest and value as a whole.
The Board continually reviews and improves its corporate governance practices
to ensure the Company keeps abreast of the expectation of shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”).

The purpose of this report is to provide Shareholders with information on
the major principles and corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has applied the
major principles and complied with the code provisions, except for the code
provision C.2.1, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Corporate Governance Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the
Company's corporate governance practices will be described in the following
sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board should assure responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company and its subsidiaries affairs.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the formulation of the
Group's business objectives and strategies. Matters reserved for the Board
are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finance and risk
management. The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group directed by leadership of the Executive Directors. To
this end, the senior management has to implement, manage and monitor
the business plans, internal controls and corporate governance practices
developed by the Board.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.

As at 31 March 2022, the Board comprised three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs
to be independent. Having the INEDs in the Board ensure that independent
judgment is exercised and that a proper balance of power is maintained
for full and effective control of the Group and its executive management.
The Directors believe that the existing Board composition reflects the
Company's respect for high standards of business conduct commonly
adopted by multinational enterprises. The INEDs perform an important role in
safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
(which include an assessment of the skills, knowledge and experience of the
existing Directors and suitable candidates) and for formulating procedures for
appointment of its own members and for nominating them for election by
the Shareholders on the first appointment and thereafter at regular intervals
through the retirement by rotation process pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for specific term and has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year, which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving
the other not less than one month’s notice in writing. All the Directors
are subjected to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Dr. So and Mr. Chapman will retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting. They are being eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ") of the
Company are held by Dr. So.

Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and business
development to the Company. Dr. So is the founder of the Group and has
over 46 years of experience in the electronic industry.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and the
CEO in the same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the Board
considers that the deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In addition, under
the supervision of the Board which is comprised of three Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, the Board is appropriately
structured with balance of power to provide sufficient checks to protect the
interests of the Group and its shareholders.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing the
functioning of the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Chairman determines
that the Board is provided with direction and sufficient consultation for the
Directors in effectively discharging their responsibilities for different aspects of
the business.

The CEO, supported by senior management, are responsible for implementation
of corporate goals, business strategies and policies resolved by the Board from
time to time. The CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of
the Group’s operations and development.

Save as Dr. So, the Chairman and the CEQ, is the father of Mr. Kevin So, the

Chief Operation Officer, and Mr. Sunny So, there is no relationship among
members of the Board.
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Board Meetings

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at about quarterly interval. The
senior management of the Group from time to time reports to the Directors
information on the activities and development of the Group’s business. In
addition, the Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

The attendance record of regular four board meetings held during the year is
set out below:
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Attendance/ gabE

Name of Directors Number of meetings EZHH BITRY
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman and BEHiELT

Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 (FEFHITEABEE) 4/4
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer) 4/4  EBREIEST A (BERE) 4/4
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny 4/4  EREBASEAE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BT TEE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp 4/4  BEPRAZEIE L o phD - sBS ATt 4/4
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 4/4  Charles Edward Chapman?t 4 4/4
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 4/4  FRIBFEE 4/4
Board Committees EEZES

As at the date of the report, there were four Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee in operation and each one of
them was established with specific terms of references to assist the Board
discharging its responsibilities and maintaining proper internal controls and to
promote good corporate governance as a whole.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee comprises of three Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Lai Yat Hung
Edmund and the other members include, Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sgs, Jp and
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include (i) to discuss with the
external auditor before the audit commence, the nature and scope of the
audit and confirm their independence and objectivity; (ii) to review the
Group's financial information before submission to the Board; (iii) to review
the Group’s financial reporting system and the effectiveness of the audit
process with internal control procedure; (iv) to review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control system and
internal audit function; and (v) to review external auditor’s management letter
and the relationship with the Group.

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year to review the interim results and the
final results of the Company.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the interim results for
the six months ended 30 September 2021. The Audit Committee had also
reviewed and discussed with the management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings held during the year
is set out below.
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Attendance/ BEHE
Name of Audit Committee Members Number of meetings BREEEHEHSA HITIRE
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund (Chairman) RIER A (L/E)
(appointed as Chairman on 6 August 2021) 2/2 (RZFZ—FNANHAEZTBERE) 212
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp EBREEE T 0 phD - SBS - AT 4L
(ceased to be Chairman on 6 August 2021) 2/2 (RZFEZ—FNANHTBIETERE) 212
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 2/2  Charles Edward Chapman’t4& 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee comprises of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp, and the other members include Mr.
Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund. One Remuneration
Committee meeting was held during the year to consider the salary
adjustment of the Directors and all members had attended the meeting.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management and reviewing
the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability as
well as remuneration benchmarks in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. No Director or any of his associates shall be involved in deciding
his own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee normally meets once a
year and at other times as required.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year is set out below.
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Attendance/ BEHE

Name of Remuneration Committee Members Number of meetings FHMZEEEHEHSA BITIRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp B EAFES 1 » pho - SBS - AFL

(Chairman) 11 (F/%) 11

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman?%t 4 171

Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 171 BRBEAE 1”1

Nomination Committee

As at 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee comprises of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is chaired
by Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and the other members include Dr. Lui Ming
Wah, php, sBs, Jp, and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the CEO.
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The Nomination Committee meeting held at least once a year and additional IREZZESC@ZELBFEITALH  TRETERE
meeting may be held as required. During the year, the Nomination Committee ﬁiﬁ = i?ﬂ ?E%i/\ SEBIT-REHE RNg
held a meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the A T%%AZ A - ABURARRK ©
Board.
The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting held during the ~ FRBITZIRZEZ B @& H 2 HELEEHINNT
year is set out below:
Attendance/ BREHE

Name of Nomination Committee Members Number of meetings REAZESEREHR BITRE
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman (Chairman) Charles Edward Chapman?t 4 (£/2)

(appointed as Chairman on 6 August 2021) 11 R=ZFZ—FNANAEZERBEE) 11
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp Eﬁﬁﬁiﬁi PhD * SBS + ATt

(ceased to be Chairman on 6 August 2021) 11 (R=F=—F \ANATBIETEE) 11
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 11 *@/l,%?ii 11
Board Diversity Policy ESEL TR

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy and the Company believes
that the implementation of this policy will help improve the functioning of
the Board and its corporate governance. Diversity of board members can be
achieved by considering various factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skill, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee considers
whether the proposed Director satisfies the diversity of Directors or not while
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become a member of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will regularly review the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives.

As at the date of the report, the Board consists of 6 directors with different
professional backgrounds. The Nomination Committee believes that the
existing Board provides the required professional skills, experience and
guidance for the Company’s operations and management in terms of the
Company’s relevant business operations. The Nomination Committee will
continue to review the Board diversity policy from time to time to ensure its
effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Committee

As at 31 March 2022, the Corporate Governance Committee comprises
of three Independent Non-executive Directors. The Corporate Governance
Committee is chaired by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, Jp, and the other members
included Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund.

The Corporate Governance Committee is primarily responsible for developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and making recommendations to the Board and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
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The Corporate Governance Committee meeting held at least once a year.
During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee held a meeting and
reviewed the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

The attendance record of the Corporate Governance Committee meeting held
during the year is set out below:

Name of Corporate Governance Committee
Members

Attendance/
Number of meetings

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, php, sBs, JP

(Chairman) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 171
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 171

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board reviews the Group’s risk management and internal control
system from time to time and will take any necessary and appropriate action
to maintain an adequate risk management and internal control system
to safeguard Shareholders’ interests. An internal audit function which is
internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent establishment
is in charge for overall review on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system and will be discussed annually with the Audit
Committee.

During the financial year under review, the internal audit function had
arranged to conduct reviews over the effectiveness of the Group'’s risk
management and internal control system to provide reasonable assurance
on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving the established
corporate objectives, safeguarding Group'’s assets, providing reliable financial
reporting, and complying with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff for the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Both the Audit
Committee and the Board were satisfied that the risk management and
internal control system of the Group has been functioned and adequately and
no material internal control aspects of any significant problems were noted.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.
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EERRE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent auditor during
the year, is set out as follows:

T e

FR BN EAAR BB AR EE 2 Bl & 55
T

Services rendered FriR AR % Fee paid/payable
Bt ENER
HK$'000
FHTT
Audit of financial statements EZE SRR 2,150

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

With the assistance of the Finance Department which is under the supervision
of the Chief Financial Officer, the Directors ensure the preparation and
publication of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in a timely
manner in accordance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and
accounting standards. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

A statement by the Company’s auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to 82 of this report.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company established a dedicated investor relations section in order
to provide timely information to the investors as well as Shareholders and
institutional investors. The Company also conducts a meeting with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time and to maintain updated information
opened to the public regarding recent development of the Company. Relevant
information of investor relations is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com).

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company recognises the rights of Shareholders and their opinions are
valuable to the Company. The Shareholders are encouraged to participate
in general meetings or to appoint proxies or corporate representatives to
attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. The Shareholders are encouraged to raise their enquiries
on the operations, corporate governance, corporate strategy and further
development of the Company during the meeting by way of shareholders’
rights. The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to ensure
that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The Board members, appropriate
senior executives and external auditor will attend annual general meetings to
answer Shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting
In accordance with Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company.

Putting forward proposals by Shareholders at general
meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for Shareholders to propose
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to propose
relevant resolutions may request the Company to convene a general meeting
in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting forward enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of the Company’s
information, to the extent such information can be made available to the
public. Shareholders may at any time make enquiry in respect of the Company
in writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the
numbers and email address provided on the Company’s website.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established Shareholders Communication Policy in providing
a communication platform to the Shareholders of the Company with
information about the Company and enabling them to engage actively with
the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders shall be
ensured at all times. Any question regarding this policy shall be directed to the
company secretary of the Company or the Board of Directors of the Company.
Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meeting shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation and all corporate communication
will be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English
and Chinese version to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding, including
but not limited to interim reports, annual reports, results announcements,
notice of general meeting, circulars, and associated explanatory documents,
other announcements and monthly return on movements in the
Company'’s securities for each month and next day disclosure returns in
relation to the Company, which are available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

With the diverse and globalised business development, environmental, social
and governance (the “ESG") is increasingly important to one’s sustainable
development. The Group recognises the importance of integrating ESG
into business operations and strategic management. To monitor its ESG
performance and management, the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “Report”) is one of the tools to review and disclose its
performance for comprehensive governance.

All'in one mind, the Group believes that creating sustainable business
operations helps achieve a long-lasting and stable development.

Reporting Boundary

The Report covers the Group’s main businesses, including semiconductor
distribution, consumer product and product sourcing business, venture capital
and internet social media business, in Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. The Group’s
policies, management approaches and key performance indicators (“KPIs")
are included in the Report whilst environmental data is further restricted to
the operations in Hong Kong office and warehouse.

Strive for the best, the Group will review the coverage and performance of
the Report and extend the scope of disclosures when applicable.

Reporting Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in the
Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Four principles, including materiality,
consistency, balance and quantitative, have formed the backbone of the
Report.

Reporting Principles The Group’s Application
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Materiality The Group communicates with different stakeholders to understand their expectations and needs
to identify the material issues.

221 REEFBETERFOEER  UBEBROMANPHENTE - UBRIEEHE -

Consistency

Unless otherwise specified, the Group has adopted the same methodologies.

—H MIEREHA  AEBERB —BWE -

Balance The Report is prepared in a fair and impartial manner that discloses both positive and negative
impacts of or towards its operations.

T RBEARNTFRAENFT RS - #HETHEENEEMNEETE -

Quantitative When feasible, the Group quantifies its performance to enhance the management and disclosure.

g1t REBEATHIER T 2(CHRRBAIR ERAMKREE -

For further information on the Group’s corporate governance practices, please
refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this annual report.
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RIB - B RERRS

Opinion and Feedback

In order to have a continual improvement, the Group values opinion and
feedback from both internal and external parties. If you have any comments
or inquiries on the Report or other ESG matters, please do not hesitate to
contact us by emailing to ir.dept@avconcept.com.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

To obtain comprehensive management for sustainable development, the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for overseeing the overall
ESG performance and determining the policies and strategic decisions.
It is supported by the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”) in monitoring the
implementation of policies and targets. With the establishment of the
Taskforce, which is composed of core members from different departments,
and participation of departments and divisions, the Group is carrying out an
efficient ESG management process.

ESG Taskforce

BE - dEk
ERTLE)NAE

e Establish sustainable
strategies direction
T P FHE S 75 )

e |dentify the ESG risks
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» Allocate resources
to support the
impl tati f N .
mplementation o WER S AE B E TR AN RS

policies and targets

ﬁﬁaﬁjﬁ%i%ﬁ% * Report to the Board regularly

B R ENE THNEEeRE

the Report

o

¢ Evaluate the effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms

e Examine and evaluate the Group's performances in different aspects

e Collect relevant information and data for the preparation of
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Departments
and divisions
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e Implement ESG
strategies and

measures
BEHERE  HEegkE
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e Support the
establishment of
policies and measures
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To ensure the effectiveness and implementation of management approach,
the Taskforce undertakes regular check in relation to its sustainability
operations. If there is unusual issue discovered, the Taskforce will consolidate
information and communicate with relevant departments and divisions to get
their feedback. At the same time, the Taskforce will then report to the Board
for the consideration of ESG risks and opportunities incurred and decision
making for the ESG risk management.

Striving for the best, the Group will review the governance structure regularly

and establish sustainability related strategy, targets and other issues under the
oversight of the Board, when appropriate.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Continual communication with both internal and external stakeholders helps
solid development of the Group's sustainability operations in the future. The
Group strives to understand the expectations and needs of stakeholders, and
hence integrate their feedbacks into considerations of sustainability strategies
and management approaches. With the help of these stakeholders, the
Group is stepping towards effective governance and enhancing the business
operations.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has communicated with
both internal and external stakeholders via various communication channels.

RIR - B RERRE
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Stakeholders Group Engagement Channels
B EE R SHEE
Employees Appraisals
(=5 REF3
Trainings
b=
Internal memorandum
MED 8
Investors Financial reports
wEE MBS
Annual general meetings
RFAFARE
Corporate website
NGIEE
Direct communication
BEEA
Customers Direct communication
BF BB
Emails
kil
Complaint hotlines
R ER
Suppliers & business partners Business meetings
BRI REH ES
Government & other regulatory authorities Statutory filings and notification
R E A B B TEEFREAEA
Regulatory or voluntary disclosures
BB B AR
Community Community activities
Fa Fad"NE D)
Donations
B
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RIB - B RERRS

Materiality Assessment

EEHRTMA

In the consideration of stakeholders’ feedbacks, business nature and ZANEEEZEEZNENRE « EHUEMELEEN
operational performance, the Group has determined the material issues with &R T« HFE 7RE - £ & REAREIE| i HmE

regard to the aspects stated in the ESG Reporting Guide.

MEEEH -

Aspects Material issues

il EEEH

Emissions Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions
PER) AER(DRERE]) BN

Use of resources

BREM

Environment and natural resources
RERBABIR

Employment

ElE

Health and safety
ERETE

Development and training
Bl RS

Labour standard
BT

Supply chain management
HpEEEIR
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Waste management
BRI E IR

Energy management
BEREE
Water management
FAKERE

Air quality
=REE

Recruitment and promotion

BEREA

Compensation and dismissal

HroN L R e

Benefits and welfares

SFVSEEv

Working hours and rest periods

TERFE AR ER

Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
Ztle - FERENRIER

Safety measures

ZRIE

Employee health management
BTREEERE

Development and training
R LA

Prevention of child and forced labour
PFIEET RagH|4 T

Supply chain management
HrEgen
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RIR - B RERRE

Aspects Material issues
gl BEEEH
Product responsibility o Customer privacy protection
EmAE B REALRE
o Quiality management
gEEl
o Intellectual property (“IP") rights
FEERE ([ ERED
J Protection of privacy
BBALIRE
Anti-corruption ° Internal control
k&S BB I
Community investment o Community participation
HE®RE e

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

Growing evidence has pointed out the severe impacts of climate change
as a result of the rapid global development. The Group understands the
importance of protecting the valuable environment with commitment to
balance its business development and environmental conservation. It strives
to minimise its environmental impacts through integrating environmentally
friendly practices into daily operation and management approaches. With the
stringent management and compliance with relevant regulatory requirements,
including the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water Pollution Control
Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance and relevant
laws and regulations, the Group did not aware of any violation with regard to
environmental laws and ordinance during the year ended 31 March 2022.

For continuous improvement, the Group will start the discussion and
formulation of environmental targets in relation to carbon and energy
reduction, water conservation and waste minimisation in the future. At the
same time, the Group will establish environmental policies in the future, when
appropriate, for comprehensive management.

BRRERE

BRBEZHEERR  RIRBCHNBREFERANE
BRREER - ARERAREEEREINERMN - X
B PEEBEREARERE - BEKRREERA
BRELSNEENE  BOKEHRENFERER
K - REBEBERILE T (ERGTRE BRG] -
CRBREBIED) - CBEMEREGDD - CRZFEHIG
B RAERERERSHBERER HE-_FT_—
FZA=T—BLEE AEERFRETMERIRER
SERBAGD] o

RFENE - AKBIRKASFLE & w0 B E A B
ERgE - EKMBABEMIRIER R - A - AKERK

RRBE °
FERMBER G EIRIRECE - BITRA B -

Annual Report 2022 3k AV Concept Holdings Limited 51



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS REY
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Carbon Emissions

The Group recognises its environmental impacts from the carbon and air
pollutants emissions. To reduce the corresponding environmental impacts,
various reduction measures have been adopted when complying with the
Air Pollution Control Ordinance and other relevant laws and regulations. At

BB
AEEERBRNZERTAMPFHEBEOTE -

e e Rk - AEEE

the same time, the Group advocates environmentally friendly operations by &
encouraging the involvement of employees.

Employees’ behaviours
BTTH

Equipment enhancement

REHRE

52

Put up energy saving reminder labels next to switchers
and in prominent locations;

FERBEMERERBETRES R -

Switch off idling devices;

FARNERE

Encourage adjusting or switching off air-conditioners with
regard to the temperature and situation in office; and

HERBERAEHREMITABRAEAER &

Encourage the use of online or teleconference.

SR RPN EREE
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Progressively replace light bulbs with light-emitting diodes
(LED);
ZAE R _IRE B(LED) BV R

Install e nergy efficient lightings and cooling systems;
LTHIRERAT R AR A

Divide office area into different light zones and deploy
natural light as much as possible;

B AEHER D A TRRPARMBEERBAL

Set the temperature of air-conditioners no under 25
degrees Celsius; and

REAMORE R T EMER25T » &

Replace old and highly polluting vehicles with more
environmentally friendly and higher emission standards
models.
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the total GHG emissions reached
80.03 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent with an intensity of 0.58 tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent/employee. Despite the increasing demand for
company owned vehicles, both emissions from purchased electricity and other
indirect emissions dropped by 49.52% and 13.85% respectively.

RIR - B RERRE

BE-_Z-_—_F=-A=+—HILtFE BEREAH
MEA80.03M A tixE & - MERER0.58M =
fILIEEEE - REUAEEMN BT KIS
hn o BYNBE AT EAB RS PERE D BT T
49.52%7113.85% ©

Year ended Year ended

GHG Emissions Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

BE HE

—EC-CH& T4

=A=+-8H =A=+—H

BERBHNE By LFEE IFEFE

Scope 1 Direct GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 42.04 26.21
HE-ERREREVNE W —RtiE S

Scope 2 Indirect GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 30.09 59.61
HE_FEBRARERENE W —RtiE S

Scope 3 Other indirect GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 7.90 9.17
HE=HMEERERBHERE WE—RtiE 2

Total GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 80.03 94.99
RERBEBINE WE—EACIRE S

GHG emissions intensity tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/ 0.58 0.58

BERBHINERE

employee
iyt =1

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the air pollutants emissions increased
significantly due to the increasing consumption of fuels for the use of
company-owned vehicles. The emissions of sulphur oxides, nitrogen oxides
and particulate matters, against the same period were 0.23 kg, 9.91 kg and

0.73 kg respectively.

HEZZ-—_F=A=-+—HLFE BARERALE
B EEAREDEEEE N SRSEMENERE
Ehn - RERALY - R/ MFBER I FEE 5 B
£0.23F 5% « 9.91F 7% M0.73F % °

Year ended Year ended

Air Pollutants Emissions Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

BZE qHE

g5 T4

=A=+-H —A=+—H

=R B LLEFEE IEFE

Sulphur oxides kg 0.23 0.14
Ha by =

Nitrogen oxides kg 9.91 4.53
AREH Fr

Particulate matters kg 0.73 0.33
TR T
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RIB - B RERRS

Waste Generation

With the increasing concerns on waste generation and handling, the
Group is committed to minimising its waste generation and corresponding
environmental impacts. On the basis of the Waste Disposal Ordinance and
other significant regulatory requirements, the Group has implemented a
series of measures to reduce the waste generated and lengthen the product
cycle with the purpose of avoiding wastage. Meanwhile, an administrative
employee is appointed on facilitating the recycling procedures as well as
management and transportation of non-recyclable products.

Supporting systems

BEYELE

BEEUEEDEEREENASET  NEERIR
VEYMEERBENRETE - RIE(EVERESIEH)
MEMBAREERTE  NEBFIR— RIS HER D RE
SEYEL EREMBE  BERE - To7
—HITRA B AERERBIEN A R EKE SRR
EIBFEE o

Environmental awareness

BERS RRER
o Adopt separation method; ° Put up waste reduction and recycling signage and notice in
KRS ERE prominent locations;
PRI AEERE @ REEBREMBRO R RIRFE R
o Purchase cartridges, stationery and paper in bulk or based
on necessity; ° Encourage bringing lunchboxes or reusable food container

HESREFLFTBRN S - CEMAK

for takeaway; and

SEETTERXEEEARMTFIIE &

o Prioritise the purchase and use of reusable and refillable
products; .

BEBENER R EEERMA BRANER |

° Use electronic documents for internal communication;

EREFCRETRENER

o Replace sing-use tableware with reusable products;
RAEREAERRE —RIEEA

o Provide recycling bins; and
PRtEWAE ¢ R

o Prioritise the purchase of eco-friendly products, such
as paper products with Forest Stewardship Council
certification.
BEBERRER
Hm e

Although there is not any hazardous waste generated in the operation, the
Group understands there may be hazardous waste, such as electronic waste,
generated in the future. Meanwhile, corresponding guideline has been
established for proper handling and reducing its environmental impacts. Also,
as stipulated in the relevant laws and regulations, the Group will hire qualified
chemical waste collector or contact responsible parties to collect and handle
waste if generated.
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group consumed a total of 1.62
tonnes of paper, for the use of office paper and printing publication, with a
reduction of 19.80% compared to last year’s consumption. The corresponding
intensity is 0.012 tonnes/employee. During the same period, the Group did
not generate any hazardous waste. If there is hazardous waste produced, it
will be handled in accordance with relevant mechanisms or measures.

RIR - B RERRE

HE_Z-_—_FZA=+—HIFE  AEEHEE
1.62MEM A EAMBRANKR - BREE=S = —
FZAZT—BIFE L2 TKT719.80% ° ME
ZER0.0120, B8 - AFE @ AW AEAT
MEEEREY - MRELAEEREY  SRBHBK
RIS IR MERIE ©

Year ended Year ended

Non-hazardous Waste Generation Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

BZE HZE

—E-CF T4

=A=+-H =A=+—H

BEBREYES By LLEFEE IEFE

Office paper consumption tonnes 1.25 1.72
PR EMREFE A

Printing publication consumption tonnes 0.37 0.30
Nl Wi g

Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 1.62 2.02
BmEREEDES A

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/employee 0.012 0.012

BEEENEE mEEE

Energy Consumption

While heavily depending on the energy, the Group recognises the
environmental impacts of its operation from the use of energy. To minimise
the environmental impacts and improve the energy efficiency, the Group has
implemented a series of measures which apply to all employees to maximise
the outcomes. For energy-related measures, please refer to the “Carbon
Emissions” section.

BETFUR#E

E+oRBEERNRAR - NREESHIEELNRR
HIREREIRBEEMTE - REERIURENTE
TIRSEREE  AREEEE—RIERRHMAE
THHEHE  ARAREMIRERR - BRELRIERE
B - BB IR — & -
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RIB - B RERRS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, energy consumption totaled 230,330
kWh with an intensity of 1,681.24 kWh/employee. Compared to last year,
there is a 31.85% increase in the total energy consumption due to the
growing demand for company-owned vehicles with personal health and
safety concerns.

BHE-_Z-_—_FZA=+—HIEFE  ®REREL
E£/230,330T BB - MAREK1,681.24T FLE
EE - BEAFHL  AREEARENLZZME -
AEEEWHWFERLTEILN - e EREEEMNT
31.85% °

Year ended Year ended

Energy Consumption Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

BZE HE

—EC-CH® —E- 4

=A=+—H —A=+—H

RERHFEE B ILEE IEFE

Petrol kWh 153,181 90,736
i T

Purchased electricity kWh 77,149 83,951
SNEE TR

Total energy consumption kWh 230,330 174,687
BEREERES TR

Energy consumption intensity kWh/employee 1,681.24 1,065.16

IR ERERE TRE &S

Water Usage

In spite of the Group is not facing any issues in sourcing water, it strives to
conserve the scarce water resources in daily operation through complying
with relevant regulatory requirements. While water is mainly consumed for
cleaning and sanitation of workplace, the Group has imposed measures to
enhance the water efficiency in line with monitoring approaches.

Education

BE

Promotion

N i3

Controlling

BN

2 ERIKRETR

FEKE

BEAEBW KRB ITMARKEBUKRNERE - (BEH$E
ERZ N BAETHEES ZIREAHNBRIKE
R KEBEREEFEARITESHMNERMEENR
B AEEEREER S ARIUE RS AKEE -

¢ Advocate the virtue and concept of
water conservation

BB MK BRI AIER

e Put up water saving notice in prominent
locations

R AEERERMEKER

e Install water saving devices
Emas S EiKEE

e Conduct regular maintenance and repair

of water tap,water pipelines and water

storage

TEHREMEEKEER - BKEEN

K
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group consumed a total of
217.31 cubic metres of water resources. Compared to last year, there is a

RIR - B RERRE

HE-_ZT-_F=ZA=+—HIEFE  AEBEBFEKX
BA21731 7K - BERERIBHEER T ERIIE

15.67% decrease in consumption as a result of implementing work-from- ~ E)iE MR AEEE TERBFRD - HKEEEFIE
home measures during the outbreaks and decreased in total number of L P& T15.67% °
employees for the Group.
Year ended Year ended
Water Consumption Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BZE HE
—E-CF T4
=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
FKE By LLEFEE IEFE
Total water consumption cubic metres 217.31 257.70
BFEKE SHK
Water consumption intensity cubic metres/employee 1.59 1.57
FKEBTE MK RE

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands that its business operation has contributed to certain
levels of environmental impacts. It is committed to conserving the natural
resources and surrounding environment for sustainable development. With
the ultimate goal of environmental protection, the Group strives to identify
the aspects affected, thereby formulating monitoring and management
measures.

RERERER
AEEPRRERBZEHRITEN —ERENTE -
AEBHONREARERMEBREUNERAIFE
R - AEBURERFRESKKER - BHR5
XEENHE - (M HIE R E RS -

Environmental impact

Corresponding measures

RIERE HRFEIEIE
Air quality Use air purifying equipment or other equipment to ensure
ERE= indoor ventilation as well as regular cleaning and maintenance

Outdoor air quality could be worsened by air pollutants
emitted while using the company owned vehicles. Also, poor
air conditioning systems or airflow could affect the indoor air
quality in the workplace.

EIERE R R AR B ERP R E RS R AR E
ZE e ﬁt’ﬂl\ BENEFHRRIRD ARG ETFEMNER

of air conditioning systems. Also, employees are encouraged to
use public transportation to reduce emissions and environmental
impacts.

EAZERFERE A E M RBERENBRIANE B2 Mg
EZEF RS o [ - $El*§EJJE\I1§EFHQ#\X ATEA - DR

EERENERBELNTE
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RIB - B RERRS

Climate Change

Severe rainstorms, frequent typhoons and hurricanes, rising sea levels and
other events have significantly evidenced the increasing importance of
imposing climate-related mitigation and reduction plans. The Group realises
the eagerness of monitoring and mitigating climate-related issues. To keep up
with the world, the Group will formulate action plans for the establishment
of climate-related policy, and hence determine the issues and implement
corresponding actions.

PEOPLE-ORIENTED WORKPLACE

Employee is the crucial factor for sustainable business development. the
Group values its talents as the most important asset and strives to maintain
a fair and stable working environment. It is committed to providing people-
oriented management that allow employees fully perform their talents and
potentials. At the same time, the Group is adhered to the employment-
related regulatory requirements, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance, Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and Employee
Compensation Ordinance, to lay the basis for providing safe and healthy
employment systems.

With the implementation of comprehensive management approaches, the
Group is not aware of any violations in aspects of employment, labour system
and occupational health and safety during the year ended 31 March 2022.
The Group will try its best to maintain the high standards of operations by
providing fair and appropriate working environment for employees.

Employment System

The Group attaches the protection of employees in accordance with the
policies and measures established based on the regulatory requirements
in Hong Kong. At the same time, the Employee Handbook has clearly
stipulated the internal requirements and procedures as well as stated the
relevant arrangements, such as working hours and leave arrangements, in the
employment contract.
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Recruitment and dismissal

R e

Remuneration and retention

MR BT

RIR - B RERRE

Recruitments are carried out via legal channels under the oversight of the Human
Resources and Administration Department. Selection is made based on the past
performance, personal attributes, job experiences and career aspirations of applicants
with a detailed recruitment review process conducted by the Human Resources and
Administration Department.

BREEANEBRENEE TBBEEEEBET - RERBSANBERR - HAKE -
TN B ETIE - WHANBRNTREPFIETAANBEEERER -

To prevent misuse of child labour, the Human Resources and Administration
Department conducts a detailed checking of applicants’ identification documents to
verify their eligibility for work and validity of the documents. If there is child labour
discovered, the Group will handle it according to the mechanisms and regulations, such
as stop the interview immediately and contact relevant authority.

ROIEERET - ABTHEHERFEN T HIRAEET T RS - RE M
B TEERFI X E R - NBIMET - NEE IR RIRTEEIE - 8= 1k
WX EEEEER -

Employees may be dismissed without notice in the event of criminal offense, fraud,
dishonesty or behaviour detrimental to the Group’s reputation. At the same time, if
there is no improvement despite efforts or chances given, termination may be made
with notice. All decisions have to be made based on legitimate, legal grounds and
regulatory requirements.

ETHAER SEE A TILMESRT - BFFRAHETR - FEAEETRERIEEN
1R MTEBA - BEINSRAESISERSEIRENESE N - UMERFHEE
Wiz MIELEBAARE - IARTEBUEENRS/EHNERIKBENEEZH -

To attract potentials and retain talents, the Group provides a competitive remuneration
package with reference to market benchmarks. Employees are offered with Medical
Insurance Scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and other benefits for improving
their working incentives and retaining the valuable employees.

REBENFEEAT  AEEZ2ETSEERFEAARF IOFNGE - RETIR
HERRRE  REMERESFTEIFEMETN - UAEMMN TESBNEEEE
EMET -

To further improve the sense of belonging, the Group has organised various leisure
activities for its employees. Activities, such as Annual Dinner, Christmas and birthday
parties, have been held to create a positive and harmonious workplace.
RE—FRSEBR  AEERAEISNTZHENKREED - fINFERE - EIURY
AEHIRE - SEBEMGEE THERE -

Employee Performance Appraisal is conducted annually to understand their working
ability, contributions and efforts. Position or remuneration package may be adjusted
based on the results. Department head will complete the Manpower Movement Form
fairly and reasonably. Lastly, adjustment will be confirmed and approved by Chief
Operating Officer and Chief Executive Officer.

BFETRBETERGHE - UBREE T ITIERE - ERFS ) o« Bu s FmiiFs
RGRBERETAE - FFIEEEQATEEMERANERFBABRR - KEHEE
RE RATBHBEBAZ ©
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R - S RERHRE

Working hours and rest periods

TR EAMBREY

Diversity, equal opportunities and
anti-discrimination

Zrft - FERENRER

In order to protect its employees, the Group has clearly indicated the working hours in
the Employee Handbook. If there is any overtime work, it has to be on a voluntary basis
with compensation in accordance with the compensation leave scheme. The Group
holds zero tolerance to forced labour and will handle violation cases regarding the
relevant regulatory requirements, such as carrying out investigation and contacting the
relevant authority.

RTREEL  AEBECAEE TFMF AR IIERRE « B E@k TE - ©%A
B ERE W IRRAEERRETEETHE - AEBYURHISE TTABTARE
[ - $BENEREE EREMETRE - MFREAES LR AT -

With the goal of promoting the concept of work-life balance, employees are offered
with paid and unpaid leaves under the five-day working arrangement. Examination
leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave and various rest periods are available for all
employees as well as 14 weeks of maternity leave for females and 5 days of paternity
leave for male employees.

REETEEAETENED BT EARRTERETOHRHNELRY - 78
BETHRZZERAR BER ER - B0F  BEREENSEKRSER  EETA
EXVBER  BHBETIRAIZX5KEER -

The Group advocates a diverse, fair and inclusive workplace. All forms of discrimination
due to cultural background, religion, gender, race, marital status, family status, political
affiliation and other factors are not allowed. If there are any discrimination incidents,
employees are encouraged to report to the Human Resources and Administration
Department for investigation and handling.

REEEZBZ T RFMBENTESH - TAFEXEES - RE - R - &
W~ IR~ REMOR ~ BURBAZEEZMETERFZRARAR o AR EE
SEETRANERRITHERE AR SRR -
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group employed a total of 137
employees, of which 58 are female and 79 are male. All employees are
employed with full-time contracts that located in Hong Kong, Mainland China

and Southeast Asia.

Number of employees by gender

RIERIEID BT AR

‘ | Male
emale £
3

58

Number of employees by geographical region

wiEEI D B T AK

13
Southeast
Asia

REIE

124

Hong Kong and
Mainland China
FENREAM

RIB - B RERARS

BE—_Z- " F=A=+—HILFE AE£EBEEHE
F137%ET  Ef#58A » BH79A - IEETL
BB ARSRERES « AEAMAMERLS

Number of employees by age group
RFERARIZI D BT AR

2
5 Above 70
£0-70 yearsl/(/)(ldt
- 70585

years old
60-705%,
16 28
50-59 20-29
years old yez;rs old
50-595% 20-29%%

38 48

40-49 30-39

years old years old

40-49%% 30-3975%

Number of employees by employment level

ZREERRIE DB TAH

15

Senior
management
SN ERE

25
Middle level

management
hARERRE

74

Frontline
employees
GIE =

23

Junior
employees
MRET
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RIB - B RERRS

Turnover rate by gender

PaNy=3
77

RIERIBI DR KL

19.71%

Male
St

Turnover rate by geographical

ZiRE DKL R

77l

36.50%

Hong Kong and Mainland China

16.79%

Female

oy

region

0.00%

Southeast Asia

BB R PEAM REE
Turnover rate by age group
BB DMK LK
16.79%
15.33%
4.38%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
20-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-70 Above 70
years old years old years old years old years old years old
20-295% 30-395% 40-495% 50-595% 60-705% TOBRRMA £
Occupational Health and Safety BERREZE

The Group prioritises the safety of its employees in business development
and daily operations. To safeguard their safety and health, the Group has
established internal regulations and followed guidelines on managing and
protecting them against hazards, on the basis of laws and regulations.

As stipulated in the Employee Handbook and no smoking policy, the Group
has adopted measures and manuals on minimising risks and raising safety
awareness. For example, the Group arranges rescue, fire and evacuation drills
from time to time to remind the importance of maintaining a safe workplace
as well as to ensure sufficient knowledge and skills in handling unfortunate
events. In the event of work-related injury, employees are compensated in
accordance with the laws and regulations. The Group will also carry out
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investigation and improvement measures to prevent recurrence of accidents.
Also, employees are provided with sick leave for timely diagnoses of illness
and disease if there are symptoms of influenza or other contagious diseases, as
well as prevent spreading of illness in the workplace.

To further protect the valuable human resources, the Group provides its
employees with extensive health care coverage to ensure sufficient protection
of employees in the event of illness and injury. Additionally, it organises
activities on encouraging a healthy and work-life balance lifestyle as well
as put up safety banners and warning signs for an accident-free working
environment. Beyond supporting their mental health and providing health
care coverage, the Group provides healthy food, such as fruits, lunchboxes
and soups, to ensure their uptake of adequate nutrition.

With the growing concerns about COVID-19, the Group is highly conscious of
the risks and hazards of the pandemic. In order to fight against the pandemic
in the workplace, the Group has implemented prevention measures, such as
temperature screening before entering, frequent disinfection of workplace
and providing disinfection products. In addition, due to the outbreaks of
COVID-19, the Group has provide reminders and latest information on the
maintenance of healthy lifestyles and information related to COVID-19.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group is not aware of any
violations of relevant regulatory requirements. Regarding the comprehensive
management and monitoring of daily operations, the Group did not receive
any work-related injuries and fatalities in the past three years. With the
commitment to protecting its employees, the Group will continue to improve
its management approaches and measures, as well as improve its data
collection systems to enhance the data availability.

Development and Training

To keep up with the world, the Group attaches the continual improvement of
employees’ knowledge and skills. In accordance with its training policies, the
Group provides different trainings and development opportunities, including
regular training courses and programmes. Upon the participation in training
programmes, employees will be offered with different leave arrangements in
accordance with the Staff Development Sponsorship Scheme and the nature
of the programmes.

RIR - B RERRE

T Rk L M A PR O AR B I s 22 B R s AR
& WERERETESMERE -

BiE— S RETENANER  ASBEAEBITRHEE
THERERE  URREIEARNZERSERD
1R - WO AEEEASEESBREER TIEEA
%%%i%ﬁﬁm%@ ok Bl % 2 FE iR A& 512
o LEEEBHMNITERE - R 7 RMOM0E
&Kﬂﬁﬁ@f1 BN - AEBIBIRMEERRR - )
KR~ FEEMNG - R IIEEUC S &

BEHFLEARSNEEARIEN  FEESER
BME|RITHRARMNESE - RNBTIESMNRE
AEEER TEARAR - TIESMREHRS - 2t
HEEMSBIERE © Wi ARFHEERESHOR
% ARERSRHEABRSRELE T AMMET
RSB AENETMER

HEZZ-_F=A=+—HLFE  KXEBREH
ARERBBEERTHER EEEEEREER
MEEFTE  RBT=FASEWREETERAT
FLTEMN - AEEBINREE T  (SEBENERE
BHENER  WREEESBRRERGURSEUET
FAME °

R NIEI
RTHEERRFY - AEEERE T HBAREEHTE
RE - REEBIERER - ARERHAROEIME
EHE  BRETEHFEIREME - 2I0F71RE
% BISRBEETHREAEINREMLEERMH
TREBHAZEE -

Newly joined employees o Organise new staff orientation; and
MABET ZHIE TABEI - &
° Provide trainings coverings corporate culture, business processes, job requirements and
specific job knowledge, etc.
RUERERE L - EBAE - B TERKRAERUABRS I ENE -
Existing employees ° Focus on their career development with the profession-oriented trainings; and
REET BBAEERT R - EPMBPIRBEERE - X
o Set up Staff Development Sponsorship Scheme for full-time employees who completed

three full years of service, to encourage participating seminars, courses and professional

examinations
BRER=FNEHRE TR
ZH

THREE - SEBM2ERTE  REMNEX
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RIB - B RERRS

Under the outbreaks of COVID-19, the Group places the health and safety
of employees as the top priority. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Group provided self-paced learning materials to its employees for improving
their skills and knowledge. As a result, the training hours are not available for
disclosure. For continual improvement, the Group will carry out face-to-face
trainings when appropriate.

ETHICAL OPERATIONS

Fair and honest business operation forms a solid foundation for long-term
development. The Group acknowledges the importance of upholding a high
standard of operations. It is committed to maintaining ethics and honesty in
the operations to develop a fair and trustworthy relationship with its suppliers,
customers, employees and other stakeholders. As a responsible enterprise,
the Group complies with regulatory requirements relevant to its business
operations, including the Personal Dara (Privacy) Ordinance, Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and other relevant laws and regulations, together with the
internal policies and management approaches.

The Group recognises the eagerness of sustaining the business integrity.
With the stringent management and monitoring, it is not aware of any
violations related to supply chain management, product responsibility and
anti-corruption during the year ended 31 March 2022. If there is an unethical
or non-compliance case received, the Group will carry out investigation and
handle in accordance with relevant laws and regulations.

Supply Chain Management

With the establishment of sustainability strategies, the Group emphasises the
maintenance and management of an environmentally and socially responsible
supply chain. At the same time, the Group has implemented a stringent
mechanism to manage and evaluate suppliers’ performance regularly.
All suppliers should ensure their compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

To ensure a comprehensive supply chain management, the Group has
established a supply chain management team to manage and assess the
potential risks therein. It conducts visits and risk assessments with suppliers
and contractors regularly, including a formal risk detection and mitigation,
and environmental and social contribution evaluation. To maintain high
standards of materials, the Group also applies the procedures of assessment
and evaluation during selection. Based on the assessment and selection
result, lists of suppliers and backup suppliers are in place for procurement
and maintaining the stability and quality of products. At the same time,
the Group keeps communicating with suppliers and backup suppliers for
immediate response when there are incidents occurred. In addition, with the
commitment of maintaining the supply chain in a fair and equal manner,
employees who are in close relationships with its potential suppliers are not
allowed to take part in the selection and procurement procedures.
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R - HERERHRE

Collection

LES

* Receive quotation
from suppliers.

B ERIORE -

Assessment

$HE

e Conduct performance
assessment based on a
list of criteria.

BIE— RFEAEHETT
FBRGTE

Selection
g

Based on the
assessment result,
select suppliers that
fulfill the requirements.
RIBFT AR - &2
e ERaHER -

Evaluation

1

Carry out evaluation
on the quality in
accordance with a
variety of criteria

on a strict and
continuous basis.
RERRHIEREE
RN ST -

e Conduct visits and

engagement regularly.

ST SRR -
B SREHEREERARER  AEBRE
ENEAEREOBERAREE - U RIS
SMEABRES - ATRSBRIASEOREER
B ARENREERERENE RS - P E
BISHEEEE -

N AN AN

To further perfect the supply chain management and risks monitoring,
the Group will integrate a more comprehensive environmental and risks
management as well as the encouragement of eco-friendly products in the
supply chain in the future, when appropriate. The Group will also improve its
data collection system to enhance the performance of KPIs disclosure, such as
number of suppliers by geographical region.

EmEE
EPREEHRFIHERNREEEEHER - A&
EsEEREMNEIHEE - REEEEKR  KAf
BHIE T — ZR 5 e AR I 1A e SR A R E -

Product Responsibility

Customer satisfaction is essential in evaluating the products and services
quality. The Group highly attaches the quality of its products in all respects.
On the basis of regulatory requirements, the Group has established a series of
measures and restrictions to maintain the standards.

Procurement ° Conduct quality checks before distribution.
23 EDHAEITE E2ind o
° Ensure compliance with the Supplier Code of Conduct on maintaining the high
standards of products purchased.
RETHERITAER - NEFBEEMNSITE -
Quality management ° Adopt quality plan designated for each project that indicates requirements for quality
EE2EHE control, inspection and testing, and relevant issues in the production.
KARBEBERETHESE  RPAYBESEEH  BRAANENESAREESH
TR
° Examine the quality-related system and policy regularly to ensure the effectiveness and

efficiency of management approaches.

T HRE L SMBESMIEE - RREE A BIERMRE o
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R - S RERHRE

Data privacy

BERL

IP rights
HBERE

Comply with relevant laws and regulations as well as internal policies to ensure the
information collected would be used only for the authorised purposes and accessible by
designated personnel only.

ETHBERERTMANBER - RAKRENEMERNRERS  WEEMIETEA
Banf e

Collect and keep all data and information confidential and secure.
W R E PR A B M EMERE MM 2t -

Prohibit the use or provision of data to third parties without authorisation.

FIPREREEAHME=TTRHEE -

Equip security features together with backup services in the computers that require
password to access to further protect the data collected.
FIAEBMERBNHRBRERELUE  FEBHHEFRAE - T REMRENE
# o

Information Technology Department has set up obstruction between office and
commercial net to prevent data leakage or unauthorised use.

BB AR A= M R WA 2 RRED AE - DAR 858 52 s R SR
=8

Stipulate the protection of the Group and third-party’s IP rights in the Information
Security Policy.
FEEMLZZBERP R T REREMNE =T 0 MBERE -

Prohibit the duplication, installation or use of software which is in violation of its
copyright or license conditions.
e - Zedest R IR B SR AT (SR R A -

To ensure the compliance with internal regulations, employee who violates the
restriction will be subjected to disciplinary action.
RERETAMBRE - BREHHETHXZINLRED

Notify manufacturers if there is illegal or unauthorised use of hardware and/or software
discovered.

BAELER NI IESOR R E R IE M/ N -

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group received about 100 Cases
of complaints on the products, that do not bring significant impacts to its
operation. If there is complaint received, the Group will communicate with
customer to understand the issue and compensate, if needed, based on
the result of the investigation. The Group will strive its best to maintain the
highest standards of the products provided.

Anti-corruption

The Group upholds high standards of maintaining a fair, ethical and
honest workplace with integrity as one of its philosophies of sustainable
development. It is entitled to relevant laws and regulations together with
the establishment of the Anti-corruption Policy, as indicated in the Employee
Handbook. As stipulated in the internal policy, the Group holds zero tolerance
for all forms of unethical and corruptive practices, including but not limited
bribery, fraud, money laundering and extortion.
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Additionally, the Group has adopted the Code of Conducts that addresses
restrictions and information on conflicts of interests, privacy, confidentiality
of information, etc. Unless receiving permission, employees are prohibited
to provide, solicit or accept anything of considerable value from or to
employees, clients, suppliers or other stakeholders. If there is any suspicious
case, employees should report to the relevant personnel or department, such
as management, department head, Human Resources and Administrative
Department, for further investigation and handling.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not receive any
corrupt cases brought against itself or its employees. The Group will strive its
best to maintain the high standards of business operations. If there is case
received, the Group will undergo investigation and handle it in accordance
with the regulatory requirements, and could be resulted in dismissal, sending
to relevant regulatory authorities, etc. The Group did not organise any anti-
corruption training against the same period due to the outbreak of the
pandemic. The Group will provide relevant information and training when
appropriate.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Apart from the business development, the Group also values community
improvement. It is committed to emboldening and supporting the community
through social participation and contribution. With the ultimate goal of
enhancing community development, the Group strives to promote social
stability and support the underprivileged to improve their living standards. At
the same time, the Group focuses on the inspiration of people towards social
welfare concerns. It encourages its employees to contribute to community
welfare with the belief of “life affects life”. As part of strategic development,
the Group embraces human capital intro social management strategies for
sustaining the human resources supply and market.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has made a total of
HKD320,000 donations towards the local charities, with the focus of
supporting the development of future generation and further learning of
needy.

Growing up together, the Group will perpetually support the community
development together with its business improvement.

RIR - B RERRE

AN - REBEREITRER - ABANRER - &
Lo BRREETENRGIMER o BRIFRSA -
BAZIFETAAEENET - 7F - HEEMIEM
BFOERM  ZMIEIEAELENEE - WEA
BN BTERAERE  #FHEEA - ANTBERK
THMBERBABRIPIRE  ABE—FPER
# o

BE_T-__F=-A=1+—BLEFE TEERKI
RS EAEELEEBNE SR - AEEKER
ABNERRRENETZE - MARIRMF  ~F
E IR e E ERETTRERIE - WAL G EARES -
EXAMEE AL - ARNRBENER - AKERH
REELRBHARRBRIEI - ARBERERIRHERE
F R IE -
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BTEBER  AEENTERUERNEE - NREEHD
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SO BRSO E AR KSE © IRy - AREEITEHEAM
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ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

BEXFTRYERIR -

HERERBEESIR

B &G
Aspects Description Page/Remark
=] it BIBERS|faiE
A1 Emissions
BB
General Disclosure Information on: 51-52, 54
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— MR BHERIMOAERBYR - KRS AFERBEEEMNES
24
(@ BE: &
(b) BTHBEITAGSRZENBEBEERAD -
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 53
PER R R S AR R BE R -
Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions 53
and intensity.
i (EEN) kg REEZ (BE2) A =EREBHFREREE -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 54-55
FESBSEEVHEEREE -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 55
ESREERNMHESREE -
A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 51-52
HPTRT SOV EER R B iR R RiE DG L B R AT EREN A AP 58
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and 51, 54

a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
il RIEEERESEEMN L - MR AR B E R AESE
L B IR AT AP BT o
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
FEHE Ei:pu BB RS EE
A2 Use of Resources
BERER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other 51
raw materials.
— AR ER BRUEABIR (RIERER - K REAMRMED RIBUR -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. 56
RERESMEERKEEEREEERTE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 57
BROKERKE o
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve  51-52
them.
I FTET L VAR IR (L A S B IR R A B iE Ak B IS ATEREREY 558
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for 51, 56
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
FHCSKEGE R OR ERI B E MR - LARFTET oAk B iR R A EE
BB IRATERER A ER o
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and per unit produced. It is not relevant to the Group'’s

R BARBEMHNRENBLEESRMGE -

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

RERXARER

General Disclosure

—RIE

A3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
IMIEREIT AR RRAE REX ERZBENBOR

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

M EREBEIRERAAERNERZERERNERE AL ENTT
g o

business.
BREEEC EEMmA o

51

57
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
FEHE gl BB RS EE

A4 Climate Change

KREL
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues 58
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
— AR ER BRIREHEERAESHETAEETENERARIFHFEEEHNBE -
A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, 58
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

BRI EHETAELEVENEARIKEREE - REHTH -

B1 Employment
U=

General Disclosure Information on: 58, 60
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

— MR — R AR ARE - RERE  TERE - BRE - TE#ReE
Zitlt - RIBARARHE hiFE RAEN A -

(@ HE: R
(b) EFHETABERZENERERLRI & -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical 61
region.

RIER -~ EBREL - FRAER SR E D HEB AR -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 62

SRR - FEERI R ERIS R B AL -
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
FEHE gl BB RS EE

B2 Health and Safety
BEHEZR

General Disclosure Information on: 58, 62
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
— MR EE — AR ER
BHERMHLZE2TIFRERREBEEREBELASTH
(@ BE: &
(b) EFHETABERZENERERIRMHER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past 63
three years including the reporting year.

BE=ZFHEFEATITHHABKILE -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 63
EIEEARTIEAL -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how  62-63
they are implemented and monitored.

RILPTERAM BRI 2455 - ARMRBRNTIT REERIDE -

B3 Development and Training

R RIE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 63
duties at work. Description of training activities.
— AR ER BRARIHES BT TIERE A M R XA ABUR - ftiEES -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category. 64
RIERIREERRBSHNZINEEB DL ©
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 64

employee category.
RIERIREEERE D - FREBTRZIINFIFRE -
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
FEHE gl BB RS EE

B4 Labour Standards

TR

General Disclosure Information on: 58, 60
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer.

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

— AR ER BN 1L TeagHlss TH) -
(@ BE: &
(b) BETHBEITABSRLENHEBEEIAOINER -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and  59-60
forced labour.
GBI E OIS AR R E T R5aHIZ T -

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 59-60

R EIRE R B R ER G RIS TR 228,

B5 Supply Chain Management

HrEsEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 64-65

— MR ERHEENRE I S RMBBUR

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 65
i@ D HEERHE -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of 64-65
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HBRREREEENED - MEARITAERENMNHEREE - LAKIEA
MITRERGE -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks 64-65
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B BRI EE G RGN R R Mt 2 RARAEN - A RBERITR
BERFE-
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable 64-65

products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

M BRE HE RIS R (0 2 AIRRE m K ARISEVE D] - LARABRARIT B
B
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
FEHE gl BB RS EE

B6 Product Responsibility

EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: 64-65
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
— MR EE B HERIRBHNERRELZ S  BE  RRRLBREEARERS
VAR
(@ BE: &
(b) EFHETABERZENERERIRMNHER -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety The Group did not recall any
and health reasons. products due to safety and
health reasons.
EERDEXEMEHT AL ERRIEAMANKRNBE AL - REBRGENZ 2 BEFIE
mmARREFER -
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they 66
are dealt with.
BEENEmD LRGSO E AREE L -
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 66
property rights.
ol B R R ARAE AR E R FRIE D
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 65
VS SARE B2 M E m O -
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how 66

they are implemented and monitored.

B BEEERRERLBBER - ARBERITRERITE -
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
[EmE i pa L
B7 Anti-corruption

REF

General Disclosure Information on: 64, 66
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer.
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—RRHEE BEAMILERERS - IR - BEFRERER
@ HE R
(b) BEBFHETABERAFENEMEEZLANHER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought 67
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RIERAAHETAIEEERE W EEENE SHFARHNEE KFR
e

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and 67
how they are implemented and monitored.

H P EnE o R B RIR R, - ARSI T REER 0% -

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 67
i E S kB TIRENRESE -

B8 Community Investment

HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 67
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

—PE R BN E2 M RERE BT RFENBREER TS EE LR
mmﬁkﬁﬁ °

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 67
FXERER -

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 67

EEIHREMBAEIR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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e

Ernst & Young RXKETHER B Tel E3%: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place, BRHRE Fax {EH: +852 2868 4432
EY& i 979 King's Road, HE2iEI79% ey.com
¥ | Quarry Bay, Hong Kong AEH—RE271E

To the shareholders of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AV Concept
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 83 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audiitor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

B A2 B E RS

AEEITER

RRET FAAREBERMANERAE - BRMATAAN
HRGA M BHRRER/EENFIA © IhFFANHA I
FE M BHRREML AT RS —0EE - MK
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Al BE IR T P & IR R DA L BB E SR A o
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consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
EREFTEIR

Estimation of fair values of investment properties

REMELFEEME

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately HK$137
million, with the corresponding fair value changes recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The valuation process
is inherently subjective, and dependent on estimation of adjusted
unit price. The Group has engaged independent valuers to value
the investment properties at the end of the reporting period.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures about fair values of investment properties are included
in notes 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZ-_—F=A=+—H BEXERQAFEEFENREDE
#)%137,000,000/8 7T * MR FEEZEENERS BamR g
R o MERFASBEGIEN - WAKBMEFEHESEMAERS -
BEEEEZEBYAEMNBEHRERSRREDEETRH
1

TEEFHERAEARBRARENELFEENREEREN
ARE TSR3 R13

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RN ET MG EERETSER

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuers engaged by the Group. We also
obtained valuation reports prepared by the independent valuers,
understood the work of the independent valuers and evaluated
its work by assessing the relevance, completeness and accuracy
of the data used as inputs for the valuation, and assessing the
major assumptions and methodologies adopted in the valuation
by checking to the price of similar properties. We also involved
our internal valuation expert to assist us in evaluating the major
assumptions and methodologies of the valuation of certain
investment properties held by the Group.

BMEFE ESEEZENBUGHEMILTHE  HENRSE
RARREEE - BHMITERF B HEMBHOGHERS X
TR AEMN TE - WERFERIEHERMAENBERS
1HRE - EERER  FHEBLMAEMOTE  AREZEUADE
MBS - ARHEAERANEZMER L IE © HFITRE) 8 B
EER GG EEEMSETREVENTIEBRRLMES
& o
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B AZ B EN RS

Key audit matter

BARESEE

Provision against inventories

FERME

As at 31 March 2022, the net inventories balance of the Group
amounted to HK$45 million.

The Group is engaged in the marketing and distribution of
electronic components and design, development and sale of
consumer products, which are subject to changing market
demands and market competition. Management judgement is
required for assessing the appropriate level of inventory provision
in light of the current challenging business environment.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures of the provision and the balance of inventories are
included in notes 3, 6 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
RZEZZF=A=+—H  && RFE A
45,000,000/ 7T °

ElEoRER=g

ﬁ%@%%ﬁ%mﬁmm%ﬁf B 0\ BN B B R
MERYE - ETBEFBRRTERIVE - ERAHEHE
SHRES . BEERHAnR B 2 Bk BB 28 -

ITEEHE LA ARBETERERER I EEENENEG

B ERERMIEES ~ 65%20 -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RPN FT O EERAREFTSEH

We understood and evaluated the basis which management used
in estimating the level of provision for inventories by considering
the stock ageing as at 31 March 2022 and the subsequent
sales after year ended 31 March 2022. We also compared the
carrying amount of the inventories, on a sample basis, to their
net realisable value through review of sales of the inventories
subsequent to the year end.

BRMEBBERN T _—_F=A=+—HHEFRELEE
T _FZ A=t HUEFREERNIREE TMI%@E@F
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Key audit matter

FARENEE

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

FEt B 5 SRR BB

As at 31 March 2022, the Group recorded gross trade receivables
of HK$53 million and provision for impairment of HK$44 million.

The provision for impairment of trade receivables is estimated by
management through the application of judgement and use of
highly subjective assumptions, including the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and disclosures
of the trade receivables and their provision for impairment are
included in notes 3, 6 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

R-ZT-_—F=A=+—H  E£EHEEKEFIERIASE
53,000,0007%8 7T K J5i B # 844,000,000/ 7T ©

BB B PR 1B R R R B R S RO
ERE - B REEEEEHSEOR  URESASEZE
2 BROEOTRYREES B B2 B AR RA IR EALZ
FE{T E I -

TEEFHE LA ARBRARKE SRR EBERBZ KE
AEREN G ERERMES - 6521 °

B A2 B E RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANF O EERREFTSEE

We enquired management of the Group to understand the
Group’s process for estimating the provision for impairment of
trade receivables. We evaluated the methodologies, inputs and
assumptions, including judgement made by the management of
the Group in identifying credit-impaired trade receivables, used
by the Group in calculating the impairment. We also assessed
whether the provision for impairment of trade receivables is
properly supported by referring to available forward-looking
information, the debtors’ ageing analysis, settlement record and
history of bad debt.

HfAE BEEEERE  UTH BEEEMGEAEKESRIN
ERFEORE - HAFHE BERERFERERAERZTE
BAERBR B2 BESEEEEERIRNEENEIERKES
AR R 2 2B - RPITERSE MBS Z AL ER - IR
BRI BRI DT ~ AR ROER RIRRR SE 1 w1 FE MR E 2 RRSORL (B 1

BRARFIEE S -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ki Wing Yee, Winnie.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 March 2022 Etj:—{——ﬁz A=1t—HLFE

2022 2021
—EC-C8F T
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
= FET FET
REVENUE g 5 1,042,449 1,241,160
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,004,696) (1,186,183)
Gross profit EH 37,753 54,977
Other income and gains E A YA R 7 5 12,564 16,615
Changes in fair value of investment properties & ¥ % A F(BE 2 ZE) 13 7,415 4,305
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (10,172) (11,028)
Administrative expenses 1TEE H (61,450) (88,973)
Impairment on financial assets, net TRMEBEZRME  FH 6 (33,021) (1,138)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at  #EBEZE AT EEVIERZ
fair value through profit or loss, net TREEZATEERE
Wizt (E518) « JF45E 14,639 (17,983)
Other income/(expenses), net Hie A (BA) @ B4 6 (313) 3,916
Finance costs BbE A 7 (87) (971)
Share of profits and losses of: SR R EE
Joint ventures EEE 272,128 316,859
Associates 5?%’& A (3,422) 139
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE A2 F 6 236,034 276,718
Income tax Frrig it 9 (5,013) (7,192)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRBEF 231,021 269,526
Attributable to: AR AL FEAG -
Owners of the Company RATHEB A 231,021 269,788
Non-controlling interests AR A - (262)
231,021 269,526
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE KATEBEAEEEBREF
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11
Basic HAR HK25.42 cent HK29.69 cent
25.4258 29.697% 11l
Diluted e HK25.42 cent HK29.69 cent
25.4234 29.6978511l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e ZEWAR

Year ended 31 March 2022 HE-—ZT-_—F=A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—EC-C8F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 231,021 269,526
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HitZEUWA
Other comprehensive income that may be R BRI E D EEEE 2
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: ~ HAbZEUA :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign HMEGINERS RS E A 2 [E N 258
operations 2,353 7,258
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign FALEBINFEBREN D HFAR
operation disposed of during the year - 108
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME THAT HRERPBAEEN S EEER
MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS ZEM2EBARFAEEEE
IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS AND OTHER WA - HERBLIE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX 2,353 7,366
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRZEBAEE
FOR THE YEAR 233,374 276,892
Attributable to: AR AT FELS -
Owners of the Company RAREE A 233,374 277,256
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR A RS = (364)
233,374 276,892
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR AR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

2022 2021
—EC-C8F T
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BiaE FBT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment and M - RS AR K
right-of-use assets FREEE 12 29,743 32,371
Investment properties B 13 136,665 128,085
Goodwill R 15 - -
Other intangible assets E{Wﬂﬁiﬁﬁ 16 3,485 3,832
Investments in joint ventures REELEZRE 17 1,266,363 1,108,848
Investments in associates E"Hﬁf%@ AZINE 18 4,310 7,732
Financial assets at fair value through BIERE AT EEYR
profit or loss @wﬁﬁ? 19 25,482 24,701
Prepayments and deposits TBRFIERES 22 1,716 23,910
Loan to an associate R T —EEE AR ZCER 18 19,061 =
Total non-current assets JEmEEERE 1,486,825 1,329,479
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =& 20 44,797 33,736
Trade receivables fuﬂl“é’%ﬁéﬁ 21 8,599 34,886
Due from associates JE B i A R FR0B 18 2,763 987
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FB{f3X1A ?ﬁ%&ﬁ’rﬁlﬁéﬂﬂl
FIA 22 21,865 15,045
Financial assets at fair value through FEREREATEBSIER 2
profit or loss SRIEE 19 28,385 48,184
Tax recoverable A EHIE 2 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekEFRREER 23 152,228 124,298
Total current assets MENE ELE 258,639 257,136

Annual Report 2022 %3 AV Concept Holdings Limited 85



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R IR R

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

2022 2021
—EC-C8F —E-—F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T THET T3
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables, deposits received and ERE SRR Eluze Rk
accrued expenses FEETE A 24 23,848 28,615
Contract liabilities AHaE 25 20,559 36,410
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 698 870
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M BRI TER 26 6,435 =
Tax payable FERTARIR 4,789 6,924
Financial guarantee obligation MBSEREE 27 52,032 73,646
Total current liabilities MBI A EREE 108,361 146,465
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 150,278 110,671
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERREBE RS 1,637,103 1,440,150
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 490 775
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBE R 28 14,575 14,366
Total non-current liabilities ERB A ELRTE 15,065 15,141
Net assets BEFE 1,622,038 1,425,009
EQUITY Em
Issued capital BT 29 90,866 90,866
Reserves G 1,521,748 1,324,075
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 &G A fE{h s 1,612,614 1,414,941
Non-controlling interests FEERR A A 9,424 10,068
Total equity s iAEE 1,622,038 1,425,009
So Yuk Kwan So Kevin Chi Heng
189 &EE
Director Director
EFE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

zT

1{"" ‘(%E%Eb%%

Year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—T=—F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN N
Share Asset  Exchange Non-
[ssued ~ premium Capital Other revaluation ~ fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital - account reservet  resenve resene®  resene profits*# Totdl  interests equity
EEEfy  ERED

BEARA BOREE RAGE  AHER i Wh  REERM BE FERER  EREE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Thr Tér TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr A TEn  TEn

At 1 April 2020 W-Z-2FNA-A 90866 429,719 19484 (38483) 38,765 (509) 634229 1,169,488 11509 1,180,997

Proft for the yer ER - - - - - - X978 2978 (6) 269506

Other comprehensive incomef(oss) or the year: EREMRERA/ ()
Bichange differences on transation Lw@?\\%ﬁﬁiﬂ%z

of foreign operations ERzE - - - - - 7360 - 7360 (102 7258
Reclassfication adjustments for a foreign operation  ERHERNEREENHERE

disposed of during the year - - - - - 108 - 108 - 108

Total comprehensive incomelos) for the year EMREMN/ (BR)EE - - - - - 7468 209788 2772% (364 276892

Deemed disposal of subsidares note 33) RiEEMBAR (1133) - - - - - - - -y (1019
Equity-settled share aption arrangements —HHEATEREEERE

of asubsidiary (note 30) ZH (0 - - - - - - - - ] 1

Dividend paid (note 10) BRRE (HEE0) - - - - - - B183) (31803 - [180)

At 31 March 2021 R-B--FZf=t-H 90866 429,719¢ 19480 (38483 38765%  2376*  87L214F 1414941 10,068 1,425,009
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

zT

* ")(%:.%Eb%%

Year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=T=-—F=A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGN
Share Asset  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  Capital Other revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  reserve’  reserve  reserve®  reserve profits™  Total interests equity
HEEf  EXRE
BRARE ROEER RAGHE  BERE fife* ffE  REEA®  BE FEREE  REEE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TRn Tén TR TEx TR TEr TR TEr TR TEn
At 1 April 2021 \"E--FRA-A 90,866  429,719¢ 19480+ (38483 38765 2376 872,14 1,414.941 10,068 1,425,009
Proftfor he ear R s : : : - - B B - B
Other comprehensive income for the year: EREHREWA :
Bichange differences on transation BREBNSBREEL
of foreign operations Ei=8 - - - - - 233 - 233 - 2353
Total comprehensive income for the year EnzEMAGE - - - - - 233 B0 2331 - 233N
Equity-settled share aption arrangements —ENBARNEREERRERE
of asubsidiary (note 30) (5830 - - - - - - - - 2 2
Share options of subsidiaries lapsed (note 30) B A AERER R (H3E30) - - - - - - 646 646 (646) -
Dividend paid (note 10) BfilRE (H10) - - - - - - (36347 (36347) - (3634
AL31 March 202 R-Bz=f=f=1-A 086 4TI 1944 (BA) TG A0 0615 161261 04 162038

##

###

88

Included in the balance of the capital reserve as at 31 March 2022 was a capital
redemption reserve balance amounting to approximately HK$16,142,000 (2021:
HK$16,142,000).

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from owner-occupied
properties to investment properties carried at fair value. In accordance with HKAS 16,
this balance was frozen and was not available to offset the current and future years’
revaluation deficits on investment properties until the retirement or disposal of these
assets.

As at 31 March 2022, there was goodwill of HK$12,427,000 (2021: HK$12,427,000)
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years which remained eliminated
against the consolidated retained profits.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,521,748,000 (2021:

HK$1,324,075,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2022.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/-.ﬁ IEI@/}“JE%

Year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—T=—F=A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-CF T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FieE FTHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHMBRSRE
Profit before tax B3 Al A 236,034 276,718
Adjustments for: AT EBEH T -
Finance costs Eﬂ;éﬂz$ 7 87 971
Share of profits of joint ventures DEEEEERT (272,128) (316,859)
Share of losses/(profits) of associates HEHE R RS, CaFl) 3,422 (139)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W - BEREENE 6 1,479 1,467
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERERERE 6 2,000 2,171
Changes in fair value of investment properties BEMENTEBEZEE) 13 (7,415) (4,305)
Amortisation of other intangible assets HA A o 6 5 19
Impairment of other intangible assets HitEp A ERE 6 342 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of property, WE - BENERERE
plant and equipment CRER ) 6 10 (933)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of EREEERE/ (RERE)
right-of-use assets 6 515 (194)
Impairment of a loan to an associate RET—HEBELE2
ERZRE 6 364 -
Impairment of trade receivables W E 5 8RR 2 RiE 6 32,657 1,138
Reversal of provision for impairment of inventories 7 &R {ER R D 6 (6,852) (726)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEREFERE Z
plant and equipment Was 5,6 9) =
Revision of a lease term arising from a change in HENF RS EE Y
the non-cancellable period of a lease HERBENR 5,6 (146) (2,526)
Gain on derecognition of financial guarantee RIERMBERAEZ R
obligation 6 (101,541) (82,197)
Impairment of investments in joint ventures REEEERE ZRE 6 101,541 82,197
Impairment of investments in associates REEEREIRE 2R E 6 - 588
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHRBAR = 6 (1,256) =
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIEHEME QR 2 Y= 6 - (4,924)
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets at fair BRBEREATEEIIRZ
value through profit or loss, net EREENATEE
(kz) /B8 58 6 (14,639) 17,983
Dividend income from listed equity investments kR E 2 REMA 5 (11) (11)
Bank interest income RITHIBUA 5 (21) (33)
Interest income on listed bond investments FHEFREZFERA 5 (564) (2,589)
Equity-settled share option expense of a subsidiary ~ —FEB A Al Z G E R
BB 30 2 2
Cash used in operations — page 90 REMAR S —F08 (26,124) (32,182)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/-ﬁ IE%/)H:E’%%

Year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=T=-—F=A=+—HILtFE

2022 2021
—E-CF T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BieE FTHET FAT
Cash used in operations — page 89 ICEFAB S —$898 (26,124) (32,182)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (Em),/md (4,412) 53,716
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables [N ZERF (G5 R (7,035) 42,527
Increase in amounts due from associates P LBl 1 R R IEIE AN (1,776) (872)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits FENFIA - 2E REMERIE
and other receivables R,/ () 16,865 (2,722)
Decrease in trade payables, deposits received and ERESER - 2 Wik RIERT
accrued expenses BRRD (1,753) (12,539)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BHAaBCRD), /HEm (15,909) 29,941
Cash (used in)/generated from operations K& (FrR) /58 & (40,144) 77,869
Interest portion of lease payments MERNZFSFHH (41) (78)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value through RERBEZEATEBIIRZ
profit or loss SHEE - (24,273)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value HH&& @Bz A BB IR
through profit or loss EMEEZFEHIA 32,314 38,939
Dividend income received from a joint venture Bl —EE & E ZBREWA 93,240 81,585
Overseas taxes paid BR8N (6,940) (1,609)
Net cash flows from operating activities RERBME REREFH 78,429 172,433
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFZHHBZRERE
Bank interest received EHRITHE 21 33
Dividends received from listed equity investments Bl iR AR 1" 1"
Interest income on listed bond investments EmEHREZFERA 564 2,589
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment  fEE#I% - B/E K& EHEE (776) (185)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME  BERZEEE 2
plant and equipment Fr{S50A 9 =
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEHREAR 32 (546) -
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIEHEHB AR 33 = (1,561)
Investment in an associate R—THBE R R 2 KE = (500)
Advance of a loan to an associate ] — B A R BN ER (19,425) =
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities REES (FTA), A5z
RemeFE (20,142) 387
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/-.ﬁ IEI@/}“JE%

Year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—T=—F=A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—EC-CF B
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FieE TiER FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMETHMEzHERE
Net increase/(decrease) in import and # O REFBIRER
trust receipt loans #m,/ CRd) 558 34 6,424 (102,298)
Interest paid BRFIE 34 9 (794)
Interest portion of lease payments MERFTA D 34 (37) (99)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRAE IS 34 917) (2,836)
Dividends paid ERRE 10 (36,347) (31,803)
Net cash flows used in financing activities METBMAZREREFHE (30,886) (137,830)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B¢ R ERBEEE EFHE 27,401 34,990
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHzHekERREER 124,298 87,747
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREE s F2E  F5E 529 1,561
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR &R E&RZEREELIER 152,228 124,298
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND RERZEEREWA LRI
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REMBIRARR
consolidated statement of financial position and in ~ 4AEEREXRFE
the consolidated statement of cash flows ReLERELER 23 152,228 124,298
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR YRt

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AAREEER
AV Concept Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability AV Concept Holdings Limited ([ANAR]]) AR H
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office SEREFMKIZZBRAR o ARR)Z M
address of the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand ERRHHEAP.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands @ mHEEZ
is located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Square Three, 39 Wang Chiu Road, EEMBEBN RN BABNEERREIGREFEE
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong. %= HietE -
During the year, the Group was engaged in the following principal FAN - ANEERSATEZERER
activities:
e Marketing and distribution of electronic components; o  EFMzHmBHERDH
. Design, development and sale of consumer products and product . BEBHEEM R EREEURER
sourcing services; and HEEEL - &
e Venture capital investment. o RIEKRE -
Information about subsidiaries EENMBARIZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: APl EEZMBARFBAT :
Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
% ML K& 2 B8/ ERRA ARFEEREEA TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE CiE:
AV Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
FERITERRA Bt 28T REER
HK$1,000,000°
1,000,000/ 7C®
AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD4,000,000 - 100  Trading of electronic
EIbs 4,000,000%T AN T components
BES Tl
AV Electronics Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$40,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 40,000 7T REER
RERLHE /B
E-GoGo Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Trading of consumer
BE 18T products and
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREEER @
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMB AR ZER (3
Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
£ LRGSR 3 B BRT/HMRE ARREERFE AL TEER
Direct Indirect
HH# B3
Signeo Design International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Design, development
B 1007%7T and sale of consumer
products
Fit AENHERE
PER
AVC Technology (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Trading of electronic
BRE (BB BRAE B 1%L components and
consumer products
BEEF T EES
Em
New Concept Capital Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("New Concept”)* Hong Kong (E and venture capital
RERLHE /BB investment
REZRREIFRE
Whizoo Media Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Internet social media
B 10,000 7T business and online

Represents deferred shares issued by AV Concept Limited
# New Concept is a venture capital organisation

advertising
SRR EBER R
REES

B BITAR A RIEITZIELERR
New Concept /& — BRI 484K

ERINFEER /U AFEXABRIEDE
HERAEEEEFELIEND < ARFNE
RAE - BERR WMIHEMKBRRZF
% SEYREBNILE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

94

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment
properties which have been measured at fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.1

2.2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16’

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendment to HKFRS 16

2.1

2.2
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

96

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free
rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical expedient
to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the amendments
permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform
to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through
the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements to
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.

These amendments did not have any significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months.
Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent concessions
for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other
conditions for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

This amendment did not have any significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated
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financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associates or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts® >

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?*
Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract’
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

98

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41"

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since the amendments
apply prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at
the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s consolidated financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose consolidated financial statements make on the basis of those
consolidated financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to
HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in consolidated financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than
leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

Upon initial application of these amendments, the Group will recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the consolidated financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in associates or
joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the

other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) an entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Freehold land and buildings 2% - 3%
Leasehold improvements 20% —-33'5%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 20% —-33'5%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use assets which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (continued)

Club memberships

The Group's club memberships with finite lives are stated at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on an individual basis. The Group’s club memberships with indefinite
useful lives are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Trademarks and customer relationships

Trademarks and customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Mobile application

Mobile application is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:

Land 50 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful lives
of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

110

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of |ease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as other
income in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI"”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value
profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (@ 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage2 -

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, deposits received,
financial liabilities included in accrued expenses, lease liabilities, interest-
bearing bank borrowings and financial guarantee obligation.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

e B RS HRAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

24 TESTHBRBE@

EREERE@®

AL A%
RTBREAREMONERE S ERME
FEAREERATAREARE RO FEH T
THEER - AEEERAGCTAHER
HEERBR - REBEITE  AEE TSR
FERBRES - HERERE R AREZHED
FEEREREERE AERECEY—EE
REELEEBRKRNBEFERR - WREE
BARKERERENRRIERRETHE -

ETREE

NpBARTE
TRIBERTRERRE D /B BERIERT
EBEIERZERAE  ERREKIENFTER
(M) °

AEEREENHRRATFEER WBERRE
A REN R HIFR BB PUATER

AEEZHAERRENESERR DR
T AFARRREXMNERAE  HEAE M
BRITERRMBEREL

HEiE
SRBEZ T ERTRMTHE

BB 2 ME 18 (B REN)
RAHERR @ sHEERRBERRERRAE
BRA ORI AR 8 BROFRAIR 2B
K AISmKATR - ERERIERRES
ERMNEEEREFETE  RKERBREELR
BRERAER

B AR REFREBETESRE LB ER
MR REREE D 2 BREKARGTH - BER
FEBH AGRBBRRAZBENMA

Annual Report 2022 £3§ AV Concept Holdings Limited 115



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

maH

U175 R 2% B

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

2.4

116

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and includes all
costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on
the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
disposal.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks and
other financial institutions, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)  Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the products.

(b)  Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised at the point
in time when the services have been rendered.

Other income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company and two of its subsidiaries operate share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after
7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expenses, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and Singapore are required to participate in pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the pension schemes. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the pension schemes.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of associate grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (continued)

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including:

(@  current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences; and

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2022 was
HK$136,665,000 (2021: HK$128,085,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
The Group makes impairment provision for trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
these receivables. Impairment provision is made for these receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the
use of judgement and estimates, including the current creditworthiness,
the past collection history of each debtor and forward-looking
information. Where the expectation on the recoverability of these
receivables is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of these receivables and impairment
provision in the periods in which such estimate has been changed. The
aggregate carrying amount of trade receivables as at 31 March 2022
was HK$8,599,000 (2021: HK$34,886,000). The aggregate carrying
amount of deposits and other receivables as at 31 March 2022 was
HK$22,602,000 (2021: HK$15,555,000).

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory ageing analysis
periodically, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sales. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving items through management’s estimation of the
net realisable value for such obsolete and slow-moving items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s inventories as at 31 March
2022 was HK$44,797,000 (2021: HK$33,736,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@)  the semiconductor distribution segment engages in the sale and
distribution of electronic components;

(b)  the consumer product and product sourcing business segment
engages in the design, development and sale of consumer
products and product sourcing services;

(c)  the venture capital segment engages in the investments in listed/
unlisted equity and debt investments with an ultimate objective
of obtaining capital gains on investee’s equity listing or, in some
circumstances, prior to listing. It also includes investments in
managed funds, convertible bonds and listed bonds; and

(d)  the others segment mainly comprises the Group's internet social
media business.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure
of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit/loss before tax
except that bank interest income, rental income, share of profits and
losses of joint ventures and associates, impairment of investments in
associates, gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment,
compensation income from termination of acquisition of an investment
property, impairment of other intangible assets, impairment of a loan
to an associate, changes in fair value of investment properties, finance
costs and unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investment properties, investments in joint
ventures and associates, a loan to an associate, tax recoverable, cash
and cash equivalents and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, lease
liabilities, interest-bearing bank borrowings, financial guarantee
obligation and other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.

4,
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REREER @)
Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEER
RER
YERSH HRER fIR Hit o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T T T T
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-Z-"¥=A=1-H
LFE
Segment revenue AEE
Sales to external customers ANRBE ZHE 1,012,713 29,001 - 735 1,042,449
Other revenue Hfoliza - - 15,358 - 15,358
Total st 1,012,713 29,001 15,358 735 1,057,807
Reconciliation: HiR
Less: Other revenue (note) L e (5T) (15,358)
Revenue as presented in the e BREEZS 2 W&
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 1,042,449
Segment results AHEE 9,561 (36,178) 11,521 (6,378) (21,474)
Reconciliation: HiR
Bank interest income BTFIEMA 21
Rental income HSWA 4,362
Share of profits of joint ventures HMEBELF R 272,128
Share of losses of associates HMEBENFRER (3422)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE « K X&EEE
plant and equipment € 9
Compensation income from RILKEBRENEZ
termination of acquisition of LN
an investment property 4,434
Impairment of other intangible assets Kt &R A 2 RfE (342)
Impairment of a loan to an associate  Feft F—HHE N A2 B
e (364)
Changes in fair value of investment ~ REMEATBEZE
properties 7,415
Unallocated expenses RAERZ (26,646)
Finance costs BARKA (87)
Profit before tax BRE AR 236,034
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. &Z 2 TER @
Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HERER
REm
FEENH REES &% Hith st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AL
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-Z-—%=R=1-H
IH5E
Segment revenue Al
Sales to external customers FSNRER S 1,190,417 47,082 - 3,661 1,241,160
Other losses HitEE - - (15,240) = (15,240)
Total st 1,190,417 47,082 (15,240) 3,661 1,225,920
Reconciliation: iR
Add: Other losses (note) 0 Efsis (D) 15,240
Revenue as presented in the N laE e Pl G
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 1,241,160
Segment results AHEE 34,474 (15,546) (19,511) (12,685) (13,268)
Reconciliation: iR
Bank interest income FATHIEMA 33
Rental income HEWA 4,151
Share of profits of joint ventures AERELE R 316,859
Share of profits of associates AMEBE ARIEH 139
Impairment of investments in associates FBE& AR Z & 2 FfE (588)
Changes in fair value of investment ~ RANEAFBEEE
properties 4,305
Unallocated expenses KA (33,942)
Finance costs AERA (971)
Profit before tax BREATRT 276,718
Note: Other revenue/(losses) in segment revenue were classified as other income and sk : DR AZ Htblzs (BB ESBALREE

gains, and fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, net, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. K& 5 IBER @
Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEER
RER
YERAH RiEEH = Hth @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TAL THL TATL
31 March 2022 “E-CE-A=1-H
Segment assets AHEE 572,873 82,140 40,186 2,291 697,490
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment receivables  #$57 Eif fEd A (536,578)
Investments in joint ventures REERE I RE 1,266,363
Investments in associates R AR RE 4310
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ ARIREMASEEE 313,879
Total assets BEMGE 1,745,464
Segment liabilities AHEE 39,754 253,458 207,232 78,209 578,653
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment payables  #L$A EBRER FUE (536,578)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AR EMAASEEE 81,351
Total liabilities A8 123,426
31 March 2021 ZE--E=f=1-H
Segment assets IHEE 539,482 104,153 61,114 3,384 708,133
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment receivables  #$57 EBffEd A (516,044)
Investments in joint ventures NEBLE A 1,108,848
Investments in associates R AR RE 7,732
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ AR EMASEEE 277,946
Total assets BERE 1,586,615
Segment liabilities AHEE 46,867 246,894 209,653 69,657 573,071
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment payables ~ #L$A P EBER FUE (516,044)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AR EMAASEEE 104,579
Total liabilities AELR 161,606
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REHIPERE @

Other segment information: Hib o HMEHR :
Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEER
RER
LERAH XK -1 Htr &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TATL TAT
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE2-8-_%
ZAZt-HLEEE
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BRERXENE
equipment 1,069 2 292 116 1,479
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RREEENE 1,04 85 874 - 2,000
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ E A&/ EE 2 #iH 5 - - - 5
Reversal of provision for impairment of 78 2 i{EAF AR
inventories - (6,852) - - (6,852)
Impairment of other intangible assets Bt &R AE ZifE 302
Impairment of a loan to an associate T —HBENEZ &R
A8 364
Imparment/(reversal of impairment) of BB BEFZ(E/
trade receivables, net (RlERE) - 38 - 32,670 - (13) 32,657
Impairment of property, plant and W% - BE RS RE
equipment - 10 - - 10
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEZRE 515 - - - 515
Changes in fair value of investment RENZATREED
properties (7,415)
Capital expenditure* ARFE 98 12 - 666 776
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE_E--F
ZA=THIEFE
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BERXENE
equipment 1,007 7 347 106 1,467
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 1,047 124 1,000 = 2171
Amortisation of other intangible assets A& EE 2 BiH 19 - - - 19
Reversal of provision for impairment FEZRERERR
of inventories (475) (251) - - (726)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) EURESERZRE/
of trade receivables, net (RifE%mE) - 358 - 1,144 - (6) 1138
Reversal of impairment of property, plant  #1% + BiE k& 2 HERE
and equipment - (933) - - (933)
Impairment of/(reversal of impairment) ~ EAEEE ZHE/ (AEKE)
of right-of-use assets 17 (365) - - (194)
Impairment of investments in associates B2 AR 2 4 ZfE 588
Changes in fair value of investment BENELTEER
properties (4,305)
Capital expenditure* ARFX 47 39 - 99 185
o Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. i BARZBIERBYE  BEREE -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers

K& EE R @
i EE R
(a) RENIREEZUE

2022 2021
TBECCF —T——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Hong Kong B 30,335 41,546
Singapore s 1,011,722 1,196,033
Taiwan = 392 816
Indonesia e - 2,765
1,042,449 1,241,160

The revenue information above is based on the locations in which
the sales originated.

(b) Non-current assets

RS AR IR EHE EL T E

e

(b) FRBEE

2022 2021

—E-C8F —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET T

Hong Kong &% 1,304,715 1,148,556
Mainland China R B D 104,759 121,344
Singapore N 31,092 32,822
Korea B2 - 124
1,440,566 1,302,846

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments.

Information about major customers
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to 10%

LIERBEEERHREEMEIATHE

ERTEESRTA -

FREREFZEHR

KEBIERP (HAKE10%A L) ke

or more of the total revenue, is set out below: T :
2022 2021
s T —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Customer A ZPA 155,211 Note
Customer B =B 119,129 Note
Customer C =FC 118,608 Note

Note: For the year ended 31 March 2021, no revenue from the Group's sales to a
single customer amounted to 10% or above of the Group's total revenue.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

5. W@ - Atk AR Wz
Wz - M R Mezs 2 SATIT

2022 2021
—E-C8F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T3t
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWE
Semiconductor distribution FB a5 4K 1,012,713 1,190,417
Consumer product sales and product THBEE @IHE RE RREES
sourcing business 29,001 47,082
Others Hith 735 3,661
1,042,449 1,241,160
Revenue from contracts with customers REEEASY TS

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 March 2022

() WEERBHA

BE-—B-_—_F=ZA=+—HLEE

Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing
Segments distribution business Others Total
HEEERR
ik YERDH ERFRER Hit by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n T#n TiEn TiEr
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEPEH W= EE 1,012,713 29,001 735 1,042,449
Geographical markets HEMHS
Hong Kong B 1,537 28,063 735 30,335
Singapore g 1,011,176 546 - 1,011,722
Taiwan A - 392 - 392
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEFPEH W= EE 1,012,713 29,001 735 1,042,449
Timing of revenue recognition W B R 1 e
Transferred at a point i time WEERRESER 1,012,713 29,001 735 1,042,449
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

(@

For the year ended 31 March 2021

5. W -

H b g A R W= @

W - AR ARKEZ AT ¢ (8%
REFEFEHZ WS @

(0]

Wi & R ER AE (AD)

BT —F=A=1+—HILFE

Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing
Segments distribution business Others Total
HEBERR
pak:| FERENH EmREES At @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TiEr FHL TATL
Total revenue from contracts with customers RERFPEA MR ER 1,190,417 47,082 3,661 1,241,160
Geographical markets WEmE
Hong Kong &b 95 37,79 3,661 41,546
Singapore g 1,190,322 5,711 - 1,196,033
Taiwan AiE - 816 - 816
Indonesia Efe - 2,765 - 2,765
Total revenue from contracts with customers RERPEA MR ER 1,190,417 47,082 3,661 1,241,160
Timing of revenue recognition W B RE A e
Transferred at a point in time REER B SR 1,190,417 47,082 3,661 1,241,160

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

TRIRE AR E HERER 2 WR SR

(Bt AREHVIENAR) -

2022 2021
—E-C8F —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Revenue recognised that was included R AR EHIIEL
in contract liabilities at the beginning BERAME
of the reporting period:
Sale of products HEEMR 33,111 4,599

134 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 4



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 45 days of
issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms
are extended to over 60 days.

Provision of services

The performance obligation is satisfied when the services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 45 days of
issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms
are extended to over 60 days.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) are not disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements because all the remaining performance
obligations in relation to the sale of products are a part of
contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or
less.

5.

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

sk ~ AU R W @

Wzs - EAIRARIGEZ ST ¢ (4)

REFF SR Z WS @

(i) BREE
AEEBROEEARBIROT -

HEEm

BB FERNEMBER RN FRTE
BEHBI0EASRAE - EEERTHN
BRI - EERERZEBIE60X °

TEHARTE

BAE (ERE IR ARISHER RN FUR B
BEHBI0EASRNE @ EEERTH
BRI - EERERZEBIE60X °

ERAITHERES  DEEHRTENERE
(REZRC AR D RIZERK) MR S BB AR
RAMBWMRMENEKE - TIRMAAEH
EEMBRANSR TEOEERRIAHR
B—FERAREHH—FED -

Other income and gains H g A R Wz
2022 2021
—EC-C8f —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Bank interest income RITH BULA 21 33
Interest income on listed bond investments EWESHRE ZFBHA 564 2,589
Dividend income from listed equity investments — _EMZARE 2 f% B U A 11 1
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYZE - RE RERHERE 2 K=
plant and equipment 9 =
Rental income WA 4,362 4,151
Government grants (note) BRATHE B (I 5E) 668 3,823
Foreign exchange differences, net ME R ZRE R 281 853
Revision of a lease term arising from a change in &~ A] BifHHAR & 8y EE £ 2 FHEH Sk
the non-cancellable period of a lease 146 2,526
Compensation income from termination of IR B Y 2 i E A
acquisition of an investment property 4,434 -
Others EAh 2,068 2,629
12,564 16,615
Note: There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants. BT xS BN M A AR E A R s L Sk A T o
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31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

6.

136

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BREE AR A

AEE ZRBATRFI TR, GEA) AT S E

1BIZESN
2022 2021
—EC-CF T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Fisx TET FAT
Cost of inventories sold** SHE R AR 1,011,493 1,184,974
Reversal of provision for T8 R E R R E
impairment of inventories** (6,852) (726)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1%  BERRETE 12 1,479 1,467
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 12 2,000 2,171
Amortisation of other intangible assets* H A & 16 5 19
Lease payments not included in the R AHEREZFE
measurement of lease liabilities HFEERT 14 1,254 1,578
Revision of a lease term arising from a change MENA RS EEY
in the non-cancellable period of a lease HEHEMR 14 (146) (2,526)
Auditor's remuneration ZERII & 2,150 2,008
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration BTIRA(BRESHE
—note 8): —Fff5Es) :
Wages, salaries and other allowances IE - e kHEMER 41,588 53,095
Pension scheme contributions*** RIREFHEIE R+ 1,495 1,836
43,083 54,931
Impairment of financial assets, net: ERBEEZRE  FE
Impairment of a loan to an associate RIET—HEE QR ZERZRE 18 364 -
Impairment of trade receivables EWE ZERRZRE 21 32,657 1,138
33,021 1,138
Other expenses/(income), net: Hih BB,/ (RA) 558
Impairment of other intangible assets E@ﬁfﬂ/ﬁ%}mﬁ 16 342 -
Impairment of investments in associates REEE N R ZIE 2 BfE 18 - 588
Impairment of investments in joint ventures A%ﬁ%Z&ﬁZ/ﬁUﬁ 101,541 82,197
Gain on derecognition of financial guarantee BUERRMEBRE £z W
obligation (101,541) (82,197)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) WE - BERRERE CRER
of property, plant and equipment =) 12 10 (933)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) FREEERE/ (RERE)
of right-of-use assets 12 515 (194)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHRB ARz & 32 (1,256) -
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIELEKHB AR Z Wz 33 = (4,924)
Others Hoh 702 1,547
313 (3,916)
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets at fair &8 Hz NTEESIR 2 28
value through profit or loss, net BEZATEAEMS) BE
et (14,639) 17,983
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEZFE - FER (281) (853)
Gain on disposal of items of property, LEMX - BE k& HERA
plant and equipment 2 Wi (9) =
Direct operating expenses (including repairs WHIR B FEEE B S E
and maintenance), arising on rental-earning X (BIEHRE RIRE)
investment properties 723 915
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PROFlT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6.

This balance is included in “Administrative expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

xx These balances are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

***  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

%ﬁm%ﬂ@

BRI AR RERZ[TTHRER]
= ZEERTEIAGREBRRERZHERA]

ek WEGORM 2 HR AT EAREESEE BREE

employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. BEHRFOKFE
FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAE

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEKARZ AT :
2022 2021
—E:-——F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERZ B 9 794
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14) HEEEZFE (HFE14) 78 177
87 971

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

BEEFMRIVTMES2ER

EEHM

BIE ETARA - HEQFIEHIFE383(1)(a)
(b) * (QORMIERAR (FEZEEFZER R
FE2IW R FNESHHAT

2022 2021

—E-Cf —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Fees we 450 513

Other emoluments: HEa<e -

Salaries, housing and other allowances, Fie  BEREMZERLA

and benefits in kind REWMF = 15,055 14,337

Pension scheme contributions RIRESETEIER 690 597

15,745 14,934

16,195 15,447
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31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(@) Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive Directors during the

year are as follows:

(%)

EEHM @
(a) BUFHITES
FAXNTFEULIFRTESEZRENT ¢

EEFHRAVEMERS 2ER

2022 2021
—E-Cf —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHE T BT
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, PhD, sBS, JP S BAEES L » PhD » SBS + A4+ 150 150
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman Charles Edward Chapman’t4E 150 150
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund BURIS S AE 150 150
Mr. Wong Ka Kit (Note) mR A A (M) - 63
450 513

Note: the director resigned on 28 August 2020. Mzt : REEER-_ZE-_FTN\A=-+/\HEBHFE -

There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent

Non-executive Directors during the year (2021: Nil).

(b) Executive Directors

FRNWEEME B IENTES ZEE
(ZE=—F:8\) -

(b) BTES

Salaries,
housing and
other
allowances,
and benefits

Pension
scheme

Total

in kind contributions remuneration
e EER
HM2 R EREETE
BYF= R E Pk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET
2022 —E-—fF
Executive Directors: HITES -
Dr. So Yuk Kwan BEHE LT 9,329 404 9,733
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng BB E 2,587 129 2,716
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny RS A 3,139 157 3,296
15,055 690 15,745
2021 T4
Executive Directors: HITES -
Dr. So Yuk Kwan BEHE LT 8,985 330 9,315
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng B EEE 2,570 128 2,698
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny RS A 2,782 139 2,921
14,337 597 14,934
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive Directors (continued)
There was no other arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2021: Nil).

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2021:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2021: two) highest
paid employees for the year are as follows:

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

EEFMROUFHRS 2ES
(80
EEHMH )
(b) BTES ()
Py BHEE(ERE BRERR B HE
(ETHI 2 At (B —F 1) -

hfuFss RS

FA- AfuFE= 2 BERE= (=T =—
FZEF  EHFMFERENLEX - FRHE
g (CE-_—F : M) FHEs2EBEZ
BT

2022 2021

B8 —ET -4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBxT T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R EEYHE 4,679 4,051

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FMNTUATARz T E=IEESREEZA
R

Number of employees

EBE A"
2022 2021
s —E-—F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 702,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7c 22,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7C 23,000,000/ 7T 1 -
2 2

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

PR

BN ARERF AL EAFTEEE TR
A ISR RN SRR - EMitE
FERRTL ) A 2 IR TH IR A SR B & S F5 P e
FRERERZVEE -

2022 2021
s T —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT

Current — Elsewhere BNER — B fthit[=
Charge for the year FRZH 4,803 7,098
Deferred (note 28) JEIE (Mi7E28) 210 94
Total tax charge for the year FABIES 4878 5,013 7,192
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31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

9. INCOME TAX (continued) 9. Fi8Him@m
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax FRAARRRERIDME R BT M EERE
at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and ZIEEBEE 2 BRI AR A E A 2 BB
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the B ERMERAE 2 RIAX H 2 SR T ¢
effective tax rate is as follows:
2022 2021
—EB-CF —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FATT
Profit before tax FRA A o A 236,034 276,718
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% HBEEHE16.5% (CFE——4F : 16.5%)

(2021: 16.5%) SHEZHIA 38,946 45,658
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions ~ Efh BDEERR R =8 2 /2 529 155
Profits and losses attributable to joint ventures & & (>3 K& A B fE(S

and associates i M) R 1R (44,336) (52,305)
Income not subject to tax BRI A (4,065) (5,529)
Expenses not deductible for tax IRk aha 6,728 6,749
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 BIEEE 7,380 12,200
Others Hh (169) 264
Tax charge for the year FARIEZH 5,013 7,192

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and associates amounting

10.

DIERELERBERR ZEEHEAD R

to HK$57,486,000 (2021: HK$59,345,000) and Nil (2021: HK$13,000), 57,486,000 7C (ZZF = —4 : 59,345,000/%
respectively, is included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures T RE(ZEZ—F : 13,00087T) * EFtALR
and associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. SRBRAZDIEE EEE RIS QTR &
B -
DIVIDENDS 10. KR
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FARRR/DIEZIE
2022 2021
s —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET BT
Interim dividend declared and paid — HK$0.010 E2& JE&?HZEF‘H\QHQ 8 — G R
(2021: HK$0.010) per ordinary share 0.0108 T (ZZE=—% : 0.010%7T) 9,087 9,087
Final dividend declared and paid — HK$0.030 BT /)E&QHZ?EHJ?HQ 8 — G m
(2021: HK$0.025) per ordinary share 0.030& T (ZZ=—%F : 0.025%7T) 27,260 22,716
36,347 31,803
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in ARERERE  EEEZEREE T —_—F

respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 of HK$0.040 (2021: final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021 of HK$0.030) per
share has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

140
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11.
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
number of ordinary shares of 908,663,302 (2021: 908,663,302) in issue

12.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS ERAR MR

during the year.

The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for the

current year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

(—2-

— =

31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

ARAHEBABEEBREF

BREARBFSEIRBERNN IS ARIGE
Wi FI & N E 21T E BAYER H 908,663,302/%
—% 1 908,663,3020%) 5+ & -

ARRNAERYECRTABEYE 2 BHE

EER -

FIREAR RS BN TRIEA T BIERTE

2022 2021
B8 —E_—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FATT
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, RAFTEGRERREE R 2 AN AT
used in the basic and diluted earnings per EE AR
share calculation 231,021 269,788

Number of shares

RAEE
2022 2021
—E-F —ET-—%F
Shares B4
Number of ordinary shares in issue during ARG ESRERNRESRN 2 A
the year used in the basic and diluted BERITEERKREE
earnings per share calculation 908,663,302 908,663,302
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT- 12. ¥ - RERREUREAEEE
OF-USE ASSETS
2022 2021
—EC-Cf T4
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
LhEz FExT FAT
Property, plant and equipment Y - RE R (@) 6,384 7,098
Right-of-use assets EREEE (b) 23,359 25,273
29,743 32,371
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31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment

12. 1% - BERRBURCERAEEE

(%)

(@) %% - BMEKRE

Freehold
and and Furniture,
buildings fittings
Buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
(HongKong) ~ HongKong) improvements ~ equipment vehicles machinery Total
XA
BF  iHEETF HE G %ER
(BH) (BBUME) NEEE BOERE 2 ERERHS Rt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén Tén Thn Thn Thn TEn
31 March 2022 ZECCEB=1-H
At31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021:  R=B=—4=A=1-H
RZZ-—5WA-H:
Cost AR 5,409 8,876 8511 1531 7,759 1163 39,255
Accumulated depreciation ZERAE
and impairment (1,945) (6,229) (8,511) (7,344) (6,965) (1,163) (32,157)
Net carrying amount KR 3,464 2,647 - 193 79% - 7,008
At 1 April 2021, net of acumulated  R=E——%MWA-A
depreciation and impairment NBETERAE 3464 2,647 - 193 79% - 7,098
Additions hE - - - 776 - - 776
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) HE-FRBAR (132 - - = @ = = 2)
Depreciation (note 6) & (fio) (132) (767) = (168) (412) = (1.479)
Impaiment (note 6) /A (B350) - - = (10) = = (10)
Exchange realignment R - 4 - - 3) = 1
At 31 March 2022, net of accumulated R=F==F=F=+-H"
depreciation and impairment MR ZERAE 333 1,884 - 789 379 - 6,384
At 31 March 2022: RZEZZE=f=1-A:
Cost A 5,409 8,897 8,511 8,212 711 1163 39,973
Accumulated depreciation ZERAE
and impairment (2,077 (7,013) (8,511) (7,483) (7.382) (1,163) (33,589)
Net carrying amount KR 333 1,884 - 789 379 - 6,384
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31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-

OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
(@) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

12. 1% - BERRBURERAEEE

(%)

(@) W% - BMEKRE @

Freehold
land and Fumiture,
buildings fittings
Buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
(HongKong) ~ HongKong)  improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
KAFHE
85 THRET g & R%ER
(B  ERMME) VEE BREHE A8 BERER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
ThT T T Thn Thn Thr ThL
31 March 2021 ZET-EZA=1-A
At 1 April 2020: RZZ-ZFMA-A:
Cost A& 5409 8,370 9,682 7,845 7,108 1,163 40177
Accumulated depreciation ZERAE
and impairment (1813 (5,203) (9,682) (7,644) (6,452) (1.163) (31,957)

Net carrying amount EERE 3,59 3,167 - 201 1,25 - 8,220
At 1 April 2020, net of accumulated  R=Z=ZEMWA-R - 3k

depreciation and impairment ZHEREE 359 3,167 = 201 1,256 = 8220
Additions hE - - - 185 - - 185
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries AL ENBAR (HF33)

(note 33) - - (546) (450) - - (996)
Depreciation (note 6) & (Bito) (132) (701) - (157) (477) - (1,467)
Reversal of impairment (note 6) BERE (o) - - 533 400 - = 933
Exchange realignment S - 181 13 14 15 = 3
At31 March 2021, net of accumulated W=F=—=F=+-R"

depreciation and impairment MR ZEHTERAE 3,464 2647 - 193 79 - 7,09
At 31 March 2021; RZEZ-E=f=1-R:

Cost WA 5,409 8,876 8511 7537 7,759 1,163 39,255

Accumulated depreciation ZERAE

and impairment (1,945) (6,229) (8,511) (7,344) (6,965) (1,163) (32,157)

Net carrying amount EERE 3464 2647 - 193 79 - 7,08
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31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

12.

144

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

12.

WX BERRBUREREEE
(%)

(a) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (a) Y% - BERRE @
At 31 March 2021, the Group’s certain property, plant and R—_ZBE-_—F=ZA=+—H ' £&E
equipment and leasehold land included in right-of-use assets (note STAFAEEE (ME12(0) REER
12(b)) with a carrying amount of HK$23,762,000 were pledged 23,762,000/ 7T 2 Y%  FRfE K a&fE RAE
to secure general banking facilities granted to Group. BB FHEF  ERRTASEE 2 —K
RITEEZHER -
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AEEFRAEEEZEEERFALZBIM
movements during the year are as follows: T ¢
Leasehold Motor
land Buildings vehicles Total
AE Lt BF "E &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHAT FAT
As at 1 April 2020 RZZE-TFWPA—H 24,067 36 3,100 27,203
Additions NE - 257 - 257
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries  #/EHERBAT (#:33)

(note 33) - (200) - (200)
Depreciation (note 6) & (fisFe) (864) (174) (1,133) (2,171)
Reversal of impairment (note 6)  JR({ER[E (Fft556) = 194 = 194
Exchange realignment P 5= - (37) 27 (10)
As at 31 March 2021 and RZEZ—F=A=+—H

1 April 2021 hZZTZ—%/A—H 23,203 76 1,994 25,273
Additions NE - 787 - 787
Depreciation (note 6) & (fizEe) (864) (127) (1,009) (2,000)
Impairment (note 6) A (F3Ee6) - (515) - (515)
Revision of a lease term arising &S A $H EA M &

from a change in the EEZHEBHER

non-cancellable period of a

lease - (187) - (187)
Exchange realignment bEE i, SR - - 1 1
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZEB-—F=H=+—H 22,339 34 986 23,359

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s management identified certain R-—ZE—_—_F#=A=+—8 " $EIE’] il
subsidiaries which continued to sustain losses and estimated HAE THRAESS BB B R R T E
corresponding recoverable amounts of their property, plant and ME - HWE KK fﬁ%&@iﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ’ﬁﬁ )
equipment and right-of-use assets. Based on these estimates, WEEHE - RIEZEMT R-E-_—F=A

impairment losses of HK$525,000 (2021: reversal of impairment losses
of HK$1,127,000) were recognised to write down the carrying amounts
of these items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
to their recoverable amounts as at 31 March 2022. The recoverable
amounts were determined based on value-in-use calculations using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining
useful lives of the respective items of property, plant and equipment
and the remaining lease terms of the respective right-of-use assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

13. REY=

2022 2021

g5 T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Carrying amount at beginning of year FHZ2RERTE 128,085 120,437
Changes in fair value of investment properties  REWMENFEEZEH 7,415 4,305
Exchange realignment bE A% 1,165 3,343
Carrying amount at end of year S T 136,665 128,085

The Group's investment properties consist of one residential property
in Hong Kong, four office properties and several serviced apartments in
Mainland China and one residential property in Singapore. The directors
of the Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of three classes of asset, i.e., residential properties, office properties
and serviced apartments, based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property. The Group’s investment property in Hong Kong
was revalued on 31 March 2022 based on a valuation performed
by management with reference to recent market transactions at
HK$7,400,000 (2021: HK$6,800,000). The Group's investment
properties in Shenzhen and Chengdu were revalued on 31 March 2022
based on valuations performed by ValQuest Advisory (Hong Kong)
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer, at HK$76,366,000
(2021: HK$72,633,000) and HK$28,329,000 (2021: HK$26,735,000),
respectively. The Group’s investment property in Singapore was
revalued on 31 March 2022 based on valuation performed by TEHO
Property Consultants Pte. Ltd., independent professionally qualified
valuer, at HK$24,570,000 (2021: HK$21,917,000). Each year, the
Group's chief financial officer decides to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Group's
chief financial officer has discussions with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuations are performed
for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included on
page 196.

REEBZEEVEBEMNRESZ —BEEY
¥ MNRFEAZ WBERAENEREZER
BRABUARMRF NG 2 —BEEME - K
NAERHER  HBREWEZHE - FEHER
b ZEREMENEDA=EEE  BEF
EVE  BAEMERBRBERAASE - NEENL
EA%.E/%Z&QW%EB BEL2BEATIER
SETHE RZE_—_F=-HA=+—H=F
/57,400, ooo/%rc(_gz—i : 6,800,000
BID) o AEBA RN KK E 2 ZE YRS
ﬁiﬁiAiﬁWE@EﬂiﬂPaﬁ‘iﬁ(%i%)ﬁﬁﬁ
NEETHE RZZE-_—_F=A=+—H
S AlEE A76,366,000/8 (=T = —F :
72,633,000/ 7T) %28,329,000/8 L (=2 = —
% :26,735,000/87T) ° ANEEN R ING 2%
B FERELEEES ERGHERTEHO Property
Consultants Pte.Ltd E/THE - R ——
= A=+—HBE%24,570,0008 7 (=T =—
F :21,917,00087T) - NEBHEVFEES
FREZEZIINBEER  ABEEEAEEZY
% TONEBIEE - BURGGRREMSMNH - &
B MR EREETE  c RRFEM
ﬁ%Eﬁaﬁ&uﬂE@ET ZKEEEFHM‘MMFE,@
B ERT R G ERE RAELS

BREMEDRELEHERTFE =07 £—F
BIEFHBEHN RS MEWRMEE14 -

FRAAKEREME E—FFHBEHNE196
B o

Annual Report 2022 £3§ AV Concept Holdings Limited 145



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR YRt

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REVE@®
Fair value hierarchy NEEESHERE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRINFAEBEREY R Z A FEEAEER
the Group's investment properties: B

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2022 using
R-B--=A=t—-RHZ
AP EETERER
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SRR ™G ERAEE EBEARTAHEE
ZRE BWAE WAE
(£—/B) (B=B) (=) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value TR EIEZ &R T
measurement for: BEE :
Residential properties FEYHE - - 31,970 31,970
Office properties HENES Y ES - - 76,366 76,366
Serviced apartments R AE - - 28,329 28,329
- - 136,665 136,665
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2021 using
W-_E—_—F=ZA=+—HZ
N EBEFEREA
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E R T BAFEBRE BERATAEER
2B #/AE wAE
(B—/E) (E=/E) €= &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Recurring fair value TAFIEZEEERTF
measurement for: BETE -
Residential properties FEMH - - 28,717 28,717
Office properties I /NEL Y ES - - 72,633 72,633
Serviced apartments RS - - 26,735 26,735
- - 128,085 128,085
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2021: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

13. REVZE @)
AEEESEHERE@®
FR - F-EBEE_EATFEETEZMHLE
By EZENEAMNEARE#ER (T =—
F ) o

DE/ATFEBESHREE=E 22 HEEF

the fair value hierarchy: SHER :
Residential Office Serviced
properties properties apartments
EEYE WAEYE BREXAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2020 N_ZE_ZFMH—H
ZIRE© R 26,623 67,603 26,211
Net gains/(losses) from a fair value iv?/m\ﬁ R NER
adjustment recognised in the NEEEFE
consolidated statement of Wz, (B518) /358
profit or loss 868 5,030 (1,593)
Exchange realignment bE AR 1,226 - 2,117
Carrying amount at 31 March 2021 RZE-——F=A=+—H
and 1 April 2021 R=—ZE-—41HA—H
ZARE SRR 28,717 72,633 26,735
Net gains from a fair value adjustment F4RA Bk NFER 2
recognised in the consolidated AN EEFHER TR
statement of profit or loss 3,199 3,733 483
Exchange realignment b AR 54 - 1,111
Carrying amount at 31 March 2022 R-—ZT__$=H=+—H
ZIREEE 31,970 76,366 28,329
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13.

148

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

13. REVHE @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEESHERE@®
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs T X B £ B Y T ER TR A ER
to the valuation of investment properties: (P ER=T PN
Valuation Significant Value
techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
fh{E 9l ERFAEERMAE BB (InFEFE19)
Residential property situated Market comparison Adjusted unit price HK$13,780

in Hong Kong
INBREZ EEWHE

Residential property situated
in Singapore

RIRF b 2 (E W

Office properties situated
in Mainland China

RIR B A 2 H A=)

Serviced apartments situated
in Mainland China

2P B A IRIEA AR

Under the market comparison approach, the properties are valued on
the market basis assuming sales in their existing state with the benefit
of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based on
prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices of comparable
properties. Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the

approach

MHLLEUE

Market comparison
approach

MHLLEUE

Market comparison
approach

MiHLLEUE

Market comparison
approach

TS LLEUE

(per square foot) (20

21: HK$12,639)

KRR BN ERETAR) 13,780/ 7T
(ZZ=—% : 12,639/87T)

Adjusted unit price SGD22,973
(per square meter) (2021: SGD20,541)

B EBER (BF K

22,9735 N3 T

(ZZ=—4% : 20,541 ¥ b3 T)

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

R ENER (BT ITK)

RMB61,952

(2021: RMB61,353)
AR#61,9527C

(ZZ=——%F : AR*61,35371)

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

RHREEMER (EFT7K)

RMB21,141

(2021: RMB20,774)
AREE21,1417T

(ZZ=—%F : AR¥20,7747T)

”‘EME’*“MEE/R?Q
ERZAALBIHERE -

differences between such properties in terms of age, time, location,

floor level and other relevant factors.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted unit price would result
in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment

properties.
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14. LEASES AND LEASE LIABILITIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land,
buildings and motor vehicles used in its operations. Leasehold land has
lease term of 50 years. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms
between two and three years, while motor vehicles generally have lease
term of five years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

Details of right-of-use assets are included in note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements.

(a)

Lease liabilities

14. HERHEESS
AEBEEREBA

(a)

The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

HESE

AEEREZEERERNSERE L - B8F
MREHBFIVEERK - HELHHHAERS
506 - BFNHMBEEME=FZH ' M3
ENEPETERAT - —RM 5 - AEETRF
EARKBEAINEEMBEREEE -

EREEEF BRI G M BERAM T2 -

HEBENREERFAZEIHMNT

2022 2021
g T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
As at 1 April REA—H 1,645 6,712
New leases EE 787 257
Accretion of interest recognised FATEREIF]EIG 0 (F5E7)
during the year (note 7) 78 177
Payments (NE- (995) (3,013)
Revision of a lease term arising from a change F8& “~a] {3 £ £ fs &
in the non-cancellable period of a lease ELzHEREN (333) (2,526)
Exchange realignment bE H A% 6 38
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 1,188 1,645
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HE 2FHHH -
Current liabilities nEBE 698 870
Non-current liabilities FERBER 490 775
1,188 1,645
Within one year —FR 698 870
In the second year = 426 545
In the third to fifth years F=FRF 64 230
1,188 1,645
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39 to THEBENIE B DT E MR

the consolidated financial statements.

AE39FR I EE -
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14.

150

LEASES AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 14. HERHESE®
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBERAEA @
(b) The amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit or (b) FAENRGEIEZIRPERNSET|NN ¢
loss in relation to leases are as follows:
2022 2021
—E:-—F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 78 177
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 2,000 2,171
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of ERREEZRE (RERR)
right-of-use assets 515 (194)
Expense relating to short-term leases RHHEEENAX GTATTERER) *
(included in administrative expenses)* (fizE6)
(note 6) 1,254 1,578
Revision of a lease term arising from HETAIREE RS EE 2 HE!
a change in the non-cancellable &2k (fE6)
period of a lease (note 6) (146) (2,526)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss WIBEER 2 DR 3,701 1,206

*

Included in “lease payments not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities” in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

(c) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting of one
residential property in Hong Kong, four office properties and several
serviced apartments in Mainland China, and one residential property
in Singapore under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the
leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$4,362,000
(2021: HK$4,151,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

14. LEASES AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

15.

The Group as a lessor (continued)
At 31 March 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

14. HERHESEE®
AEBESEBEAN @
R-E-—F=A=+—H AEEHEBFLE
TSR] RSH B A2 FH & T B R SR HA FE B U A 2R B

tenants are as follows: WEERNRAT :
2022 2021
—E-C8F —ET -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within one year —FR 2,981 3,671
After one year but within two years e —FERFEAN 2,774 1,926
After two years but within three years HEmEE=FAN 886 =
6,641 5,597
GOODWILL 15. B
2022 2021
—EC- 8 T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
At beginning and end of year: FHRFR
Cost (DN 32,780 32,780
Accumulated impairment REHRE (32,780) (32,780)
Net carrying amount AR F A = =
Impairment testing of goodwill HEHE AR

Goodwill acquired through business combination are allocated to the
cash-generating units of the semiconductor distribution business and
the mobile application development business for impairment testing.
Goodwill was fully impaired in previous years.

BREBAHKBZHEEIEEFERENH
EBERTHREREAHBEEBLREELE
£ - EREAR - BEERNBEFEZE0R
-
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. HttEFLEE

Club Customer Mobile
memberships  Trademarks relationships  application Total
=t [l EFB%Z FREAEN &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET FET THET
31 March 2022 ZTCZf=fA=1-H
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021: RZZE-—F=A=+—HK
T —FEA-R:
Cost A 4,514 87 23,998 9,400 37,999
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 EELRE (682) (87) (23,998) (9,400) (34,167)
Net carrying amount HRE % 3,832 - - - 3,832
Cost at 1 April 2021, net of accumulated RZEZ—FMA—BRMA -
amortisation and impairment Nk 25t R E 3,832 - - - 3,832
Amortisation (note 6) 4 (FizEe) (5) = = = (5)
Impairment (note 6) A (Fizke) (342) = = = (342)
At 31 March 2022 RZEZ_4=A=+—H 3,485 - - - 3,485
At 31 March 2022: RZEZZF=A=1—H:
Cost A 4,518 87 24,200 9,400 38,205
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZEEELRE (1,033) (87) (24,200) (9,400) (34,720)
Net carrying amount AR % 3,485 - - - 3,485
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31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. Htt BT EE @
Club Customer Mobile
memberships ~ Trademarks  relationships ~ application Total
of (] EKPBFE FrEREN At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET FET FET FET
31 March 2021 —E-—F=f=1+—H
At 1 April 2020: RZZZZTFMA—R :
Cost BA 4,514 87 23,998 9,400 37,999
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZErEERRE (664) (87) (23,998) (9,400) (34,149)
Net carrying amount HRE %R 3,850 - - - 3,850
Cost at 1 April 2020, net of accumulated RZEZTFMA—AMMA -
amortisation and impairment MR 5T E RORE 3,850 = = = 3,850
Amortisation (note 6) i (FizEe) (19) = = = (19
Exchange realignment b o R 1 _ _ _ 1
At 31 March 2021 RZZEZ—F=A=+—H 3,832 - - - 3,832
At 31 March 2021: R=—ZE-—F=f=+—H:
Cost BRA 4,514 87 23,998 9,400 37,999
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 EELRE (682) (87) (23,998) (9,400) (34,167)
Net carrying amount HRE %R 3,832 - - - 3,832

During the year, certain club memberships were impaired due to the
decrease in market value. The directors had consequently determined
to recognise an impairment loss of HK$342,000 on certain club
memberships and their recoverable amount of HK$728,000 was
determined using the fair value less costs of disposal with reference to
the market price quoted for the relevant club memberships.

FR - ETEEBEDATERK EZEREE
EREE R A T 28R EE18342,000% Tl
LEREBSEMFENE  EAAFEERES
o 5 PR AN E 1R S5 MY AT UK [E] 2 B8 728,000/ 7T ©
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17.

154

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REELEZRE
2022 2021
ot S - T
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHETT
Share of net assets SMEBEFE 1,214,331 1,035,202
Financial guarantees provided (note 27) BRI ISR FiE27) 52,032 73,646
1,266,363 1,108,848
Particulars of the material joint venture are as follows: BAREEREFBOT
Percentage of
BO
Place of
incorporation Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name Issued share capital and business interest power sharing  activities
A BRTRA TR REXY HERRER REE  obEN  FEXK
AVP Electronics Limited 180,000,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 75 50 75  Trading of electronic
components
REARAH 180,000,000 i @A% BE BEETLH
The above joint venture has a financial year end of 31 December. tREECR I MBERERERAT A
The consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material =+—H - HGEUBEHRRER—H—BE=H
transactions between 1 January and 31 March. =T RZERRSELHE -
AVP Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “AVPEL FEBERARKEKE AR (G RIEEE])
Group”), which are considered a material group of joint ventures of the BEBAREZEAGERREME @ HESX
Group, are accounted for using the equity method. N
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17.

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

REETLEZRE@®

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of AVPEL Group adjusted for any differences in accounting policies

TRIRFREEEZHHERRE  CREFE
TR = 2IEH FAE) U R BRI IR AR

and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial H SR8 2 AR
statements:
2022 2021
g T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FATT
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEEEE 1,151,625 1,796,383
Other current assets Hitms&EE 7,275,908 7,749,140
Current assets MENEE 8,427,533 9,545,523
Non-current assets SEMEBNEE 158,903 109,365
Financial liabilities, excluding trade and PHEBEEEENE ZEX
other payables R H A FE ST 5RI8) (5.514,236) (6,306,296)
Other current liabilities Hitms B & (1,451,611) (1,967,218)
Current liabilities mENRE (6,965,847) (8,273,514)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (1,480) (1,105)
Net assets attributable to owners of REARARIEE ARIGEEFE
AVP Electronics Limited 1,619,109 1,380,269
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests BAREERN G B R R
in the joint ventures:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A& E R L 75% 75%
Group's share of net assets attributable AEEDHREBERARES A
to owners of AVP Electronics Limited EIEEEFE 1,214,331 1,035,202
Financial guarantees provided (note 27) BRI LR (i 5E27) 52,032 73,646
Carrying amount of the investments KEREEH 1,266,363 1,108,848
Revenue Wz 26,279,361 28,612,111
Interest income FEHA 220 3,091
Depreciation e (6,602) (5,261)
Interest expenses AEEH (73,233) (71,186)
Tax THIE (76,648) (79,127)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRmN R EERAERE
for the year 362,837 422,479
Dividends paid BEATARE 124,000 108,500
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18.

156

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. REFE QT 2KRE

2022 2021

ot S - T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Share of net assets DIhEEFE 4,530 7,952
Goodwill EES 1,878 1,878
Provision for impairment SE B (2,098) (2,098)
4,310 7,732

Loan to an associate REF—EEBE AR ZER 19,425 -
Provision for impairment SRE B (364) =
19,061 -

Due from associates JFE Uk B 4 R FOE 2,763 987

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the balances due from
associates approximate to their fair values. There was no recent history
of default for past due amounts for amounts due from associates. As
at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

A loan to an associate is unsecured, interest-bearing at 5% per annum
and repayable within two years. An impairment analysis is performed
as at 31 March 2022 by considering the probability of default of
comparable corporate bonds with published credit ratings. As at 31
March 2022, the probability of default applied was 3.0% and the loss
given default was estimated to be 61.5%. The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. As at 31 March 2022, the loss allowance
was assessed to be HK$364,000 (note 6).

One of the associates has a financial year end of 31 December and
the consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material
transactions between 1 January and 31 March. All other associates have
a financial year end of 31 March, which is coterminous with that of the
Group.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses
of certain associates because the share of losses of these associates
exceeded the Group's interests in these associates and the Group has
no obligation to take up further losses. The amount of the Group’s
unrecognised share of losses of these associates cumulatively at the end
of the year was HK$3,505,000 (2021: HK$3,109,000).
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31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REEE D F2RE @
In the prior year, an associate sustained losses for recent years. An R EEFE - —RBE R RRNIFERSERS
impairment of HK$588,000 (note 6) was recognised for the investments B - ENAIRESHERT  RNiEaBEaRT
in associates in the consolidated statement of profit or loss based on BURNESE & A B 2 1% & HERIR 1B 588,000/% 7T (Fff
the recoverable amount of nil, which was determined based on a 76) REBEFRAENESREEBHERERE
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial HEMPBEENRERERA 2 FEREEBT
budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year period. BEF) - HensBRlmAMERER12% -
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection was 12%.
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the TR RA R B E R S E K 2 Bk A Rl 2 Bt
Group’s associates that are not individually material: BERNEE
2022 2021
—EB-CfF T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHTT
Share of the associates’ (loss)/profit for the year D EEt & R EIF A (E1E) /@ F (3.422) 139
Share of the associates’ total comprehensive AMEHEARRE (BB WA RRE
(loss)/income (3,422) 139
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REEREE AR 2R ERALRRE
investments in the associates 4,310 7,732
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19.

PROFIT OR LOSS

gi@ﬁéﬁiﬁqzﬁﬁﬂ,ﬂﬁz%%ﬂiﬁ

2022 2021
—E- 8 T —4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FET FAT
Listed equity investments LRI E 1,635 2,547
Listed bond investments FRESEE (a) 1,186 33,040
Equity investment traded over-the-counter BN GG E (b) 25,144 9,375
Unlisted equity investments IE EMIRAIEE () 420 3,222
Key management insurance contracts FTEEBEABRBRED (d) 25,482 24,701
53,867 72,885

Analysed for reporting purpose as: HBEBNDTS
Current assets mENEE 28,385 48,184
Non-current assets EMBNEE 25,482 24,701
53,867 72,885
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31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The above listed equity investments, listed bond investments and an
equity investment traded over-the-counter were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

158

The key management insurance contracts were mandatorily classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

The unlisted equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as the Group has not irrevocably elected
to classify the unlisted equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Notes:

(@)

The listed bond investments have coupon rates ranging from 8.00% to 8.75%
(2021: 4.70% to 8.75%) per annum and maturity dates from 28 September
2022 to 6 March 2023 (2021: 19 April 2021 to 28 September 2022).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had equity interest in Tooniplay Co., Ltd.
(“Tooniplay”), which principally engaged in mobile game development
business.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held more than 20% equity interests in
Tooniplay, which was an associate of the Group. As this associate was held as
part of the venture capital organisation’s investment portfolio, it was carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. This treatment is
permitted by HKAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures" which
allows investments held by venture capital organisations to be excluded from its
scope where those investments are designated, upon initial recognition, as at
fair value through profit or loss and accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 9,
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period of change.

The Group has equity interests principally in Urban City Joint Stock Company
(which principally engaged in e-commerce business in Vietnam) and
Connectivity Ventures Fund, LP (which was an investment fund and principally
invested in development of microchips business).

As at 31 March 2022, the key management insurance contracts represented
life insurance plans with investment elements relating to two members of
key management personnel of the Group and the joint venture. The total
sum insured is US$15,800,000 (approximately HK$122,800,000) (2021:
US$15,800,000 (approximately HK$122,800,000)) with an annual minimum
guaranteed return of 2%. Certain key management insurance contract of
HK$8,233,000 (2021: HK$7,990,000) was pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group as at 31 March 2022.

As at 31 March 2022, if the Group withdrew from the insurance contracts,
the accounts value, net of surrender charges of US$324,000 (approximately
HK$2,517,000) (2021: US$340,000 (approximately HK$2,642,000)), would be
refunded to the Group. The amount of the surrender charges decreased over
time and was no longer required from the 19th year of contract conclusion
onwards.
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BAEEDEAEBRERRATBEIEYS
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MEX TR/ ASRHE -

FELETRARE DB RBEBRBEERAFEET
R eBEE - REZASELE T HEHD
BESFELTERARERDEREBREMEE
WA A TFEEDIER -

it

(a) EESFKRENEEFFEN F8.00%%£E8.75%
—E - :470%%8.75%) c ARHIA=-Z
ZFANAZHN\BEZZE-_=F=AACZ
——F: T —FWATABE=T=_=Fh
A=+N\H) -

(b) R-ZT-_—F=F=+—H ' A&EERTooniplay
Co., Ltd. ([Tooniplayl) &k #E @ Z AR EEH
TREN T IERBA T 2R o

R=ZFE=Z—F=A=+—HB £A£EBHH
TooniplayiBi820% &4 * Tooniplay &4 5 B 2 B
BAF] c ARZBE AR NERAIRMAKZIZE
HE—BARFH - WRNGREMBRARANIERTF
BESIER - EEF NERB ST ERIE285% (R
BERFIREEDEZREI NG ZERFFAIH
HAIRARR A ZRERVIIRERREIRE RS
BEREATEBYE  WRBESMBRELE
AIEIRAR - MEAFBEZHNELZHHN
ZIREBRRER  ANZERESILHERE
.

© RAFFEZEHEAUrban City Joint Stock Company
(FBEMRIEEETREBER) RConnectivity
Ventures Fund, LP (BIREES kT BIREEREM
R ST OB -

(d) R-_E-_—_F=ZA=+—8 TEZEBAER
BMENERAEERGECEMBETEERE
ABEBNBEN ARRKRTE - RIRBER
15,800,0003 7T, (49122,800,000 7T) (— T ——
£ : 15,800,0003 7T (49122,800,000% L))
FERERERLREA2% - R_TE-_—_F=A4
=+—H HETEEEEABRKERAE4S8,233,000
BT (=T =—% : 7,990,000/ T) B &I AES
BRI AEEN—MRIRTRE ©

RZZBZZF=A=+—8 ' WAEEELRRE
G4 - RIRPEBERINKRERE324,000% 7T (4
2,517,000 7) (ZZF=—% : 340,000% 7T (47
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INVENTORIES 20. F&

2022 2021
g5 T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FAT
Finished goods BUAK 44,797 33,736

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BEWE Z R
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FAT
Trade receivables EUE Z RN 53,203 46,832
Impairment DERIE] (44,604) (11,946)
8,599 34,886

The Group’s trading terms with customers vary with the type of
products supplied. Invoices are normally payable within 30 to 45 days
of issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to over 60 days. For customer-specific and highly specialised
items, deposits in advance or letters of credit may be required prior
to the acceptance and delivery of the products. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise
credit risk. A credit committee consisting of senior management and
the directors of the Company has been established to review and
approve large customer credits. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

REBER PRI 2 X5 IEKR T4 2 B am
BERIMAMTR - RFBEANERE LIR30
EASRAXN  EBRIRARBHEZRS
ZRBBIAEEBIBE0R - B EEF R hlE
ERER/EFIZIAR - EEMR] BRI NER
Z AR AN RS HFRALERE - BREP
BREFEELR - ﬂi‘ﬁlﬁﬁxTE*H&@Zﬁﬁ
Hﬁlaxlﬁ;%iﬁ@%i%? B - I HIEEEE FIERER

EBREEERR BARARZERERE
&é%iﬁfﬂzZEf‘f CEGEERY - UEHR
HEEPRBEREE - EX0 EXA - ARAKSE
lZEH&%ﬁ%%mEﬂ%%{%yﬂ’ﬁ%&Z%ﬁﬁ
W Ay ESREREERR - AEELR
RREERTFAEMNERRAEMEERA
W) o B E SRFTEHE -
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is

BE”QE 2 E'E/TA(,.E

ENEER R NGREBERE

R EHER

2 JEM B SRR BRI AATIAT -

as follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH&T Tt
Within 1 month 1MEAMA 7,814 11,079
1 to 2 months 12218 A 44 3,573
2 to 3 months 22318 A 96 376
3 to 12 months 3E12{E A 327 15,456
Over 12 months FBiE 1218 A 318 4,402
8,599 34,886
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade FEWE SRR 2 BBEBIEREZSNAT
receivables are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-F T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET Tt
At beginning of year F1) 11,946 10,808
Impairment losses, net (note 6) EEE - 5 (KisEe) 32,657 1,138
Exchange realignment bE 5, = 1 _
At end of year FXR 44,604 11,946

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BEWEZ R @
For trade receivables relating to accounts which are long overdue B R A B SRR A B ANE (2R &R
with significant amounts with known insolvencies or non-response JEERBUIEE 2 R B A2 BINE H R
to collection activities, they are assessed individually for impairment S EE T ARERENT °
allowance as follows.
Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Loss Carrying
rate amount allowance amount
HHEE
BER=E REAE EiERE FREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 March 2022 R-E__F=A=+—H
Credit impaired =ERE 98.93% 44,382 43,906 476
As at 31 March 2021 MZZE-_—F=A=+—H
Credit impaired EERIE 100.00% 10,882 10,882 =
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TREFERBEERESTHEBREREEE
Group's non-credit impaired trade receivables using a provision matrix: BEREMNEKEZRERNEERRHER
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZB--H=A=1—H
Past due
B
Less than 1t03 3t0 12 Over
Current 1 month months months 12 months Total
WE  SR-ER -Z=@A =E+=fE8 +t=EANL &%
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRX 0.04% 18.00% 34.72% 44.81% 63.96% 7.91%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(THT) 7335 100 193 799 394 8,821
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) EHEEEE(TET) 3 18 67 358 252 698
As at 31 March 2021 R-—ZE_—F=A=+—H
Past due
Less than 1t03 3t0 12 Over
Current 1 month months months 12 months Total
e PR—ER —Z=f7 =2+=fAR +-EANUE a3
Expected credit loss rate HHEEEER 0.22% 0.99% 1.29% 4.12% 29.58% 2.96%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(THT) 11,064 3,545 4,479 15,868 994 35,950
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) EHEEEE(TEL) 24 35 58 653 294 1,064
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22.

162

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

22. FEfI™IE >

BE Rk EARYRRR

2022 2021

ot S - T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FHTT

Prepayments TEfFRIR 979 23,400
Deposits and other receivables B REMEWTRIA 22,602 20,501
Impairment allowance RER = (4,946)
23,581 38,955

Portion classified as non-current: DERIERE 2D -

Prepayments and deposits AN FIERIES (1,716) (23,910)
Current portion mENEL 21,865 15,045

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits and
deposits with suppliers. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. The loss rate applied for where there are no comparable
companies and the balances were in default as at 31 March 2022
was nil (2021: 100%) on the gross other receivables of nil (2021:
HK$4,946,000) before impairment allowance. The Group assessed the
loss allowance for deposits and other receivables of HK$22,602,000
(2021: HK$15,555,000), for which there was no recent history of
default or past due amounts, under the application of HKFRS 9 was
insignificant.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

Ze REMBKFGIEEBEREERS R
7o  REREAH  AEBERABBRET
2EZREERNBEBBLSETREDN - &
BEREREE R RED AEURBRE FTAR &
HARREEARROTER - R_FT-_—_F=A
=+—H EEAUELRARIREHENNE
SN - prEE th E IR AR EE (BN R E B
A1) (ZZ = —4F : 4,946,000 7t) I £ 57 A /5
BR(ZEZ—F : 100%) - NEBFHE © B
BBV IEHRELERFOSREF - 1S KT
R 0 8% ok 180 HA BB -« E Ath FE UK 518 22,602,000
BT (ZZ = —4 : 15,555,000 7T) &5 18 7
EIRTED -

Hit WSR2 R ERRRERSHMT

2022 2021

—EC-Cf —E-—4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TH&T FAET

At beginning of year F47 4,946 5,016
Amounts written off as uncollectible {EA AT IR [ SRIE 5 (4,946) (70)
At end of year FR - 4,946
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME
DEPOSITS

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

23. e RERBREHEB RERFR

2022 2021

—E-F T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FATT

Cash and bank balances B RIRITET 151,309 123,678
Deposits with other financial institutions RE M & BTS2 77K 919 620
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkERBELIER 152,228 124,298

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to approximately
HK$29,680,000 (2021: HK$448,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks and other financial institutions with no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

RIEMEERE - AEBUAREB(TAR
) EHE2 R e MRTTATF ) /529,680,000
JL(ZZ = —14F : 448,000/870) - ARBAAH
REBRAEMEY - A - RIEFBERHZ
EERIEOIRAERE  SERMESEHRT - A
SESBEREEITINEER ZRITIEAR
B SRR E A ER o

FRRIETZRERBRITZEBFRAE -
BFBAERDAE - RRAEHAFRNF—H
EZ@ATE  DRIAKEZAKREFH
EME - WRE B 258 BT 877 3R = GRERF
B o BEDEBNMEERFZRIT RO AL &
R FLER 2 BA & RS -

4. J{Eﬁ%ﬁ%,ﬂﬁfk s BREERESE

2022 2021

—EC- 8 T4

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT FHTT

Trade payables FERTE SR 4,277 4,990
Deposits received Bilizs 1,320 2,357
Accrued expenses FEETE 18,251 21,268
23,848 28,615
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24.

25.

164

TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 24,

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

ENEZERR ERIREREGTE
A @

BENZEEE  REEHERK Y ERE S
BRE 2 BREA DI

2022 2021
B8 —E 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade payables: FERTE SRR
Current BNER 2,587 437
1 to 30 days 1230H 26 =
31 to 60 days 31£60H 7 76
Over 60 days tBiE60H 1,657 4,477
4,277 4,990
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled FENBSERTI TR —RN30E90H N4
between 30 and 90 days. =
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. EHEE
2022 2021
—EC-Cf —E-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Short-term advances received from customers AU 5= 2 B0
Sale of products SHE E m 20,559 36,410
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver BHEBEREAREFERENEEREERME

semiconductor and consumer products. At 1 April 2020, contract
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$5,785,000. The increase/
decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 and 2021 was mainly due to the
increase/decrease in short-term advances received from customers in
relation to the sale of products at the end of the year.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26. MtEEBITER
2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F
Effective Effective
annual annual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
BRERE )] Thr ERERE Eoif] T
Current i)
Import and trust receipt loan — unsecured EORETNEER - EHH 1.85% 2022 6,435 = = -
2022 2021
s T —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Analysed into: PR
Bank loans repayable within one year or on —FANREREER
demand ZRITER 6,435 =
All the Group's bank borrowings bore interest at floating rates and NEB 2 A RITERTIRHRE BRH)ZE A
denominated in United States dollars at the end of the reporting period. KA BIWAETEE - NEB 2K ERITER
The carrying amounts of the Group'’s interest-bearing bank borrowings ZEESEEAE N EBERES -
approximate to their fair values.
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION 27. BIBEREE

During the year, the Group has provided financial guarantees to joint
ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted to these joint
ventures, and the Group will make payments to reimburse the lenders
upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments when due. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
the guarantees.

The Group does not provide financial guarantees except for limited
circumstances. All guarantees are approved by the Board of Directors.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of the
ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less the cumulative
amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the holders (i.e. the banks) for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the debtor (i.e. the joint ventures). The amount initially recognised
representing the fair value at initial recognition of the financial
guarantees was based on the valuation from an independent valuer
engaged by the Group. The method used in determining the fair value
of these guarantees was by reference to the recovery rate and key
financial ratio of the guaranteed entity.

Annual Report 2022 %3 AV Concept Holdings Limited

FA - AEERSECRERZBTEREE
AZERELRREMBER  HIXERZE
BEINHEREES  AKERAESENE
Ko AEBEWARARZFRERFTEEMERRK
HAbRCEE M -

BERIERIN - REBTNMREMBER - A
BEROCESE=SHE -

B EREODRAREEBRRE YT HE
REBRRCERBAZRFEBUBRETER
BE)HE - BHEERBEBERNRESERZ
Mttt & - EDRBHER B A CVRTT) BLAT
ELEREERZARFE  BEAANEEES
REBA B ERE) W2 EREETE -
VRS BRNTERMBEERE 2 QX FE
B DIREAREBGE 2B (EM 2 HEE
- BRETHEERATFEEZHENZE
RERERZMREE T BB REL -

165



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR YRt

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

27. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION (continued) 27.

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contracts is classified as
stage 1. During the year, there were no transfers between stages.

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

28.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:

/\jﬁ%?ﬁ{% §1I (nﬁ
MBRRANZEERREDBESF M - F
A - BEER G R A o

EEHERE

TR EEHEBERBZZEOT

166

Revaluation

of properties

YEEFHE

HK$'000

FHTT

At 1 April 2020 RZZZFFMA—H 14,298
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FANHIREGFEERERZ

statement of profit or loss during the year EIEFIE (F15E9)

(note 9) 94
Exchange realignment DE 34, (26)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R—ZZE-_—F=A=+—8k

— - —%A—H 14,366
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FANHIREFEERRZ

statement of profit or loss during the year EIEFRTE (F1EE9)

(note 9) 210
Exchange realignment bE A% (1)
At 31 March 2022 R-ZB-Z-F=A=t+—H 14,575

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$638,534,000 (2021: HK$600,220,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which losses arose. The Group also has unrecognised
tax losses arising elsewhere of approximately HK$22,616,000 (2021:
HK$22,996,000) that will expire during 2022 to 2027 (2021: 2021 to
2026) for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
in respect of these losses have not been recognised as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and, in the
opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable that sufficient
future taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.
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7o)+ AIER A AER R BIE 2 AR Z KK
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29.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2022, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2021: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of the Group's subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

28. EEFIEE E @)
BERECLFEFE  RANRREESE
5 8 7 R B P MR ST 7 N B 1 2 7 Bk B
10%BHH - BEARTE -T2 \F—F—H
AW WEAR-_ETtE+-A=+—8
ETEE L 2 B o i FR B PO B ONEL IR B BT
BAEER 2 WTARBHE - AAIRRIER
B REH - RAEETS - @ABERA%H
10% o Bl - A= EARZ A B R AL S
THEHBARNA -—ST/\F—A—AEE
7 BFSR 2 RSENTER -

RZZE_—_F=A=+—H ' ®AEEZKE
ANE] - BERRRAELERELERZ BN
REmns  TESEAAERECHEAGECE

——F -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of AR E A e E ([ H R ROR RS E £ S
dividends by the Company to its shareholders. i o
SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Shares 8l
2022 2021
—EC-C8f T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Authorised: JETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares 2,000,000,0008& FAXEIE
of HK$0.10 each 0.10 7T 2 EilmAX 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
908,663,302 ordinary shares 908,663,302 FAREE
of HK$0.10 each 0.10/87T 2 EimAk 90,866 90,866

Details of the share option schemes of the Company and the
subsidiaries and the share options issued under these schemes are
included in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RRR M B R 2 AR 8 R IEZ E A
BT ZBREFBRNGE M BHRRME
30°
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30.

168

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted by the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “AV Scheme"”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the AV Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including the Independent Non-executive Directors, other employees
of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, any person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support to the Group, any non-controlling interests in
the Company'’s subsidiaries, any advisor or consultant to any area of
business or business development to the Group and any other group or
class of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangements to the
Group. The AV Scheme became effective on 3 August 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the AV Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 30% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the AV Scheme
(excluding any which have lapsed) and any other schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the ordinary shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of the adoption of the AV
Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the AV Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the Independent Non-executive Directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after the
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than the expiry
date of the AV Scheme.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company (continued)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no outstanding
share options and no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the AV Scheme (2021: Nil).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
Company had no outstanding share options under the AV Scheme.

Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries

On 5 August 2013, 830 Lab Limited (the “830 Lab"”) adopted a share
option scheme (the “830 Lab Scheme”). Under the 830 Lab Scheme,
830 Lab may grant options to any of its full-time employees and
directors and any eligible persons as defined therein to subscribe for the
respective ordinary shares of 830 Lab.

On 1 February 2021, Whizoo Media Limited (the “Whizoo Media")
adopted a share option scheme (the “Whizoo Media Scheme”). Under
the Whizoo Media Scheme, Whizoo Media may grant options to any of
its full-time employees and directors and any eligible persons as defined
therein to subscribe for the respective ordinary shares of Whizoo Media.

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

0. BREE @

R BERN 2 B IR 8 (@D
BREZTEERESEE  EFELIR :30)
ARRBMNERERNARERTERERS
FrAER AR ([BEF]) 2 W fE  B(i)A AR
BOREZZHAMMAERS B EBRMAZ
FHRTEMET 2BSE

B B TR E ARBR RSN BRRAE
ERRZBER

R EHEERE - ARERAVET B8R T
- FHEIKRH(CEZ—F | o

RAYEZFHREMBHRRE R - ARBRAVEH
878 TR 1 R AT PERB AR

B8 A B HR AN 2 B AR RE ST &l
R-ZT—=9%)\AFA 830 Lab Limited ([830
Labl) FRan g AR 5T 21 (830 LabgtEl]) B
830 Labzt2E! » 830 LabA] [ E TR 2 B{EES K
EEPAKS30 LabsTEIFTAE 2 EAE BB AL
FH BN - DAGREEARFE 2830 Lab i imAR -

RZ=ZZF=—F=H—H ' Whizoo Media Limited
([Whizoo Medial) £R#/ 4 B g5t 8 ([Whizoo
Mediazt#l]) B #EWhizoo MediaztZl -
Whizoo Media®] mEERIZBEE MESFAK
Whizoo Mediazt&IFTFE 2 F A& EBE AT
LR RE - AREBFEFE 2 Whizoo Media i

B e
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30. BRERT S @
Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued) Bt 1B A Bl ER AR 2 B AR R 5T 21 (43)
830 Lab Scheme 830 Labzt &l
The following share options were outstanding under the 830 Lab F W - 7830 Labzh&ITE TN ARITEE < FERR#E A
Scheme during the year: T
Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise Exercise
At Granted Lapsed Exercised Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price of
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share share
of participant 2021 the year the year the year the year the year 222 share options options options
SRENL e 3 e 3 ke BhE  BRE
& BA-B  REARE  RERAN REAEGE  REAEE  WNERER ZA=t-H RiAH T (i
(both dates HKS
inclusive) per share
(BEBEMA) BRET
Director of 830 Lab and
the Company
830 LabR AT 2 ES
So Chi Sun Sunny 220,000 = = = = = 220,000 5 August 2013 6 September 2015 80
i ZE-=ENARA  to5August 2023
ZZ-RENASA
ES
“EC-=E)\AEA
Employees of 830 Lab 15,000 - (15,000) - - - - 5August 2013 6 September 2015 8.0
830 Lab EE ZT-=EN\ARA  to5August 2023
ZZ-RENARA
ES
“E-=E)\ATA
Tota 235,000 - (15,000 - - - 220000
it

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the

commencement of the exercise period.
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31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30. ARSI )
Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued) Bt B A Bl ER AR 2 B AR RE 5T 21 (3)
830 Lab Scheme (continued) 830 Labzt &l (%)
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
IR II(TREE BREHE ETIHTEE BRERE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T
per share per share
S SR
At beginning of year =] 8.0 235 8.0 235
Lapsed during the year FRRB 8.0 (15) N/A =
TiEA
At end of year R 8.0 220 8.0 235

During the year, 15,000 share options (2021: Nil) were lapsed during
the year and non-controlling interests of HK$$645,000 (2021: Nil) were
transferred to retained profits accordingly.

The fair value of the share options granted during prior years was
HK$12,453,000, which was fully recognised by the Group in prior years
since all share options granted had been vested during prior years.

At the end of the reporting period, 830 Lab had 220,000 share options
outstanding under the 830 Lab Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
830 Lab, result in the issue of 220,000 additional ordinary shares of 830
Lab and additional share capital of 830 Lab of HK$1,760,000 (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, 830
Lab had 220,000 share options outstanding under the 830 Lab Scheme,
which represented approximately 31.0% of 830 Lab'’s shares in issue as
at that date.

Annual Report 2022 %3 AV Concept Holdings Limited

FAN 15,0000 BRECE=_—F : H)ER
FRLRRY - FEIERAEZE645,0008 T (Z T ——
F 8 BREERERBET -

RBAAFEREHZEREZAFTEEA
12,453,000 « BREHE R L BERED R
BAFERE  FALANEERBEFERERE
REBAFEE-

RS BRI 45 3R A » 830 Lab#830 LabitEI1E
T Z WARTTERERES B £220,00013 © £830
LabIRBs Z IRANZEME T » ABEITE M AT ZIE
RS S B R B A SN 1T 220,000/%830 Labi i@
f% - WEL1,760,00078 70,2830 LabZEIMNEA
(BRETATFSZAD o

R EZSRETBEHREER » 830 Labi
830 LabitEIE T 2 M ARITHEERESE A
220,00017 * HHE K830 Labi % H B E1TR% 1D
#931.0% °
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued)

Whizoo Media Scheme

The following share options were outstanding under the Whizoo Media

30. BRESTE @)

B B HR AN 2 BB B RE ST B ()
Whizoo Mediast&]
F R - AWhizoo MediaztE|1B T AR1T6 2 BB

Scheme during the year: R
Number of share options
BHELR
Exercise Exercise
At Granted Lapsed Exercised Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price of
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share share
of participant 2021 the year the year the year the year the year 222 share options options options
SRENL e 3 e 3 ke BhE  BRE
il BA-B  REARE  RERAN REAEGE  REAEE  WNERER ZA=t-H RiAH T i@
(both dates HKS
inclusive) per share
(BEBEMA) BRET
Employees of Whizoo 300 - (200 - - 100 1TFebruary2021 2 February 2023 121.66
Media and total to 1 February 2031
Whizoo MediaZ EE R e S s e St
5 z
ZF=-%-f-A

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the

Mia: BREZEEDARE BHETESRNZH

commencement of the exercise period. fi] ©
2022 2021
—E-CF T4

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
IR (T REE BREHE EFETRE BRERE
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T

per share per share

SR Bk
At beginning of year F4) 121.66 0.3 N/A -

T
Granted during the year FRRH - - 121.66 0.3
Lapsed during the year FRRK 121.66 (0.2) N/A -

NiEA
At end of year FR 121.66 0.1 121.66 0.3

In the prior year, the fair value

of the share options granted was

HK$22,000 (HK$74.6 each), of which the Group recognised non-
controlling interests of HK$2,000 (2021: HK$2,000) during the year

ended 31 March 2022.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30. RS @
Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued) Bt B X R ER A 2 BB IR R o &I ()
Whizoo Media Scheme (continued) Whizoo Mediazt & ()
During the year, 200 share options (2021: Nil) were lapsed during FA 2000 ERECE—F : |)ERFA
the year and non-controlling interests of HK$$1,000 (2021: Nil) were KR - JEE RS 1,0008 T (2= —4F « &)
transferred to retained profits accordingly. EABFEE RS (RE & A ©
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted in the prior year REFERBREEEERE 2 AFEBETIR
was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking REBHERAZEAER - L5 RERHER
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were B 2 ERRAG M AR o FTRIVREXFFE
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used: RaEAE :
2021

—E_—fF
Dividend yield (%) & BUam = (%) -
Expected volatility (%) TEERR 1R(%) 84.717
Risk-free interest rate (%) R B2 A (%) 0.677
Expected life of options (year) FE AR TR HAF B (4F) 10
The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of the BN 2 TR BN — E R FA A e KR A1 T (8
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility was determined R o THEURIE T A EEREFHaME
by using the historical volatility of comparable companies’ share prices HHRAE L RARRERELIKEEE - 77D
corresponding to the terms of options from the valuation date, which —TEREBER -
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the BMEERLBRENEMISEERNARAEBEZ
measurement of fair value. FTEF o
At the end of the reporting period, Whizoo Media had 100 share R4 HARE 45 R EF © Whizoo MediaiAWhizoo
options outstanding under Whizoo Media Scheme. The exercise in Mediazt 2118 T 2 M ARITEERESE £100
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital 13 ° FEWhizoo Mediali 2 JRAZEE T + BE
structure of Whizoo Media, result in the issue of 100 additional ordinary 1T M ARTITE 2 BB S B SUEEEINEETT 100
shares of Whizoo Media and additional share capital of Whizoo Media f&Whizoo MediaE @ » WEAE12,00087T 2
of HK$12,000 (before issue expenses). Whizoo MediaZBYM& AN (FNER 21T S Bl ©
At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, MR Z SR G SR E B+ Whizoo Media
Whizoo Media had 100 share options outstanding under the Whizoo R Whizoo Mediazt ST T 2 i AR 17 {5 BE AR A L
Media Scheme, which represented approximately 1.0% of Whizoo B A&10019 + #8E MWhizoo Mediai#% H E %
Media’s shares in issue as at that date. 1IRRH %91.0% ©
RESERVES 31. f#E

31.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 87 to 88 of the consolidated financial
statements.
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32.

174

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

32. HE—BEMNEBAFE

2022
—EBC-CF
HK$'000
FTHET
Net liabilities disposed of: BEHEFEE

Property, plant and equipment (note 12) W - BB KRR (FEE12) 2
Cash and cash equivalents RekEFRREER 546
Inventories FE 293
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRFK 684
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE © Be REAEWGRIE 248

Trade payables, deposits received and accrued BB ZER  BElldze REFTER
expenses (3,029)
(1,256)
Fair value of investment retained upon disposal HERFTREBIRE 2 A THEE -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 6) & —RHNEB AR Z ks (FIsEe) 1,256

Satisfied by cash

AR E &1

* This item was with amount less than a thousand.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the disposal of a subsidiary was as follows.

* WHEBEEIR—T -

ZREFEIAT

FRLE-—RNBRARNAERERREEAR

2022
—EB-CHF
HK$°000
FHET
Cash and bank balances disposed of and EHERS RRITEFUR
net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AL E—RNBARNRE R
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ZRBSEE 2 FE (546)
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33. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

In the prior year, E-gogo Holdings Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group before 2 November 2020, entered into
subscription agreements with E-GoGo Limited and Signeo Design
International Limited, which were wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group, and three independent third parties, pursuant to which E-GoGo
Limited and three independent third parties agreed to participate
in capital injection in E-gogo Holdings Limited. Prior to the capital
injection, the Group held 69% equity interest in E-gogo Holdings
Limited, which had a wholly-owned subsidiary, namely PT Egogo Hub
Indonesia. After the completion of the capital injection on 2 November
2020, the Group retained 49.375% equity interest in E-gogo Holdings
Limited and had lost control over E-gogo Holdings Limited. The
transaction was accounted for as a deemed disposal of subsidiaries and
the 49.375% equity interest in E-gogo Holdings Limited was accounted
for as investments in associates.

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

33. RIFHEHNBLT

R4 - E-gogo Holdings Limited (R =Z ==
F+—AZBRIARKEN—[HIF2EMRBLR
a)) AL E 2 B R FE-GoGo Limited &
Signeo Design International Limited @ AR =
FEIUE=TTRIMLRE W - EUL - E-GoGo
Limited 2 =& B 5 = A A E L ERE-gogo
Holdings Limited)¥& » iF&E 2/l + A&
B E-gogo Holdings Limited#)69 %A% #E - i
E-gogo Holdings Limited#¥8 —E2&ME A
FIPT Egogo Hub Indonesia « A = F — T &+ —
RZBZBOFE R - NEE{RE AR E-gogo
Holdings Limitedf)49.375 % % # 18 32 2K ¥
E-gogo Holdings Limited K454 - XS E
AR VE L E M B A & ABR & E-gogo Holdings
Limited#)49.375 % BAEIRTA B & A RIFIRE A

2021

S5

HK$'000

FTHET

Net assets disposed of: BEHEFEE
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use W - BB &R R AEEE FizE12)

assets (note 12) 1,196
Cash and cash equivalents RekEFRREER 1,561
Trade receivables JEWE 5B 2,406
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR -~ e REMEKREIR 1,840
Due from a fellow subsidiary L — ] [B) 2 [T /a8 A RIZE 105
Other payables and accrued expenses Hoith FE A 5UIE R FERT & A (1,799)
Due to a fellow subsidiary JERT—FRER R M B A B ZIE (1,829)
Non-controlling interests EEaliig T (1,079)
2,401

Exchange fluctuation reserve P 3, 8% Eh i 4 108
Fair value of investments retained upon disposal HERFTREBIRE 2 A TEE (7,433)
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries (note 6) WAL EMB A 7z e (FisE6) 4,924

Satisfied by cash

VAR & A A5 -
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33. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. RIELENEB LT @

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect FEAGIELERNBARNREKEREFEER
of the deemed disposal of subsidiaries was as follows. ZREFESITAT
2021
—EB-—F
HK$°000
THET
Cash and bank balances disposed of and EHERS RRITEFUR
net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AERELHENBRRNRE R
in respect of the deemed disposal of subsidiaries ERIRSIER 2w EFEE (1,561)
34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  34. R B E&REBRKHF
CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions IE#E%B‘EE
(@) During the year, the decrease in investments in joint ventures @ REAR RELELCEZEERD
amounting to HK$21,614,000 (2021: the increase in investments 21,614 OOO/%E(_ T —F: GEE
in joint ventures amounting to HK$30,345,000) was attributable B NN30,345,000787T) © JTIERIER
to the recognition of financial guarantee obligation of B E R B (£79,927,0008 L (=T =—
HK$79,927,000 (2021: HK$112,542,000) and the derecognition F 112,542,000 1) R A& IETHER 7J
of financial guarantee obligation of HK$101,541,000 (2021: EREE101,541,0008 T (Z ==
HK$82,197,000). % : 82,197,000/ 7T) FTEK °
(b)  During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of- by REA - AEEFREFHELBEAER
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$787,000 and HK$787,000 BEAERHEABNIREFED Jztlj
(2021: HK$257,000 and HK$257,000), respectively, in respect of 787,000/ 7T K 787,000/8 L (—ZF —
lease arrangements for buildings. £ : 257,000/ 7T £2257,000%7T) °
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities BMEEBREE2RESH
2022 —E-F
Interest-bearing Lease
bank borrowings liabilities
M ERITIER HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT
At 1 April 2021 W-E-—&mA—A - 1,645
Changes from financing cash flows MERERES 6,424 (917)
Revision of a lease term arising from a change HETRIREE AR E S EE
in the non-cancellable period of a lease Z HEH BN = (333)
New leases s = 787
Interest expense MERX 9 78
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DERKEHREREZENFE = (41)
Interest paid classified as financing cash flows SRERREREREZENFE 9) (37)
Exchange realignment BEE R 1 6
At 31 March 2022 KRB —4$=A=+—H 6,435 1,188
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31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

CASH FLOWS (continued)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

(continued)

4. GEREREXRMT @
METBHFEECEEEE @

2021 —T-—fF
Interest-bearing Lease
bank borrowings liabilities
BT BRI TR HEBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
At 1 April 2020 RZZE-_ZTFMA—H 97,811 6,712
Changes from financing cash flows RERSREH (102,298) (2,836)
Revision of a lease term arising from a change in the ~ &N AIHGHHREE B EL 2 A EHENR
non-cancellable period of a lease - (2,526)
New leases Mg - 257
Interest expense FMBFAZ 794 177
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows SRR EREREZENFIE = (78)
Interest paid classified as financing cash flows SEAREREREZENFIE (794) (99)
Exchange realignment BE 35 B 4,487 38
At 31 March 2021 —4$=A=+—H - 1,645
Total cash outflow for leases HERSHRHBEEHE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement SAGERERERZHER @R AEN
of cash flows is as follows: T
2022 2021
B8 —ET -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within operating activities FTAK RS 1,295 1,656
Within financing activities SFABLEED) 954 2,935
2,249 4,591
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES FREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided RS BRI A RE - RS SRR AR ER
for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: BosARaBEmT -
2022 2021
—E- T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Guarantees given to banks in connection with ~ BLIR TAEEEZEEIRET
facilities granted to joint ventures HRITZER 5,548,815 6,306,296
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35.

36.

178

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 35. HARAE@
As at 31 March 2022, the bank lending facilities granted to joint RZBZZF=A=+—H AEE}RE&D
ventures subject to cross-guarantees given to the banks by the Group %ZETﬁZfEﬁE%\FfTﬂﬁ’\E?ﬂ%%fﬁﬁ
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$5,548,815,000 E# A 45,548,815,000/8 L (T ——
(2021: HK$6,306,296,000). For the financial guarantees provided to 6 306,296,000/87T) © HRAH A%ﬂé%%}ﬁz
joint ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted, the RITEREEMREZHBER  AKEE
Group has recognised the financial guarantee obligation amounting to F?g::i;ﬂ =+ —AHUBEREAEE
HK$52,032,000 (2021: HK$73,646,000) as a liability as at 31 March 52,032,000/ 0 (ZZF = —4F : 73,646,000/%
2022 which was disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial T ERRBAE - FHEREGRE M HRERME275
statements. =
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BERAEALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) MESLGEAUBREREMIALFHLZRS
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following N REERFEREGEEATHET T
material transactions with related parties during the year: TERRZS :
2022 2021
—EC-C8F —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(s FHE T FAT
Joint venture: BEMEE
Dividend income & 2 WA (i) 93,240 81,585
Associates: [ l/NC]
Sale of products ﬁﬁ%@uu (i) 6,962 4,370
Purchase of products BEEm (i) 737 320
Service income i35 TN (iii) - 116
Service expenses k75 2 A (iii) 140 21
Notes: MHaT -
(i) The dividends declared by the joint venture of the Group were for the (i) REB —HELELEMERZKRETIMEBE-Z
interim dividends for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and 30 June ——FRNA=ZtTHR-_ZE-_ZTFNA=1HI
2020 and the year-end dividends for the years ended 31 December NEAAZHHBAERRHBEE-—_S-——&F+—8
2021 and 31 December 2020. =+—BR-ZT_ZTFF+_A=1T—HBIEFEE
B2 RS o
(ii) The sale to and purchase from associates were made at prices and terms (i) BN TN EREE IR ERHENE
mutually agreed between the parties. 18 RAGTGHEST ©
(iiiy The service income received from associates and service expenses (iif) B U B & A B IR TS U A K B — RSB & Rﬁ%
paid to an associate were made at prices and terms mutually agreed B JIRET A = ijgm{ﬁtg&ﬂ,ﬁx
between the parties.
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) XEBEFTEEEAEZHE

the Group

The Group's key management personnel are the Executive
Directors of the Company, and further details of their
emoluments are included in note 8(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022
Financial assets

37.

TMIAZDE

BRI AR RS MHEERK ZRm SR

T

—E-F
SREE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

EBRBREATERE
JIRzSRERE
Designated Financial
as such assets at
upon initial  Mandatorily amortised
recognition designated cost Total
Wi RE R A SR
HRRETE BHEE ZEMEE a5t
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE TEx TET TET TET
Loan to an associate RETHBE AR ZER 18 - - 19,061 19,061
Due from associates JEMRE & A A5 18 - - 2,763 2,763
Trade receivables JEWE S ERN 21 - - 8,599 8,599
Financial assets included in FIABRNFIE - Rek
prepayments, deposits and HiEWHIE S RBE
other receivables 22 - - 22,602 22,602
Financial assets at fair value FEBBEREATEEER
through profit or loss LEREE 19 420 53,447 = 53,867
Cash and bank balances BeMRITER 23 - - 151,309 151,309
Deposits with other financial PR & RIS 2 T 3%
institutions 23 - - 919 919
420 53,447 205,253 259,120
Financial liabilities SHAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RE R AR
ZeMEE
Notes HK$'000
BfaE FTHET
Trade payables FERRTE SR 24 4,277
Deposits received L s 24 1,320
Financial liabilities included in accrued expenses st AfEZTERNS R EE 24 10,401
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 1,188
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B BRI TIE 3K 26 6,435
Financial guarantee obligation MISHEREE 27 52,032
75,653
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. EMIAZDE@®

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments BRI ANREHRERS 2 FEEHE

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) mR : (8)
2021 —=— s
Financial assets SREE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

ERBREATERE
JIRz S RMEE
Designated Financial
as such assets at
upon initial  Mandatorily amortised
recognition designated cost Total
R RE B AT R
BRI T BHIEE ZEMEE &5t
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
HizE TERT TER TET TET
Due from associates iGN E ] 18 - - 987 987
Trade receivables I E FBR 21 - - 34,886 34,886
Financial assets included in FABRNFIE - ek
prepayments, deposits and Hin e IEz A E
other receivables 22 - - 15,555 15,555
Financial assets at fair value FBEREATERER
through profit or loss LEBEE 19 3,222 69,663 - 72,885
Cash and bank balances B MRITER 23 - - 123,678 123,678
Deposits with other financial REfE BE 2 7R
institutions 23 - - 620 620
3,222 69,663 175,726 248,611
Financial liabilities SRBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RS R AT AR
ZEeREE
Notes HK$'000
BiaE FERT
Trade payables FERTE SR 24 4,990
Deposits received [EEersn 24 2,357
Financial liabilities included in accrued expenses st AT ERN SR AE 24 13,038
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 1,645
Financial guarantee obligation ISR EE 27 73,646
95,676
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’ s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

38. R TAAFEERIFEESR
R1E
AEESBTARASHERATEELENA
EEBRID ZEASERAFERAENT -

Carrying amounts Fair values
FRESHE AFEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—EBo—F —E-—F B —T-_—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT THERT FAET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value FRBEmIEA T EBSEZ
through profit or loss DRIEE 53,867 72,885 53,867 72,885
Non-current deposits EmBIRE 1,716 1,932 1,716 1,932
Loan to an associate R —EEE QR ZER 19,061 = 19,061 =
74,644 74,817 74,644 74,817

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from associates, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
(other than non-current deposits), trade payables, deposits received,
financial liabilities included in accrued expenses, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and financial guarantee obligation approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

BEENTE ReELFRBALSEE - BUEHS
RAEFRIR - BRE SRR - 5T ABRNFR - &
EREMERFEZEREE GERBRERK
5N~ BB SRR  EWdRE AR ER
MERBE  MERTERRMBEREEZ
AFEEREFESEAS  T2EARRET
SN SR IAE

AEEHPBRBGRAZ MM EEE
ESRMIARFEBEZIBERER - MHKIE
BEEMERPBRENERZESER - B
MARBHERRLITEMTABEE
VEEGETFERZIRZRAE - BENBR
EENIIAEMGE BERZEGU-FMER
PR EEMBRBEEIwmAERRERE
B
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38.

182

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits and a loan to an associate have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed equity and bond investments and, an equity
investment traded over-the-counter measured as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are based on quoted market prices.
The fair values of unlisted equity investments measured as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss have been estimated with
reference to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as the
average of the enterprise value to sales ratio (“EV/Sales”), income
approach by discounted cash flows method or issued prices of recent
transactions. The fair values of key management insurance contracts
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are based
on the account values less surrender charges, quoted by the vendors.
The directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the
valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position, and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.
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ERMITEAFEERAFEEER
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EHMTEFHER-_S_—_FR_T-_—F=A
=+ —HBZERTABRE A EERTE =8

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as

at 31 March 2022 and 2021: EAmmT
Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input  Value Sensitivity of fair value to input
fEER EATTEEGAE  UE ATEEHRAEZRE

Unlisted equity investments Market comparable companies  EV/Sales N/A N/A (2021: 5% increase (decrease) in EV/Sales
classified as financial assets at THIALRAT PEEE/HEE (2021: 0.35x to 3.04x) multiple would result in increase (decrease) in fair
fair value through profit or loss TiEA value by HK$16,000)

¥ ITRARE - HRRERER (C2=-%:03582 TEACE--F: 0%EE/HEEHE A
BATEBEIIRZEREE 3.04£5) (FR)o% &8I AT EE LF (TH) 16,0007

)
Market comparable Marketability discount ~ 15.8% (2021: 15.8%) N/A (2021: 5% increase (decrease) in the
companies/ EETR 15.8% marketability discount would result in decrease
income approach (ZZ=—%:158%) (increase) in fair value by HK$10,000)
TS EEA R/ WA TNER (ST =% : AHEMEmE LA (TH%)5%
BEHATEBTH(EF)10,000%7T)
Market comparable Minority discount 25.0% (2021: 25.1%) 5% increase (decrease) in the minority discount
companies/ DERRERTTE 25.0% would result in decrease (increase) in fair value by
income approach (ZZZ-F:251%) HK$8,000 (2021: HK$18,000)
TR ALENE,/ WA SBRRERTRLA (TR)S%HERATEET
B (78,000 (Z2=—4 : 18,000%7)
Income approach Discount rate 17.0% (2021: 17.0%) 5% increase (decrease) in the discount rate would
WANE AR & 17.0% result in decrease (increase) in fair value by
(ZZ=—F:17.0%) HK$8,000 (2021: HK$42,000)
BRERE At (TRE) S % B R AT RE T & (L)
8,000 7T (Z2=—% : 42,000/57T)
Income approach Terminal growth rate 3.0% (2021: 3.0%) N/A (2021: 5% increase (decrease) in the terminal
WA KAKERE 3.0% growth rate would result in increase (decrease) in
(ZB=—F:30%) fair value by HK$4,000)
TER(ZEZ—5F  AAERE L (TH) 5%
BYNTEE HF(F#)4,000%87)

Key management insurance N/A Account values HK$27,999,000 5% increase (decrease) in account values would
contracts classified as financial ~ NiEF FFER (2021: HK$27,343,000)  result in increase (decrease) in fair value by
assets at fair value through profit 27,999,000/ T HK$1,400,000 (2021: HK$1,367,000)
or loss (CB=—%: REEELA (TH) 5% SR ATEE LA (TH)

TEERABRREN  HERE 27,343,000%7C) 1,400,000870 (ZZ=—4 : 1,367,000 7
BREEEATEER eRE
E Surrender charges HK$2,517,000 5% increase (decrease) in surrender charges would

RRER (2021: HK$2,642,000) result in decrease (increase) in fair value by
2,517,000 HK$126,000 (2021: HK$132,000)
(ZF=—%: RIRER LA (TR) 5% B RATEETR(EA)
2,642,000 7T) 126,007 (ZE=—4 : 132,000%7C)
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. €T EAFEERATEESH

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) £ 4C )

Fair value hierarchy NEEESHERE

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRINTAEZEREECHTARAFEEZER
the Group's financial instruments: B

Assets measured at fair value: BRAFEETEZEE

As at 31 March 2022: Ro-E-——F=f=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

RN TEERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

ERmE EATHE EAFAHE

ZRE BWAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(-8 (B=8) (E=8) &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TET TET FTHET

Financial assets at fair value through & BBz A HEETIE

profit or loss ZEREE 27,965 - 25,902 53,867

Fair value measurement using

s EATBERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

R S EXRAER BEANAER

ZRIE BAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—=) (FE=E) (FE=E) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET

Financial assets at fair value through & B IBzIR A FEETIE

profit or loss ZERMEE 44,962 - 27,923 72,885
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the
year are as follows:

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

EMIEAFEERLATFEESH
RE@®

NP EESEHREE @
BRAVEEHEZEE | (@)

FA - F=BAXTFEEFEIEZHNT :

2022 2021

B8 —E_—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

At beginning of year F4) 27,923 48,605
Total losses recognised in profit or loss RIBSER 2 BB (2,021) (14,027)
Purchases BE - 5,633
Transferred to Level 1 BMAE—E - (14,093)
Exchange realignment bE A% - 1,805
At end of year FR 25,902 27,923

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

In the prior year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and a financial asset of HK$14,093,000
was transferred from Level 3 into Level 1 since the financial asset was
traded over-the-counter during that year and the fair value of it was
based on the quoted market prices. There were no transfers into or out
of Level 3 for financial liabilities.

KRB —_F=A=+—HBER=_ZT=_—%=A
=+—8 AXEEBMETIEATFEEFEZ
CRIEME -

FR - BERE_EATEEAS2HLE
BY  ANESARBLE=E -

REF  F-EBRE_EATEEFEZREIL
B ST R14,093,0008 TH S FE
EBFE=EBAF—E JTHAREBMEERSE
FHESIR G RERNFEBETDAMBHERE
o ECHEEBAREHE=E -
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 March 2022:

38. €T EAFEERATEESH
g @
NP EESEREE @
WEATEEZEE

R-FE-——#F=H=+—A:

Fair value measurement using

STEAVEERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

SERTE BEATHE EATAHE

ZHME BWAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—18) (B=E) (FE=B) &5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET T TR TR
Non-current deposits FnEEE - - 1,716 1,716
Loan to an associate 1 /N = 6 - - 19,061 19,061
- - 20,777 20,777

As at 31 March 2021: REZFE-Z—4F=H=+—H
Fair value measurement using
SrE AT EAERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BRI, BAAERR  EANAER

2B BAE HAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—B) (E=E) (FE=R) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHAT THT
Non-current deposits EREIRE = = 1,932 1,932
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, lease liabilities, cash and bank balances and deposits
with other financial institutions. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group
is also exposed to market price risk in respect of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market price risk. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk because its business
is principally conducted in Hong Kong and most of the transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. Since the
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is considered to be minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based
on past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification at the end
of the reporting period. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the
financial guarantee contracts.

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

9. MBEREEBERBX

AEBZI2ZEMTABEMBRTER  H
ERfE RENRBTEFUARNE MBS EEE
ZHER - ZEERMIEZIZAETIREE
BLERE - AEEFHEMZASHEERA
& fINEWE ZRFRENE SRR - B8
AEBEEEREL - AEENEBBIESER
RNFEEIRZ EBEEMmEGRETERR

AREERIAMELEZEERARRINER
B FERR  ABECEBRKTEERR - E
EERIRBEAREESRRZEE - B
AT e

ShEE R B

AEEWESRINERR  REFERFEL
LR  HREDRZIABITTRETLEE ©
R ITTETTANE - BANK B A E B2 SN
R\ AR AR AT B A8

FERR
AEEREERAMEENEZF=TETE
B - ARBIZBRRBMARBNEERET
BEZEPHOAKBEERERF - 1IN &
WORIR A SR TR RS R B AR B 5% o

RAERR K F KRR
TRIRIUAAEEEEBRRASELENEEE R
UEFrEENSREERR  ZEEBRRE
EAB AR (BARABZ KA HEIRS
ZEMERRIN RBEMROFERERDE
EfeBReMEEZ RAASBRMBE
RENHBEZEERR -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

39. BIEREEEEZRBEK@®

188

Credit risk (continued) EE =B (3
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BRER R F R ER (8)
As at 31 March 2022 REB-ZZH=F=+—H
12-month
ECLs
12 AR Lifetime ECLs
FEFE ZHRAEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
12 [129] BEER3 kA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TaR TEx TEx TEx
Loan to an associate RET-RHHE AR ZER
- Normal** =MEEw 19,425 - - - 19,425
Trade receivables* R E 5 Bk - - - 53,203 53,203
Due from associates FENCH & N AlFIE
— Not yet past due — AR 2,763 - - - 2,763
Financial assets included in prepayments, ~ RTETFUE « & REMEK
deposits and other receivables HIEAFE SREE
— Normal** — R+ 22,602 - - - 22,602
Cash and bank balances Be RifThF
— Not yet past due — AR 151,309 - - - 151,309
Deposits with other financial institutions ~ FAHEHi% Rt 2 173
— Not yet past due — AR 919 - - - 919
Guarantees given to banks in connection ~ BERFALLE 2 EERET
with facilities granted to joint ventures RITZ R
— Not yet past due (note 35) — WA B (135 5,548,815 - - - 5548815
5,745,833 - - 53,203 5,799,036
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Credit risk (continued)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2021

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

39. BIEREEEERBE®

&R @
RAEBR R F R R (D)

R-—ZE-_—F=A=+—H

12-month
ECLs
12 (A A Lifetime ECLs
FEER 2HRNEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PEER1 PEER2 EE] EeE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THET TAT TAT FAT
Trade receivables* BB SR - - - 46,832 46,832
Due from associates FEURES & 8 R 0E
— Not yet past due — AR 987 - - - 987
Financial assets included in prepayments, ~ RTETFUE « & REMEK
deposits and other receivables BRI SREE
- Normal** =MEEw 15,555 - - - 15,555
- Doubtful** —RfR** - - 4,946 - 4,946
Cash and bank balances Be RFTER
— Not yet past due — AR 123,678 - - - 123,678
Deposits with other financial institutions A E £ B 2 1730
— Not yet past due — AR 620 = = = 620
Guarantees given to banks in connection ~ R FALLEZEERET
with facilities granted to joint ventures RIT2ER
— Not yet past due (note 35) — AR (fi35) 6,306,296 = = - 6,306,29
6,447,136 - 4,946 46,832 6,498,914
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * RNEFGRELEWRE SRR A (L AR

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21

to the consolidated financial statements.

x* The credit quality of these financial assets is considered to be “normal” when *%
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BERREENE K BN GRS BB RKME
21°
RZEeMEENEEEDRNERARRRERS
[ER] BEEHXASREE NI ERLEN
EERBREEAREM B EWMEENERED
ERRBIRAR] ©

BRAASEREKE SRR MERZ EERR

ZHE— S TEEDITEIR IR E SRR M
21358 ©
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39.

190

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MR ERE B ZERBE@®
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk RENE S RS
The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and credit lines to meet AEEHNEERRERACHEREERE W
its liquidity requirements. The Group finances its working capital THEHRBESHTR - NEEBBESKEES
requirements through a combination of funds generated from WESHERTERASHEBEESTREMNE
operations and bank borrowings. & o
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of AEEZ A ERIRE PR REIRTOR
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, ARIRATRZ B ERE R T
is as follows:
2022
B F
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
—FRY —FE MEULE
REREE (EIRWE BIREEF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TER
Trade payables B ZERZ 4,277 - - 4,277
Deposits received Blizs 1,320 - - 1,320
Financial liabilities included in BONHE-GE A=V
accrued expenses 10,401 - - 10,401
Lease liabilities HEEE 742 460 64 1,266
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B BRI TIERK 6,435 - - 6,435
Guarantees given to banks in RETAECEZREE
connection with facilities granted TRt FER1T 2 IR (5E35)
to joint ventures (note 35) 5,548,815 - - 5,548,815
5,571,990 460 64 5,572,514
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

39. BIEREEEERBE®

RENE Sk (@)

2021
—TE_—fF
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
—FR —FUE MEE
REXER  EALORME EBEIREF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT TAT
Trade payables [ERTE SRR 4,990 = = 4,990
Deposits received Blizs 2,357 = = 2,357
Financial liabilities included in A ERANSRARE
accrued expenses 13,038 - - 13,038
Lease liabilities HEaE 929 574 270 1,773
Guarantees given to banks in BRTEECEZEER
connection with facilities granted TRt FaR1T 2 IR (FFE35)
to joint ventures (note 35) 6,306,296 - - 6,306,296
6,327,610 574 270 6,328,454
Market price risk HER

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to market price
risk arising from individual equity investments and key management
insurance contracts classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 19). Most of the Group’s listed equity investments
are listed on the Stock Exchange and were valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at the close of business
of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and its respective highest and lowest points during the year are as
follows:

mERRARAEHRERNERBEKF 2
HEYWABLHFAFEETRZER - A%H
B ER AR E hy B AEBIER R AT EE
IR ERMEBEZ TEERABRRE L (T
19) ME M ERR - AEE KRS ETRAEK
BTIRB R BT - IR e B R A R A P
Wz METEME -

REE I RE AR RS 2 FAR S H & R
RIAERE  REER 2 TSR - ARE
BEBZFARDRREHENT

31 March High/low 31 March High/low
2022 2022 2021 2021
—EC-CF —EC-—F T4 —E-—4F
=A=+—H Be/ /&K =A=1+—H = &K

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index &8 — 184 E#

22,232 29,468/18,415

28,578 31,085/22,930
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% change
in the fair values of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and key management insurance contracts with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period.

39. BIEREEEERBE®

™ {8 E.B ()
TRINEMBEMEBES AR ZERT -
BHRENEERFZEESENE - BBRE
BAFEEIGZEMEERTRZEEABR
ez ATEESEES%  AEEBRH NG
M2 BURE -

Increase/
decrease
Carrying in profit
amount before tax
RRBE A= F
IRESE B, m
HK$'000 HK$000
FExT FHET
2022 —ECF
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZEEBEFIEAFEETIEZ CHEE 28,385 1,419
Key management insurance contracts classified D iEAFEBESEAFEEYEZ
as financial assets at fair value through SREELETEERAE
profit or loss RERE# 25,482 1,274
Increase/
decrease
Carrying in profit
amount before tax
R Al e A
RESR #hn, A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHTT
2021 T
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & BIBEIE A FEEIIEZEREE 48,184 2,409
Key management insurance contracts classified 218 AEBERZZAFEENERZ
as financial assets at fair value through CHMEEZFEBEASR
profit or loss REE 4 24,701 1,235
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is required to comply and has complied with certain capital
requirements set out in the bank lending facilities. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio at less than 75%. Net debt includes trade payables, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
included in current assets. Capital represents total equity.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

39.

e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

B EREE R ZERBER @

ExEE

AEBEAETE TEBRERERAEEFE
REZHEN  WHEFBRBBZERLE - UAXH
HEBRFBGEAZBIRERE

AEBERBEERA BEERELENERE R
EHAR - AEEXEHEEFHEARRIKEZ
BB~ AR R E AN BT BUA RS 3
BREXRGERE - ARBEAETYDETRITERK
FEEMBCETEARE - REE_FT_—F
ZA=t—BAK=ZE=_—F=A=+—HBItF
B AEEEREAZBR  BRIEFBE

=4
SE -

AEBFRAEAB B R (BRFEBUNEAR
BEREAR - ARBEZERRDBEAAEL
RERFNTS% AT - B FRRLERNEZ K
O HERERMERITENR B ARDE
ENREMERREEE MEBBRSERATE
BIRZ EREE - BRI ESRRE

RIBEMREERE 2 EARBLEMT

2022 2021

B8 T —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Trade payables FERTE SRR 4,277 4,990

Lease liabilities HEAE 1,188 1,645

Interest-bearing bank borrowings B BRI TE 3K 6,435 =

Less: Cash and cash equivalents o BekERREIER (152,228) (124,298)
Less: Financial assets at fair value through B BRBERIEATEEYERE

profit or loss included in current assets ERMEETARDEE (28,385) (48,184)

Net cash e FH (168,713) (165,847)

Total capital BERGBE 1,622,038 1,425,009

Gearing ratio BRBELE N/A N/A

TEA TEA
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e B RS R AR YRt

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 June 2022, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of one of its
investment properties situated in Singapore for a cash consideration
of SGD4,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$24,013,000). This
transaction has completed on 20 June 2022 and had no material gain
or loss on disposal before tax. For details of the transaction, please refer

to the announcement of the Company dated 17 June 2022.

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

40. HEHEREH

RZTE-_—_FXA+tH AEEHE—FF
VEZFIN—NEEWHR UBRENRE
4,250,000 N3 7T (FEE 74 £924,013,00078 7T)
HEEM RO ER —BREDE - ZR
SER-E-_—FXA-+HxK BELHE
Wr i M E A S ARRT AT S EE - BZ
RSNFHE  BREARRRZE__FA

tEBBBHAL -
41. KRR ZHBARRE

BRARR RN RN S AR EREZE

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: B
2022 2021
—EC-C8F T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R R 668 117
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AT ZEE 629,887 655,368
Total non-current assets EmBEERE 630,555 655,485
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUSRT B A R FIE 982 982
Prepayments TEfTFRIR 314 301
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBELIEE 1,340 846
Total current assets BB ERAE 2,636 2,129
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Accrued expenses FEETE A 6,834 8,363
Financial guarantee obligation BB ERET 52,032 73,646
Total current liabilities BB EEE 58,866 82,009
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEETFHE (56,230) (79,880)
Net assets AEFE 574,325 575,605
EQUITY s
Issued capital B TR 90,866 90,866
Reserves (note) & () 483,459 484,739
Total equity BT 574,325 575,605
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e B RS ERAR MR

31 March2022 —E-—F=A=+—H

41. AR T Z B #EAR R R @)

COMPANY (continued)
Note: B -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RNAT 2 EER T
Share Capital
premium redemption Retained
account reserve profits Total
ROBER REEEGERE REBEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET
At 1 April 2020 RZZT-_ZTFMA—H 429,719 16,142 35,823 481,684
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 KA ERE - - 34,858 34,858
Dividend paid (note 10) BERAZ S (FizE10) - - (31,803) (31,803)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R=F=_—F=A=+—HEK
—ZT-—FmA—H 429,719 16,142 38,878 484,739
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 W A 458 - - 35,067 35,067
Dividend paid (note 10) IR S (Ff3E10) - - (36,347) (36,347)
At 31 March 2022 R=ZFZ=ZF=A=+— 429,719 16,142 37,598 483,459

In accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the Company’s share premium account is distributable in

certain circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 24 June 2022.

REFRERERFNE(CEZHFETAR) - K
RAEAZBHEREETERTH THIK

42. HmEMBHRR2HE

AEAUBREEN _E-_—_&EA=-+HEA
EEEoifE RIRETE -
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REMFBENTAYE  MERR

31 March2022 —ZE==F=fA=+—H

w2 EF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Approximate Effective equity
Address gross areas Lot number  Lease expiry interest to the Group Usage
rEEER

3k BHBER RS HAZEA B Ag

HONG KONG

BB

Flat 302, 3/F, Block G, Telford Gardens, 603.00 sq.ft. NKI 5744 2047 100% Residential
No. 33 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

NENBEBRFEBFIBRIEECE3RZ02E 603.00F 7R NKI 5744 “TMtE 100% =

MAINLAND CHINA

HEIR

Units A-D, 25/F, Noble Center, 1006 Fu Zhong San Road, 1,000.77 sq.m. N/A 2053 100% Office
Futian District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province

ERE R IMiEHRET =5 10065% 1,00077F 5K NER “TH=F 100% YN
HERD2BAZDE

The whole of 28th Floor, Tower One, Neptune Center, 1,088.42 sq.m. N/A 2048 100% Services
Gaoxin District, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province apartments

W) R T R RE T .0 — 8B 1,08842F 7k TR —ZmNE 100% B LS

SINGAPORE

HIK

37 Orange Grove Rood, #04-11, 185.00 sg.m. N/A Freehold property ~ 100% Residential
Orange Grove Residences, Singapore

185.00F /5K Em KAREME 100% =

BUILDINGS INCLUDED IN PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The buildings included in property, plant and equipment mainly represented
the head office of the Group located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Square Three,
39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong and the office of a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company located at 219 Henderson Road, #10-01,
Henderson Industrial Park, Singapore.
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AADE BERREBZETFEIERREEER
B URBBNEELAREIVECERES =H
CEURARRATEZEMBAR ZIHEE - f178219
Henderson Road, #10-01, Henderson Industrial Park,
Singapore °
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